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Under this €4,000,000,000 Fure Mudium Term Note Progranime (the "Programme” ), EDF Energy ple, EDF FEnergy Networks (LPN] ple
(“LPN"J, £DF Energy Networks ( EPN ) pie ( "EPN"j and EIH Energy Nevworks (SEN ple { "SPN" and, together with D Energy ple, LPN
atd PN the “lssuers” and cach apn “Tssuer™ | may from time to fime issue motes ( the “Notes”) derominared in giy curvency agreed between the
Issuer of stich Notes ( the “relevant Issuer™ § and the velevant Dealer {as defined below),

The maxinmm ageregate roniinal amount of all Notes from time to time outstanding under the Programme will nat exceed €4.000,000,000 (or its
eguivalent in other correncies caleilated ax described in the Programme Agreement ), subject to increase us described in this Offering Circuitar.
The Notes may be issued on @ continuing basis lo one or move of the Dealers specified under "Summary of the Programme” and any additivnal
Degler appointed under the Programime from time 18 time by the Issuers (each « "Dealer” and together the "Dealers” ), which appointment muy be
Jor a specific issue or on an ongoing basis. References in this Offering Cirenlar to the “relevant Dealer” shali, in the case of an issue of Notes being
{or intended 1o be} subscribed by more tha one Dealer, be to all Dealers agresing to subscribe such Notes.

Application has been made to the Financial Services Authority in its capacity as competent authority under the Financiol Services and Markets Act
2000 the "UK Listing Authority ") for Notes issieed under the Pragrarime during the period of 12 months from the date of this Offering Circular
o be admitied (o the official fist mainiained by the UK Listing Anthority ( the “Official List”/ and 1o the London Stock Exchange pic [ the “Londen
Stock Exchange”) for such Notes fo be admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange's market for listed securities. Admission to the Official
List together with admission to the Londan Stock Exchange's market for fisted securities constitute official iisting on the Landor Siock Exchange.
Notice of the aggregate nominal amount of Notes, imterest (If any} payable in respect of Notes, the issue price of Notes and any other terms and
conditions not contained herein which ure applicable to each Traviche { as defined under “Terms and Conditions of the Notes”j of Notes will be sei
out in o pricing supplement { the “Pricing Supplement” ) swhich, with respect to Notes to be admitted to the Official List and admirted 1o trading on
the London Stock Exchange's mavker for listed securities, will be delivered ro the UK Listing Authority and te London Stock Excharnge on or before
the date of issue of the Notes of such Tranche.

The Programme provides that Notex may be listed on such other or further stock exchange( s} us may be agreed between the refevant fssuer and the
refevant Dealer. The Issuers may also issue unlisted Notes.

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the US. Securitics Act of 1933, as amended, ( the "Securities Act” ) and may pot be offered
o sold i the United Stutes or to, o for the benefit of, LS. persons unless the Notes arve registered under the Securities Aot or an exemption from the
registration requirenients of the Securities Act bs avaitable. See “Form of the Notes” for a description of the memier i which Notes will be isswed,

The relevant Issuer and the Trustee (as defined hevein) may agres with any Dealer that Notes may be issued in a form not contemiplated by the Terms

and Conditions of the Netes hevein, in which event {in the case of Notes admitted to the Official List) supplementary listing particutars or firther

fisting particutars, if appropricte, will be made avaidable which will describe the effect of the agreement reached in relarion to such Notes.
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Fach of the Issuers accepts responsibility for the information contaiped in this Offering Circular. To the best
of the knowledge and belief of each Issuer (having taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the
information contained in this Offering Circular is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely
to affect the import of such information.  Any reference in this Offering Circular to Listing Particulars [as
defined below) means this Offering Circular excluding all informeation incorporated by reference. The Issuers
have confirmed thal any information incorporated by reference, including any such information to which readers
of this Offering Circular are expressly referved, has not been and does not need to be included in the Listing
Particulars to satisfy the requirements of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 or the listing rules of
the UK Listing Authority. The Issuers believe that none of the information incorporated in this Offering
Circular by reference conflicts in any material respect with the information included in the Listing Particulars.

A copy of this Offering Circular, which comprises the listing particuwlars approved by the UK Listing Authority
as reguired by the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 [the “Listing Particulars”j in relation to Nofes
admitted to the Official List and admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange's market for listed
securities and issued during the period of 12 months from the date of this Offering Circular, has been delivered
Jor registration to the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales as requived by section 83 of that Act.
Copies of each Pricing Supplement {in the case of Notes to be admitted to the Official List) will be availuble
from FT Business Research Centre, operaled by FT Interactive Data at Filzroy House,
17 Epworth Street, London EC2A 4DL and from the specified office set out below of each of the Paying Agents
(as defined below).

This Offering Circular is 1o be read in conjunciion with all dociments which are deemed to be incorporated
herein by reference {see "Documents Incorporated by Reference”). This Offering Circular shall be read and
construed on the basis that such documents are so incorporated and form part of this Offering Circular but not
part of the Listing Particulars.

Neither the Dealers nor the Trustee have independently verified the information contained herein. Accordingly,
no representation, warranly or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibility or liability is
accepted by the Dealers o the Trustee as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained or
incorporated in this Offering Circular or any other information provided by the Issuers in cornection with the
Programme.  No Dealer or the Trustee accepts any liability in relation to the information contained or
incorporated by reference in this Offering Circular or any other information provided by the [ssuers in
connection with the Progranune.

No person is or has been authorised by the Issuers or the Trustee fo give any information or to make any
representation not contained in or not consistent with this Offering Circular or any other information supplied
in connection with the Programme or the Notes and, if given or made, such information or representation mus!
not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuers, the Trustee or any of the Dealers.

Neither this Offering Circular nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or any
Notes (i) is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or (ii) should be considered as a
recommendation by the Issuers, the Trustee or any of the Dealers that any recipient of this Offering Circular
or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or any Noles should purchase any Notes.
Each investor contemplating purchasing any Notes should make its own independent investigation of the
Jinancial condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness, of the relevant Issuer. Neither this
Offering Circular nor any ather information supplied in connection with the Progranune or the issue of any
Notes constitutes an gffer or invitation by or on behalf of the Isswers, the Trustee or any of the Dealers to any
person Lo subscribe for or to purchase any Notes.

Neither the delivery of this Offering Cireular nor the offering, sale or delivery of any Notes shall in any
circeunstances imply that the information contained herein concerning the Issuers is correct at any time
subsequent to the date hereof or that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme is
correct ay of any time subsequent to the date indicated in the document containing the same. The Dealers and
the Trustee expressly do not underiake to review the financial condition or affairs of the Issuers during the life
of the Programme or 10 advise any investor in the Notes of any information coming to their atiention. Investors
should refer, inter alia, 1o the most recently published documents incorporated by reference into this Offering
Circular.

This Offering Circidar does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any Notes in any
Jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction. The
distribution of this Offering Circular and the offer or sale of Notes may be restricled by law in certain
Jurisdictions. The Issuers, the Trustee and the Dealers do not represent that this Offering Cireular may be
lawfully distributed, or that any Notes may be lawfully offered, in compliance with any applicable registration
or other requivements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuan! to an exemplion available thereunder, or assume any




responsibility for facifitating any such distribution or offering  In particular, no action has been taken by the
Issuers, the Trustee or the Dealers { save for the approval of this Gffering Circular as listing particulars by the
UK Listing Authority and delivery of a copy of this Offering Circular to the Registrar of Companies in England
and Wales} which would permit a public offering of any Notes or distribution of this Offering Circular in any
Jurisdiction where action for that purpose is reguired. Accordingly, no Notes may be offered or sold, directly or
indirectly, and neither this Offering Circular nor any advertisement or other offering material may be
distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under circumstances that will result in compliapce with any
applicable laws and regulations. Persons inio whose possession this Offering Circular or any Notes may come
must inform themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions on the distribution of this Offering Circular
and the offering and sale of Notes. In particular, there are restrictions on the distribution of this Offering
Circular and the offer or suale of Notes in Japan, the United Kingdom and the United States { see “Subscription
and Sale” ).

All references in this document to "U.S. dollars”, “U.8.8” and “$” refer to United States doflars, to "Sterling”
and "L refer to pounds sterling and to “euro” and "€” refer to the currency introduced at the start of the thivd
stage of European economic and monelary union pursuant to the Treaty establishing the European Community,
as anended.
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In connection with the issue and distribution of any Tranche of Notes. the Dealer (if any) disclosed as the
stabilising manager in the applicable Pricing Supplement or any person acting for it may over-allot or effect
transactions with a view to supporting the market price and on the same terms and conditions of the Notes
of the Series (as defined below) of which such Tranche forms part at a level higher than that which might
otherwise prevail for a limited period after the issue date. However, there may be no obligation on the
stabilising manager or any person acting for it to do this. Such stabilising. if’ commenced, may be
discontinued at any time and must be brought to an end after a limited period.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents published or issued from time to time after the date hereof shall be deemed to be
mcorperated in, and to form part of, this Offering Circular (provided. however, that such incorporated
documents do not form a part of the Listing Particulars):

(a) the most recently published audited annual financial statements {consolidated where applicable) and.
if published later, the most recently published interim financial statements (if any. and consolidated
where applicable) of cach lssuer (see “General Information” for a description of the financial
statements currently published by cach Issuer); and

{b) all supplements or amendments to this Olfering Circular circulated by the Issuers from time 1o time.

save that any statement contained herein or in a document which is deemed Lo be incorporated by reference
herein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Offering Circular {but not the
Listing Particulars} to the extent that a statement contained in any such subsequent document which is
deemed to be incorporated by reference herein modifics or supersedes such earlier statement (whether
expressly, by implication or otherwise). Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed,
except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Offering Circular.

The Issucrs will provide, without charge, to each person to whom a copy of this Offering Circular has been
detlivered, upon the request of such person, a copy of any or all of the documents deemed to be incorporated
herein by refercnce unless such documents have been modified or superseded as specified above. Requests
for such documents should be directed to any of the Issuers at their office set out at the end of this Offering
Circular. In addition, such documents will be available from the principal office in England of BNP Paribas
for Notes admitted to the Official List.

Each Issuer has severally undertaken to the Dealers in the Programme Agreement (as defined in
“Subscription und Sale”™) to comply with sections 81 and 83 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000.

If the terms of the Programime arc modified or amended in a manner which would make this Offering
Circular, as so modified or amended. inaccurate or misleading, a new offering circular will be prepared.




GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME

Under the Programme, an Issuer may from time to time issue Notes denominated in any currency. subject
as set out herein. A summary of the terms and conditions of the Programme and the Notes appears below.
The applicable terms of any Notes wiil be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer prior
to the issue of the Notes and will be set out in the Terms and Conditions of the Notes endorsed on, attached
to, or incorporated by reference into. the Netes, as modified and supplemented by the applicable Pricing
Supplement attached to, or endorsed on, such Notes, as more fully described under “Form of the Notes™.

This Offering Circular and any supplement will only be valid for listing Notes on the Official List during the
period of 12 months from the date of this Offering Circular in an aggregate nominal amount which, when
added to the aggregate nominal amouni then outstanding of all Notes previously or simultancously issued
under the Programme. does not exceed €4.000.000.000 or its equivalent in other currencies. For the purpose
of calculating the euro equivalent of the aggregate nominal amount of Notes issued under the Programme
from time to time:

(a) the euro equivalent of Notes denominated in another Specified Currency (as specified in the applicable
Pricing Supplement in relation to the Notes, described under “Form of the Notes™} shall be determined.,
at the discretion of the relevant Issuer. either as of the date on which agreement is reached for the issuc
of such Notes or on the preceding day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets arc
open for business in London, in each case on the basis of the spot rate for the sale of euro against the
purchase of such Specified Currency in the London foreign exchange market quoted by any leading
international bank selected by the relevant Issuer on the relevant day of calculation:

{b) the euro equivalent of Dual Currency Notes, Index Linked Notes and Partly Paid Notes (each as
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement in reiation to the Notes. described under “Form of the
Notes™) shall be calculated in the manner specified above by reference to the original nominal amount
on issue of such Notes (in the case of Partly Paid Notes regardless of the subscription price paid}): and

(c) the euro equivalent of Zero Coupon Notes (as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement in
relation to the Notes, described under “Form of the Notes”) and other Notes issued at a discount or a
premium shatl be calculated in the manner specified above by reference to the net proceeds received by
the relevant Issuer for the relevant issue.




SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME

The following summary does not purport to be complete and is taken from, and is qualified in its entirety by, the
remainder of this Offering Circular and, in relation 1o the terms and conditions of any particilar Tranche of
Notes, the applicable Pricing Supplement. Words and expressions defined in “'Form of the Notes” and “Terms
and Conditions of the Notes” below shail have the same meanings in this summary.

Issuers:

Description:
Arranger:

Dealers:

Certain Restrictions:

Trustee:

Issuing and Principal Paying Agent:

Programme Size:

Distribution:

Currencics:

Redenomination:

Maturities:

Issue Price:

EDF Energy plc

EDF Energy Networks (LPN) ple
EDF Encrgy Networks (EPN) plc
EDF Energy Networks (SPN) ple
Euro Medium Term Note Programme
BNP Paribas

Barclays Bank PLC, BNP Paribas, HSBC Bank pic and The Royal
Bank of Scotland ple

and any other Dealers appointed in accordance with the
Programme Agreement.

Fach issue of Notes denominated in a currency in respect of which
particular laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting
requirements apply will only be issued in circumstances which
comply with such laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or
reporting requirements from lime to time (see “Subscription and
Sale™) including the following restrictions applicable at the date of
this Oflering Circular.

Notes with a maturity of less than one year

Notes having a maturity of less than one year will constitute a
contravention of section 19 of the Financial Services and Markets
Act 2000 unless they are issued to a limited class of professional
investors and have a denomination of at least £100,000 or its
equivalent, sce “Subscription and Sale”.

Deutsche Trustee Company Limited
Deutsche Bank AG London

Up to €4,000,000,000 {or its equivalent in other currencies
calculated as described in the Programme Agreement} outslanding
at any time. The lssuers may increase the amount ol the
Programme in accordance with the terms of the Programme
Agrecmeni.

Notes may be distributed by way of private or public placement and
in cach case on a syndicated or non-syndicated basis.

Subject to any applicable legal or regulalory restrictions. any
currency agreed between the relevant lssuer and the relevant
Dealer.

The applicable Pricing Supplement may provide that certain Notes
may be redencminated in curo.

Such maturities as may be agreed between the reievant Issuer and
the relevant Dealer, subject to such minimum or maximum
maturities as may be allowed or required from time to time by the
relevani central bank (or cquivalent body) or any laws or
regulations applicable to the relevant Issuer or the relevant
Specified Currency.

Notes may be issucd on a fully-paid or a partly-paid basis and at an
issue price which is at par or at a discount to, or premium over. par.




Form of Notes:

Fixed Rate Notes:

Floating Ratc Notes:

Index Linked Notes:

Other provisions in relation to
Floating Rate Notes and [ndex
Linked Interest Notes:

Dual Currency Notes:

Zero Coupon Notes:

Redemption:

The Notes will be issued in bearer form as described in “Form of the
Notes”,

Fixed interest will be payable on such date or dates as may be
agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer and on
redemption and will be calculated on the basis of such Day Count
Fraction as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the
relevant Dealer.

Floating Rate Notes will bear interest at a rate determined:

(iy on the same basis as the {loating rate under a notional interest
rate swap transaction in the rclevant Specified Currency
governed by an agreement incorporating the 2000 ISDA
Definitions (as published by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association, Inc., and as amended and updated as
at the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes of the
relevant Series): or

(ii) on the basis of a reference rate appearing on the agreed screen
page of a commercial quotation service: or

{iii} on such othcr basis as may be agreed between the relevant
[ssuer and the relevant Dealer.

The margin (if any) relating to such floating rate will be agreed
between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer for cach Series
of Floating Rate Notes.

Payments of principal in respect of Index Linked Redemption
Notes or of interest in respect of Index Linked Interest Notes will
be calculated by reference to such index andfor formula or to
changes in the prices of securities or commodities or to such other
factors as the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree.

Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked Interest Notes may also
have 4 maximum interest rale, a minimum interest rate or both.

Interest on Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked Interest Notes in
respect of cach Interest Pertod, as agreed prior to issue by the
relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer, will be payable on such
Interest Payment Dates. and will be calculated on the basis of such
Day Count Fraction, as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer
and the relevant Dealer.

Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest and whether
at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Dual Currency Notes will be
made in such currencies, and based on such rates of exchange, as
the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer may agree.

Zero Coupon Notes will be offered and sold at a discount to their
nominal amount and will not bear interest.

The applicable Pricing Supplement will indicate either that the
relevant Notes cannot be redeemed prior to their stated maturity
{other than n specitied instalments, if applicable, or for taxation
reasons or following an Event of Default) or that such Notes will
be redeemable at the option of the relevant Issuer and/or the
Noteholders upon giving notice to the Noteholdeis or the relevant
Issuer. as the case may be, on a date or dates specified prior to such
stated matunty and at a price or prices and on such other terms as
may be agreed between the relevant Issucr and the relevant Dealer.

Notes issued by LPN, EPN or SPN may also be redeemed at the
option of the Notcholders in certain circumstances following the
occurrence of a Restructuring Event. as more particularly set out in
Condilion 6(¢g).




Denomination of Notes:

Taxation:

Negative Pledge:
Cross Default:

Status of the Notes:

Listing:

Governing Law:

Selling Restrictions:

The applicable Pricing Supplement may provide that Notes may be
redeemabie in two or more instalments of such amounts and on
such dates as are indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Notes having a maturity of less than one year are subject to
restrictions on their denomination and distribution, sce “Certain
Restrictions - Notes with a maturity of less than one year” above.

Notes will be issued in such denominations as may be agreed
between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer save that the
minimum denomination of each Note will be such as may be
allowed or required from time to time by the relevant central bank
{or cquivalent body) or any laws or regulations applicable to the
relevant Specilied Currency, see “Cerlain Restrictions - Notes with a
maturity of less than one year” above.

All payments in respect of the Notes will be made without
deduction for or on account of withholding taxes imposed within
the United Kingdom, subjest as provided in Condition 7. In the
event that any such deduction is made, the relevant Issuer will, save
in certain hmited circumstances provided in Condition 7, be
requited to pay additional amounts to cover the amounts so
deducted.

The terms of the Notes will contain a negative pledge provision as
further described in Condition 3.

The terms of the Notes will contain a cross defaull provision as
further described in Condition 9.

The Notes will constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated
and {subject to the provisions of Condition 3) unsecured
obligations of the relevant Issucr and will rank pari passu among
themaselves and (save for certain obligations required to be preferred
by law) equally with all other unsccured obligations (other than
subordinated obhigations. if any) of the relevant Issuer, from time
lo time oulstanding.

Apphlication has been made for Notes issued under the Programme
to be admitted to the Official List and to trading on the London
Stock Exchange’s market for listed securities. The Notes may also
be listed on such other or further stock exchange(s) as may be
agreed between the relevant lssuer and the relevant Dealer in
relation to each Series,

Unlisted Notes may also be issued.

The applicable Pricing Supplement will state whether or not the
relevant Notes are to be listed and. il so. on which stock
exchange(s).

The Notes will be governed by, and construed in accordance with,
English law.

There are restrictions on the distribution of this Offering Circular
and the offer or sale of Notes in Japan, the United Kingdom and
the United States and such other restrictions as may be required in
connection with the offering and sale of a particular Tranche of
Notes. sec “Subscription and Sale”.




FORM OF THE NOTES

The Notes of each Series will be 1n bearer form, with or without receipts, interest coupons and talons
attached. Notes will be 1ssued outside the United States in reliance on Regulation S under the Securities Act
(“Regulation §™) .

Each Tranche of Notes will initially be represented by cither a temporary global note (a “ Temporary Global
Note™} or a permancnt global note (a “Permanent Global Note” and, together with a Temporary Global
Note, the “Global Notes™) as indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement. which. in either case, wilt be
delivered on or prior to the original issue date of the Tranche to a common depositary {the “Common
Depositary™) lor Euroclear Bank S.AJ/N.V. as operator of the Euroclear System (“Ewreclear”) and
Clearstream Banking. société anonyme (*“ Clearstream, Luxembourg™). Whilst any Note is represented by a
Temporary Global Note, payments of principal, interest (if any} and any other amount payable in respect
of the Notes duc prior to the Exchange Datc (as defined below) will be made against presentation of the
Temporary Global Note only to the exlent that certification (in a {form to be provided) to the effect that the
beneficial owners of intercsts in such Note are not U.S. persons or persons who have purchased for resale to
any US. person, as required by US, Treasury regulations, has been received by Euroclear and/or
Clearstream. Luxembourg and Euroclear andf/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as applicable, has given a like
certification (based on the certifications it has received) to the Agent.

In respect of each Tranche initially represented by a Temporary Global Note, on and after the date (the
“Exchange Date™) which is 40 days after such Temporary Global Note is 1ssued. interests in such Temporary
Global Note will be exchangeable (free of charge) upon a request as described therein for either (1) interests
in a Permanent Global Nole of the same Series or (i1) definitive Notes of the same Series with, where
applicable, receipts, inlerest coupons and talons attached (as indicated in the applicable Pricing Supplement
and subject, in the case of definilive Noles, to such notice period as is specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement), in each case against certification of beneficial ownership as described above unless such
certification has alrcady been given, provided that purchasers in the United States and certain ULS. persons
will not be able 1o receive definitive Notes. The holder of a Temporary Global Note will not be entitled to
collect any payment of interest, principal or other amount due on or after the Exchange Date unless, upon
due certification, exchange of the Temporary Global Note for an interest in a Permanent Global Note or
for definitive Notes is improperly withheld or refused.

Payments of principal, interest (il any) or any other amounts on a Permanent Global Note will be made
through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg againsi presentation ot surrender (as the case may be)
of the Permanent Global Note without any requirement for certification.

The applicable Pricing Supplement will specify that a Permanent Global Note will be exchangeable (free of
charge). in whole but not in part, for definitive Notes with, where applicable. receipts, interest coupons and
talons attached upon either (i) not less than 60 days® writlen notice [rom Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg {acting on the instructions of any holder of an interest in such Permanent Global Note) to the
Agent as described thercin or (i} only upon the occurrence of an Exchange Event. For these purposes,
“Exchange Event” mcans that (i} an Event of Decfault (as defined in Condition 9) has occurred and is
continuing, (ii) the relevant Issuer has been notified that both Euroclear and Clearstream, Euxembourg have
been closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holiday. statutory or
otherwise) or have announced an intention permanently to cease business or have in fact done so and no
successor clearing system satisfactory to the Trustee is available or (iii) the relevant Issuer has or will become
subject to adverse tax consequences which would not be suffered were the Notes represented by the
Permanent Global Note in definitive form and a cerlificate to such effect signed by two Authorised Persons
{as defined in the Trust Deed) of the relevant Essuer is given (o the Trustee. The relevant [ssuer will promptly
give notice 1o the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 13 if’ an Exchange Event occurs. ln the cvent
of the occurrence of an Exchange Event, Euroclear and/or Clearsiream, Luxembourg (actling on the
instructions of any holder of an interest in such Permanent Global Note} or the Truslee may give notice to
the Agent requesting cxchange and., in the event of the occurrence of an Exchange Event as described in {iii)
above, the relevant Issuer may also give notice to the Agent requesting exchange. Any such exchange shall
occur not Jater than 45 days after the date of receipt of the first relevant notice by the Agent.

The following legend will appear on all Notes which have an original maturity of more than 365 days and
on all receipts and interest coupons relating to such Notes:

“ANY UNITED STATES PERSON WHO HOLDS THIS OBLIGATION WILL BE SUBJECT TO
LIMITATIONS UNDER THE UNITED STATES INCOME TAX LAWS, INCLUDING THE
LIMITATIONS PROVIDED IN SECTIONS 165(j) AND 1287(a) O THE INTERNAL REVENUE
CODE.”




The sections referred to provide that Uniled States holders, with certain exceptions, will not be entitled to
deduct any loss on Notes, receipls or interest coupens and will not be entitled to capital gains treatment of
any gain on any sale, disposition, redemplion or payment of principal in respect of such Notes, receipts or
interest coupons.

Notes which are represented by a Global Note will only be transferable in accordance with the rules and
procedures for the time being of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the casc may be,

General

Pursuant to the Agency Agreement (as defined under ~Terms and Conditions of the Notes™). the Agent shall
arrange that, where a [urther Tranche of Notes is issued which is intended to form a single Series with an
existing Tranche of Notes, the Notes of such further Tranche shall be assigned a common code and an ISIN
which arc different from the common code and ISIN assigned to Notes of any other Tranche of the same
Serics until at least the expiry of the distribution compliance period applicable to the Notes of such Franche

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note held on behall of Euroclear andfor
Clearstream. Luxembourg each person {other than Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg) who is for the
time being shown in the records of Euroclear or of Clearstrcam., Luxembourg as the holder of a particular
nominal amount of such Notes {(in which regard any certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or
Clearstream, Luxembourg as lo the nominal amount of such Notes standing to the account of any person
shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall be treated by the
relevant Issuer, the Trustee and their agents as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes for all
purposes other than with respect to the payment of pringipal or interest on such nominal amount of such
Notes, for which purpose the bearer of the relevant Global Note shall be treated by the relevant Issuer, the
Trustee, and their agents as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes in accordance with and
subject to the lerms of the relevant Global Note and the expressions “ Noteholder” and “holder of Notes”
and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.

Any reference herein to Euroclear and/or Clearstream. Luxembourg shall, whenever the context so permits,
be deemed to include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing system specified in the applicable
Pricing Supplement or as may otherwise be approved by the relevant Issuer, the Agent and the Trustee.

No Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder shall be entitled to proceed directly against the relevant
Issuer uniess the Trustee, having become bound so to proceed. fails to do so within a rcasonable period and
the failure 1s continuing.




FORM OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT

Set out below is the form of Pricing Supplemeni which will be completed for each Tranche of Notes issued under
the Progranmune.

[Date]

|EDF Energy ple/EDF Energy Networks (LPN) ple/EDF Energy Networks (EPN) ple/
EDF Energy Networks (SPN) ple]

Issue of | Aggregate Nominal Amount of Tranckel | Title of Notes)
under the €4,000,000,000
Euro Mediom Term Note Programme

This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement relating to the issue of Notes described herein. Terms
used hercin shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposcs of the terms and conditions set forth in
the Offering Circutar dated [@] [and the Supplemental Offering Circular dated [@]]. This Pricing Supplement
contains the final terms of the Notes and must be read in conjunction with such Offering Circular {as so
supplemented].

[The following alternative language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was issued
under an Offering Circular with an earlier date.

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the
“Conditions”) sct forth in the Offering Circular dated [originaf date]. This Pricing Supplement contains the
final terms of the Notes and must be read in conjunction with the Offering Circular dated [current date], save
in respect of the Conditions which are extracted [rom the Offering Circular dated [original date] and are
attached hereto.]

[nclude whichever of the following apply or specify as “Not Applicable” (NIA). Note that the numbering
should remain as set out below, even if’ “Not Applicable” is indicated for individual paragraphs or sub-
paragraphs, [talics denote directions for completing the Pricing Supplement.]

I Issuer [EDF Energy plc/EDF Energy Networks (LPN) ple/EDF
Energy Networks (EPN) plo/EDF Energy Networks (SPN) plc]
2. (i) Series Number: { ]
(it) Tranche Number: [ ]

{ If fungible with an existing Series, details of thai Serles,
ncluding the date on which the Notes become fungible )

3. Specified Currency or Currencies: | i

4. Aggregate Nominal Amount:

(i) Serics: [ ]
(i) Tranche: [ i
5. (i) Issue Price of Tranche: [ ] percent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount [plus accrued
interest from [insert date]] {in the case of fungible issues only, if
applicable )
(i) Net Procecds: [ ]

{ Required only for listed issues)

6.  Specified Denominations: [ 1"

Note:
(1) If the Notes must be redesmed befare the first anniversary of their date of issue, the minimum denemination must be £100.000 or
i1s equivalent in any other currency.
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10.

11.

14.

15.

(1) Issue Date:

( ]

(iiy Intcrest Cormmencement Date; | ]

Maturity Date:

Intercst Basis:

Redemption/Payment Basis:

Change of Interest Basis or
Redemption/Payment Basis:

Put/Call Options:

{a) Status of the Notes:

(b) [Date approval by Committlee
of the Board of Directors for
issuance ol Notes obtained;

Listing:

Method of distribution:

[Fixed rate - specify datel
Floating rate - Interest Payment Date falling in or nearest to
[specify month and year]}

[[ ]per cent. I'ixed Rate]

({LIBOR/EURIBOR] +/- [ ] per cent. Floating Rate]
[Zero Coupon]

[Index Linked Interest]

[Dual Currency Interest]

[specify other)

(further particulars specified below)

[Redemption at par]

[Index Linked Redemption)]
[Dual Currency Redemption)]
[Partly Paid]

[Instalment]

[specify other]

[Specify details of any provision for change of Notes inlo
another Interest Basis or Redemption! Payiment Busis)
[Investor Put}

[Issuer Call)

[(further particulars specified below)]

Senior

[ ]
[London/ specify other/None}

[Syndicated/Non-syndicated)]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

16.

Fixed Rate Note Provisions

(1)  Rate(s) of Interest:

(i) Interest Payment Date(s):

(i) Fixed Coupon Amouni(s):

(iv) Broken Amount(s):

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

{ If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[ ] per cent. per annum [payable [annually/semi-
annually/quarterly] in arrear]

{If payable other than annually, consider amending Condition 4)

[ ]in each year up to and including the Maturity
Date/[specify other)

( NB: This will need to be amended in the case of long or shori
coUpons )

[ | per [ ] in nominal amount

[Insert particulars of any initial or final broken interest amounts
which do not correspond with the Fixed Coupon Amount)
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(v) Day Count Fraction:

(vi) Determination Date(s):

(vil} Other terms relating {o the
method of calculating interest
for Fixed Rate Notes:

17. TFloating Rate Note Provisions

(i)  Specified Period(s)/Specified
Interest Payment Dates:

(ii} Business Day Convention:

(iii) Additional Business Centre(s):

(iv) Manner in which the Rate
of Interest and Interest
Amount is to be determined:

{v) Party responsible for
caleulating the Rate of Interest
and Interest Amount
(if not the Agent):

{vi) Screen Rate Determination:

Reference Rate:

Interest Determination
Date(s):

Relevant Screen Page:

(vit} ISDA Determination:

Floating Rate Option:

[30/360 or Actual/Actual (1SMA) or specify other]

[ ] in each year

[Fnsert regular interest payment dafes, ignoring issue date or
maturity date in the case of a long or short first or last coupon.
NB: This will need to be amended in the case of regulay interest
payment dates which are not of equal duration.

NB: Only refevant where Day Count Fraction is Aciuall Actual
(ISMA)]

[None/Give details]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
{If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph )

[ ]

[Fleating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/[specify other]}

[ ]

[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination/specify other]

[ ]

[ ]
{Either LIBOR, EURIBOR or other, although additional

information is required if other - including fallback provisions in
the Agency Agreement)

( ]

{Second London business day prior to the start of each Interest
Period if LIBOR {other than Sterling or euro LIBOR), first duy
of each Interest Period if Sterling LIBOR and the second day on
which the TARGET System is open prior fo the start of each
Interest Period if EURIBOR or euro LIBOR)

[ ]
(it the case of EURIBOR, if not Telerate Page 248 ensure il is a

page which shows a composite rate or amend the fallback
provisions appropriately)




-— Designated Maturity: [ ]

Reset Date: I ]
{viil) Margin{s): [+/-)[ ] per cent. per annum
{(ix}) Minimum Rate of Interest: [ ] per cent. per annum
(x) Maxiunum Rate of Interest: [ ] per cent. per annum
{xi} Day Count Fraction: [Actual/365

Actual/365 (Fixed)

Actual/365 (Sterling)

Actual/360

304360

30E/360

Other)

(See Condition 4 for allernalives)

(xii) Fall back provisions, [ ]
rounding provisions and any
other terms relating to the
method of calculating interest
on Floating Rate Notes. if
different from those set out
in the Conditions:

Zero Coupon Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]
{If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragiaph)

(i} Accrual Yield: [ ] per cenl. per annum

(i1} Relercnece Price; [ ]

(i} Any other formula/basis of

determining amount payable: | ]

(iv} Day Count Fraction in [Conditions 6(1)(iit) and 6(k) apply/specify other]
relation to Early Redemption ¢ Consider applicable day count fraction if not U.S.
Amounts and late payment:  dollar denominated)

Index Linked Interest Note Provisions[Applicable/Not Applicable]
{If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this

paragraph)
(1) Index/Formula: lgive or annex details]
(i1} Calculation Agent responsible [ ]
for calculating the interest due:
(i1} Provisions for determining [ ]
Coupon where calculation by
reference to Index and/or
Formula is impossible or
impracticable:
{iv) Specified Period(s)/Specified [ ]
Interest Payment Dates:
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(v} Business Day Convention:

(vi) Additional Business Centre(s):
(vil}) Minimum Rate of Interest:
(vill) Maximum Rate of Interest:
(ix) Day Count Fraction:

20. Dual Carrency Interest Note

Provisions

Rate of Exchange/method
of calculating Rate of
Exchange:

(1)

Calculation Agent, il any,
responsible for calculating
the interest payable:

{it)

Provisions applicable
where calculation by
reference to Rate of
Exchange impossible or
impracticable:

(iif)

Person al whose option
Specified Currency(ics}
isfare payable:

(iv)

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Conventlion/specify other]

£ ]
[ ] per cent. per annum
[ ] per cent. per annum
{ ]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[give delails)

[ ]
[ ]
[ ]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION

20. Issuer Call

(1)  Oplional Redemption Date(s):

(ii} Optional Redemption
Amounts of cach Note and
method, il any, of calculation
of such amount(s):

(iti) Il redecmable in part:

(1) Minimum Redemplion
Amount:

(2) Maximum Redemplion
Amount:

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[ ]

[ | per Note of | 1 Specified
Denomination

[ ]

[ ]




23.

24.

(iv} Notice period (if other than
as set out in the Conditions):

Investor Put

(i)  Optional Redemption Date(s):

(i) Notice period (if other than
as set out i the Conditions):

(ii) Optional Redemption
Amouni(s) of cach Note and
method, if any, of calculation

of such amount(s):

Final Redemption Amount of
cach Nofte:

Early Redemption Amount of
each Note payable on redemption
for taxation reasons or on event
ol default and/or the method of
calculating the same (i required
or if different from that set out in
Condition 6()):

[ J

(N.B. If setting notice periods which are different to those
provided in the Conditions, the Issuer is advised to consider the
practicalities of distribution of information through
intermediaries, for example, clearing systems and custodians, as
well as any other notice requirements which may apply, for
example, as between the Issuer and the Agent or Trustee)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]
(This ifem relates 1o Condition 6{d). If not applicable, deiete the
remaining sub-paragraphs of this paragraph)

[ )
[ ]

(N.B. If setting notice periods which are different to these
provided in the Conditions, the Issuer is advised to consider the
practicalities of distribution of information through
intermediaries, for example, clearing systems and custodians, as
well as any other notice requirements which may apply, for
examiple, as between the Issuer and the Agent or Trustee)

[ ] per Note of | ] Specified
Denomination

{ This item relates to Condition 6(d) (if applicable )} and, where
LPN Is the Issuer, to Condition 6{¢))

[ ] per Note of [ ] [Specitied
Denomination/specify other/see Appendix]

[ ]

GENERAL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

235,

26.

Form of Notes:

Additional Financial Centre(s)
or other special provisions relating
to Payment Dates:

[Temporary Giobal Note exchangeable for a Permanent Global
Note which is exchangeable for Definitive Notes Jon 60 days’
notice given at any time/only upon an Exchange Event]]

[Temporary Global Note exchangeable for Definitive Notes on
and after the Exchange Date]

[Permanent Global Note exchangeable for Definitive Notes [on
60 days’ notice given at any timefonly upon an Exchange
Event]]

[Not Applicable/give details)

(Note that this item relutes to the date and place of payment and
not Interest Period end dates to which items 17(iii) and 19{vi)
relate)
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27. Talons for future Coupons or
Receipts to be attached to
Definitive Notes (and dates on
which such Talons mature):

28, Details relating to Partly Paid
Notes: amount of each payment
comprising the Issue Price and
date on which each payment is
to be made and consequences
of failure to pay. including any
right of the Issuer to forfeit the
Notes and interest due on late
payment:

29. Details relating to [nstalment
Notes:

(1} Instalment Amount(s):
(i) Instalment Date(s):

30. Redenomination applicable:

31.  Other terms or special conditions:

DISTRIBUTION

32. (i) If syndicated, names of
Managers:

(i1 Stabilising Manager (if any):
33, If non-syndicated. name of

relevant Dealer:

34. Whether TEFRA D or TEFRA C
rules applicable or TEFRA rules
not applicable:

35, Additional selling restrictions:

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

36.  Any clearing systemis) other
than Euroclear or Clearstream.
Luxembourg and the relevant
identification number(s):

37. Delivery:

38. Additional Paying Agent(s)
(if any):

[Yes/No. If yes, give details)

[Not Applicable/give details. NB: new forms of Global Note may
be required for Partly Paid issies.)

[Not Applicable/give details]

[Not Applicable/give details]

Redenomination [not] applicable

{If Redenomination is applicable, specify the applicable Day
‘ount Fraction and any provisions necessary to deal with floating

rate interest calcnlation (including alternative reference rates))

{Not Applicable/give details)

[Not Applicable/give names]

[Not Applicable/give narme)

[TEFRA DITEFRA C/TEFRA not applicable]

[Not Applicable/give details)

[Not Applicable/give name( s} and number(s )]

Delivery [against/free of] payment

[ ]
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ISIN: [ ]
Common Code: [ 1

( ]

[LISTING APPLICATION

This Pricing Supplement comprises the final terms required to list the issuc of Notes described herein
pursuant to the €4.000.000.000 Euro Medium Term Note Programme of EDF Encrgy ple, EDF Encrgy
Networks (LPN) ple, EDF Encrgy Networks (EPN) ple and EDF Energy Networks (SPN) ple.]

RESPONSIBILITY

The Tssuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Pricing Supplement.
Signed on behalf of the Issuer:
By e e

Duly authorised

If the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies any modification to the Terms and Conditions of the Nodes
as described herein. it is envisaged that. to the extent that such modification relates only to Conditions 1, 4,
3, 6 (except Condition 6(b)), 10, 12, 13 (insofar as such Notes are not listed or admitted to trade on any stock
exchange) or 17, they will not necessitate the preparation of supplementary Listing Particulars. 1! the Terms
and Conditions of the Notes of any Series are to be modified in any other respect, supplementary Listing
Particulars will be prepared, if appropriate.




TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES

The following are the terms and conditions of the Notes wiich will be incorporated by reference into euch Global
Note {as defined below) and each definitive Note, in the lutter case only if’ permitted by the relevant stock
exchange or other relevant authority (if any } and agreed by the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer at the
time of issue but, if not so permitted and agreed, such definitive Note will have endorsed thereon or attached
thereto these terms and conditions. The applicable Pricing Supplement in relation to any Tranche of Notes may
specify other terms and conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or lo the extent inconsistent with the
Sollowing terms and conditions, replace or modify the following terms and conditions for the purpose of such
Notes. The applicable Pricing Supplement (or the relevant provisions thereof) will be endorsed upon, or
altached to, each Global Note and definitive Note. Reference should be made to “Form of the Notes” for a
description of the content of Pricing Supplements which will specify which of such terms are to apply in relation
Lo the relevant Nofes.

Provisions in square brackets preceded by an asterisk are applicable only to Notes issued by EDF Energy
ple. Provisions in square brackets preceded by two asterisks are apphicable oaly to Notes issued by EDF
Energy Networks (LPN) plc (“LPN7). EDF Encrgy Nctworks (EPN) ple (“EPN”) and EDF Energy
Networks (SPN) ple (“SPN7).

This Note is one of a Scrics (as defined below) of Notes issucd by the Issuer {the “Issuer™) named in the
appticable Pricing Supplement (as defined below) constituted by an amended and restated trust deed (such
trust deed as modified and/or supplemented and/or restated from time to time, the “7Trust Deed”) dated
24th May, 2004 made between LPN, EPN, SPN. EDF Eneirgy plc and Deutsche Trustee Company Limited
(the “ Trastee” . which expression shall include any successor as Trustee).

References herein to the “Nefes™ shall be references to the Notes of this Series and shall mean:

(i)  in relation to any Noles represented by a global Note (a “Global Note™), units of the lowest Specified
Denomination in the Specified Currency:

(i) any Global Note: and
(i) any definitive Notes issued in exchange for a Global Note,

The Notes, the Receipts (as defined below) and the Coupons (as defined below) have the benefit of an agency
agrecment (such agency agreement as amended and/or supplemented and/or restated from time to time, the
“Agency Agreement”) dated 24th May, 2004 and made between LPN, EPN, SPN. EDF Energy ple, the
Trustec and Deutsche Bank AG London as issuing and principal paying agent and agent bank (the “Agent”,
which expression shall include any successor agent) and the other paying agents named therein (together.
unless the context otherwise requires. with the Agent, the “Paying Agents”. which expression shall include
any additional or successor paying agents).

Interest beuring delinitive Notes have interest coupons (“Coupons™) and. if indicated in the applicable
Pricing Supplement, talons for farther Coupons (“Talons™) attached on issue. Any reference herein to
Coupons or coupons shall, unless the context otherwise requires, be deemed to include a reference to Talons
or lalons. Definitive Noles repayable in instalments have receipts (“Receipts”) lor the payment of the
instalments of principal (other than the final instalment) attached on issuc. Global Notes do not have
Receipts. Coupons or Talons attached on issue.

The Pricing Supplement for this Note (or the relevant provisions thereof) is attached to or endorsed on this
Note and supplements these terms and conditions (these “Conditions”) and may specify other terms and
conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with these Conditions, replace
or modify these Conditions for the purposes of this Note. References to the “applicable Pricing Supplement”
are to the Pricing Supplement {or the relevant provisions thereof) attached to or endorsed on this Nole.

The Trustce acts for the benefit of the holders for the time being of the Notes (the “Noteholders”, which
expression shall, in relation to any Notes represented by a Global Note, be construed as provided below),
the holders of the Receipts (the “Receiptholders”) and the holders of the Coupons (the “Couponholders™,
which expresston shall, unless the context otherwise requires. include the holders of the Talens). in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.

As used herein, “Tranche” means Notes which are identical in all respects (including as to listing) and
“Series” means a Tranche of Notes together with any further Tranche or Tranches of Notes which are
(i) expressed to be consolidated and form a single series and (i) identical in all respects (including as to
listing) except for their respective Aggregate Nominal Amounts, Issue Dates. Interest Commencement Dates
andfor Issue Prices.
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Copies of the Trust Deed and the Agency Agreement are available for inspection during normal business
hours at the registered office for the time being of the Trustee being {at 24th May, 2004) at Winchester
House, 1 Great Winchester Street, London ECZN 2DB and at the specified office of each of the Paying
Agents. Copies of the applicable Pricing Supplement are obtainable during normal business hours at the
specified office of each of the Paying Agents save that, if this Note is an unlisted Note of any Scrics, the
applicable Pricing Supplement will only be oblainable by a Notcholder holding one or more unlisted Notes
of that Series and such Noteholder must produce evidence satisfactory to the Issuer and the relevant Paying
Agent as to its holding of such Notes and identily. The Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the
Couponholders are deemed Lo have notice of, and are entitled to the benefit of, all the provisions of the Trust
Deed, the Agency Agreement and the applicable Pricing Supplement which are applicable to them. The
statements in these Conditions include summaries of, and are subject to, the detailed provisions of the Trust
Dced.

Words and expressions defined in the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement or used in the applicable Pricing
Supplement shall have the same micanings where used in these Conditions unless the context otherwise
requires or unless otherwise stated and provided that. in the event of inconsistency between the Trust Deed
and the Agency Agreement, the Trust Deed will prevail and, in the event of inconsistency between the Trust
Deed or the Agency Agreement and the applicable Pricing Supplement, the applicable Pricing Supplement
wil] prevail.

1. FORM, DENOMINATION AND TITLE

The Notes are in bearer form and, in the case of definitive Notes, serially numbered. in the Specified
Currency and the Specified Denomination(s). Notes of one Specified Denomination may not be
exchanged for Notes of another Specified Denomination.

This Note may be a Fixed Rate Note, a Floating Rate Nole, a Zero Coupon Note, an Index Linked
Interest Note, a Dual Currency Interest Note or a combination of any of the foregoing, depending
upon the Interest Basis shown in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

This Nete may be an Index Linked Redemption Note. an Instalment Note, a Dual Currency
Redemption Note, a Partly Paid Note or a combination of any of the foregoing, depending upon the
Redemption/Payment Basis shown in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Definitive Notes are issucd with Coupons and, il applicable, a Talon attached. unless they are Zero
Coupon Notes in which case reflerences to Coupons, Talons and Couponholders in these Conditions
are not applicable.

Subject as set out below, title to the Notes. Receipts and Coupons will pass by delivery. The Issuer, the
Paying Agents and the Trustee will (except as otherwise required by law} decm and treat the bearer of
any Note, Receipt or Coupon as ihe absolute owner thercof (whether or not overdue and
notwithstanding any notice of ownership or writing thereon or notice of any previous loss or theft
thereof) for all purposes but, in the case of any Global Note, without prejudice to the provisions set
out in the next succeeding paragraph.

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Global Note held on behalt’ of Euroclear Bank
S.A/N.V. as operator of the Euroclear System (“Ewrpclear™) and/or Clearstream Banking, société
anonyme (“Clearstream, Luxembourg™). cach person (other than Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg) who is for the time being shown in the records of Euroclear or of Clearstream,
Luxembourg as the holder of a particular nominal amount of such Notes (in which regard any
certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or Clearstream. Luxembourg as to the nominal
amount of such Notes standing to the account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all
purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall be treated by the lssuer, the Paying Agents and the
Trustee as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes [or all purposes other than with respect
to the payment of principal or interest on such nominal amount of such Noies, for which purpose the
bearer of the relevant Global Note shalt be treated by the Issuer, any Paying Agent and the Trustee as
the helder of such nominal amount of such Notes in accordance with and subject Lo the terms of the
relevant Global Note and the expressions “Neteholder™ and “holder of Nofes” and related expressions
shall be construed accordingly. In determining whether a particular person 1s entitled 1o a particular
nominal amount of Notes as aforesaid. the Trustec may rely on such cvidence and/or information
and/or certification as it shall, in its absolute discretion, think fit and, il it does so rely, such evidence
and/or information and/or certification shall. in the absence of manifest or proven error, be conclusive
and binding on all concerned.
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Notes which are represented by a Global Note will be transferable only in accordance with the rules
and procedures for the time being of Furoclear and Clearstream. Luxembourg, as the case may be.

References 1o Euroclear and/or Clearstream. Luxembourg shall, whenever the context so permits, be
deemed to include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing system specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement or as may otheswise be approved by the Tssuer, the Agent and the
Trustee.

STATUS OF THE NOTES

The Notes and any relative Receipts and Coupons are direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and
(subject to the provisions of Condition 3) unsecured obligations of the [ssuer and rank pari passu
among themselves and (save for certain obligations required to be preferred by law) equally with all
other unsccured obligations (other than subordinated obligations, if any) of the Issuer, from time to
time outstanding.

NEGATIVE PLEDGE

So long as any of the Noles remains outstanding (as defined in the Trust Deed) the Issuer will*[, and
will procure that cach of its Principal Subsidiarics {(as defined in Condition 9(c)) will,] ensure that no
Relevant Indebtedness (as defined below) of the Issuer*[or any Principal Subsidiary] **[or any
Relevant Subsidiary (as defined in Condition 6(e)}(iv){g))] or of any other person and no guarantee by
the Issuer*[or any Principal Subsidiary] **[or any Relevant Subsidiary} of any Relevant Indebtedness
of any person will be secured by a mortgage. charge, lien, pledge or other security interest (each a
“Security Fiterest™) upon. or with respect to, any of the present or future business, undertaking, assets
or revenues {including any uncalled capital) of the Issuer*[or any Principal Subsidiary] **[or any
Relevant Subsidiary] unless the Issuer shall. before or at the same time as the creation of the Security
Interest, take any and all action necessary to ensure that:

(a) all amounts payable by it under the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons and the Trust Deed are
sccurcd cqually and rateably with the Relevant Indebtedness or guarantee, as the case may be, by
the Security Interest to the satisfaction of the Trustee: or

{b) such other Security Interest or guarantee or other arrangement {whether or not including the
giving of a Security Interest} is provided in respect of all amounts payable by the Issuer under the
Notes. the Receipts, the Coupons and the Trust Deed either (i) as the Trustee shall in its absolute
discretion deern not materially less bencficial to the interests of the Notcholders or (it} as shall be
approved by an Extraordinary Resolution (as defined in the Trust Deed) of the Noteholders,

save that the Tssuer*[or any Principal Subsidiary] **{or any Relevant Subsidiary] may create or have
outstanding a Sccurity Interest in respect of any Relevant Indebtedness and/or any guarantees given
by the Issuer*[or any Principal Subsidiary] #**[or any Relevant Subsidiary] in respect of any Relevant
Indebtedness of any person {(without the obligation to provide a Security Interest or guarantee or other
arrangement in respect of the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons and the Trust Deed as aforesaid) where
{1) such Relevant Indebtedness has an initial maturity of not less than 15 years and is of a maximum
aggregate amount outstanding at any time not exceeding the greater of £200.000.000 and 20 per cent.
of the Capital and Reserves {as defined below) or (2) such Security Interest is provided i respect of a
company becoming a Subsidiary of the Issuer after the date on which agreement is reached to issue the
first Tranche of the Notes and where such Security Interest cxisted at the time that company becomes
a Subsidiary (as defined below) of the Issuer (provided that such Security Interest was not created in
contemplation of such acquisition and the principal amount secured at the time of such acquisition is
not subsequently increased).

For the purposes of these Conditions:
“Cuapital and Reserves” means the aggregate of:
(i) thc amount paid up or credited as paid up on the share capital of the Issuer; and

(it) the total of the capital, revaluation and revenue reserves of the Group (as defined below).
including any share premium account, capital redemption reserve and credit balance on the profit
and loss account, but excluding sums sct aside for taxation and amounts attributable to outside
sharcholders in Subsidiary Undertakings (as defined below) and deducting any debit balance on
the profit and loss account,
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all as shown in the then latest audited consolidated balance sheet and profit and loss account of the
Group prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention {as modified by the revaluation of
certain fixed assets) for the purposes of the Companies Act 1985, but adjusted as may be necessary in
respect of any variation in the paid up share capital or share premium account of the Issuer since the
date of that balance sheet and further adjusted as may be necessary to reflect any change since the date
of that balance sheet in the Subsidiary Undertakings comprising the Group and/or as the Auditors (as
defined in the Trust Deed) may consider appropriate.

A report by the Auditors as to the amount of the Capital and Reserves at any given time shall. in the
absence of manifest or proven error, be conclusive and binding on all parties:

“Group”™ mecans the Issuer and its Subsidiary Undertakings and “member of the Group” shall be
construed accordingly;

“Relevant Indebredness” means any present or future indebtedness (whether being principal, premium.
interest or other amounts) in the form of or represented by bonds. notes, debeniures, debenture stock,
loan stock or other securities, whether issued for cash or in whole or in part for a consideration other
than cash, and which, with the agreement of the person issuing the same, are quoted, listed or
ordinarily dealt in on any stock exchange or recognised over-the-counter or other securilies market, but
shall in any event not include Non-recourse Indebledness (as deflined in Condition 9(¢)):

“Subsidiary Undertaking” shall have the meaning given to it by section 258 of the Companies Act 1985
{but, in relation to the Issuer, shall exclude any undertaking (as defined in the Companies Act 1983)
whose accounts are not included in the then latest published audited consolidated accounts of the
{ssuer, or (in the case of an undertaking which has first become a subsidiary undertaking of a member
of the Group since the date as at which any such audited accounts were prepared) would not have been
so included or consolidated if it had become so on or before that date);

“Subsidiary” means a subsidiary within the meaning of section 736 of the Companies Act 1985; and

any reference to an obligation being guaranteed shall include a reference to an indemnity being given
in respect of the obligation.

The Trust Deed provides that the Trustee may rely on certificates or reports from the Auditors in
accordance wilh the provisions of the Trust Deed notwithstanding that any such certificate or report
and/or any engagement letter or other document entered into by the Trustee and the Auditors in
connection therewith contains any monetary or other limit on the liability of the Auditors in respect
thercol.

INTEREST
(a) Interest on Fixed Rate Notes

Each Fixed Rate Note bears interest on its outstanding nominal amount (or, il it is a Partly Paid
Nolte, the amount paid up) from (and including) the Interest Commencement Date at the rate(s)
per annum equal to the Rate(s) of Interest. Interest will be payable in arrear on the Interest
Payment Date(s) in cach year up to (and including} the Maturity Date.

Except as provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the amount of interest payable on cach
Interest Payment Date in respect of the Fixed Interest Period ending on (but excluding) such date
will amount to the Fixed Coupon Amount. Payments of interest on any Interest Payment Date
will. if’ so specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, amount to the Broken Amount so
specificd.

As used in these Conditions, “Fixed Interest Peviod” means the period from (and inchuding) an
Interest Payment Date (or the Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first)
Interest Payment Date.

If interest is required to be calculated for a period other than a Fixed Interest Period. such interest
shall be calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to cach Specificd Denomination, multiplying
such sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the resuliant figure to the nearest
sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency. half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or
otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention.

“Day Count Fraction” means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest in accordance
with this Condition 4(a):

(1) if *Actual/Actual (ISMA)” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement:
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(i1)

(b)Y [Jmerest on Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked Interest Noles

{1)

{A) in the case of Notes where the number of days in the relevant period from (and
including) the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none. the Interest
Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payment date (the “Accrual
Peried”) 15 equal to or shorter than the Determination Period during which the
Accrual Period ends. the number of days in such Accrual Period divided by the
product of (1) the number of days in such Determination Peried and (2) the number
of Determination Dates (as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement) that would
occur in one calendar year: of

(B} in the casc of Notes where the Accrual Period is longer than the Determination Period
during which the Accrual Period ends, the sum of:

(1) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the Determination Period
in which the Accrual Period begins divided by the product of (x) the number of
days in such Determination Period and (y) the number of Determination Dales
that would occur in one calendar year: and

(2) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the next Determination
Period divided by the product of (x) the number of days in such Determination
Period and (y) the number of Determination Dates that would occur in one
calendar year: and

if *30/360” 1s specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the number of days in the
period from {and including) the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest
Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payment date (such number of days
being calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months) divided by 360.

For the purposes of these Conditions:

“Determination Period” means each period from (and including) a Determination Date to
(but excluding) the next Determination Date (including, where either the Interest
Commencement Date or the final Interest Payment Date is not a Determination Date, the
period commencing on the first Determination Date prior to. and ending on the first
Determination Date falling after, such date), and

“sub-unit” means. with respect to any currency other than curo, the lowest amount of such
currency that is available as legal tender in the country of such currency and, with respect
Lo euro, one cent.

Interest Payment Dates

Each Floating Rate Note and Index Linked Interest Note bears interest on its outstanding
nomtnal amount (or, if it is a Partly Paid Note, the amount paid vp) Itom (and including)
the Interest Commencement Date and such interest will be payable in arrear on either:

(A} the Specified Interest Payment Date(s) in each year specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement; or

(B) if no Specified Interest Payment Date(s) isfare specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, each date (each such date, together with each Specilied Interest Payment
Date, an “Interest Payment Date”) which falls the number of months or other period
specified as the Specified Period in the applicable Pricing Supplement after the preceding
Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the first Interest Payment Date, after the Interest
Comtencement Date.

Such interest will be payable in respeet of cach Interest Period {which expression shall. in
these Conditions. mean the period from (and including) an Interest Payment Date (or the
Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the next {or first) Interest Payment Date).

If a Business Day Convention is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement and (x) if

there is no numerically corresponding day in the calendar month in which an Interest

Payment Date should occur or (y) if any Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a

day which is not a Business Day, then. if the Business Day Convention specified is:

{1} in any case where Specified Periods are specificd in accordance with Condition
4(b)(1XB) above, the Floating Rate Convention, such Interest Payment Date (i} in the
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(i)

(2)

3)

(4)

case of (x) above, shall be the last day that is a Business Day in the relevant month and
the provisions of {B) below shall apply mutatis mutandis or (ii) in the case of (y) above,
shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby tall
into the next calendar month. in which event {A) such Interest Payment Date shall be
brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day and (B) cach subsequent
Interest Payment Datc shall be the last Business Day in the month which falls the
Specified Period after the preceding applicable Interest Payment Date occurred: or

the Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be
postponed to the next day which 1s a Business Day: or

the Modified Following Business Day Convention. such Interest Payment Date shall
be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into
the next calendar month, in which event such Interest Payment Date shall be brought
forward to the immediately preceding Business Day: or

the Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be brought
forward to the immediately preceding Business Day.

For the purposes of these Conditions. “Business Day” means a day which is both:

(A) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets scttle payments and

(B)

are open for general business (including dealing in forcign exchange and foreign
currency deposits) in London and any Additional Business Centre specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement; and

either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day
on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are
open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency
deposits) in the principal financial centre of the country ol the relevant Specified
Currency (if other than London and any Additional Business Centre and which, if the
Specified Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars, shall be Melbourne
and Weltington. respectively) or (2) in relation to any sum payable in curo. a day on
which the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer
(TARGET) System (the “TARGET System™) is open.

Raie of terest

The Rate of Interest payable from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes and Index
Linked Interest Notes will be determined inn the manner specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement.

(A} ISDA Determination for Floating Rate Noles

Where ISDA Determination is specilied in the applicable Pricing Supplement as the
manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each
Interest Period will be the relevant ISDA Rate plus or minus {(as indicated in the
applicable Pricing Supplement) the Margin (i any). For the purposes of this
sub-paragraph (A), “JSDA Rate” for an Interest Period means a rate equal to the
Fioating Rate that would be determined by the Agent under an interest rate swap
transaction if the Agent were acting as Calculation Agent for that swap transaction
under the terms of an agreement incorporating the 2000 ISDA Definitions, as
published by the International Swaps and Derivalives Association, Inc. and as
amended and updated as at the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes (the
“1SDA Definitions”) and under which:

(1) the Floating Rate Option is as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement;
{2) the Designated Maturity is a period specified m the applicable Pricing
Supplement; and

{3) the relevant Reset Date is either (i) i’ the applicable Floating Rate Option is
based on the London inter-bank offered rate (“LIBOR™) or on the Euro-zone
inter-bank offered rate ("EURIBOR”). the first day of that Interest Period or (ii)
in any other case, as specilied in the applicable Pricing Supplement.
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For the purposes of this sub-paragraph (A). “Floating Rate”. “Calculation Agent”,
“Floating Rate Option”. “ Designated Marurvity” and “ Reset Date” have the meanings given
to those terms in the ISDA Definitions.

(B) Screen Rate Determination for Floating Rate Notes

Where Screen Rale Determination is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as
the manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for
each Interest Pertod will, subject as provided below. be either:

{1) the offered quotation; or

{2) the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place. with
0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the offered quotations,

{expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference Rate which appears or
appear, as the case may be, on the Relevant Screen Page as at 11.00 a.m. (London time,
in the case of LIBOR, or Brussels time, in the case of EURIBOR) on the Interest
Determination Date in question plus or minus (as indicated in the applicable Pricing
Supplement) the Margin (if’ any), all as determined by the Agent. If five or more of
such offered quotations are available on the Relevant Screen Page, the highest (or, if
therce 18 more than one such highest quotation. one only of such quotations) and the
lowest {or, if there is more than one such lowest quotation, one only of such
quotations) shall be disregarded by the Agent for the purpose of determining the
arithmetic mean (rounded as provided above) of such offered quotations.

The Agency Agreement contains provisions for determining the Rate of Interest in the
event that the Relevant Screen Page is not available or if, in the case of (1) above, no
such offered quotation appears or. in the case of (2) above, fewer than three such
offered quotations appear, in each case as at the time specified in the preceding
paragraph.

If the Reference Rale from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes 1s specified
in the applicable Pricing Supplement as being other than LIBOR or EURIBOR, the
Rate of Interest in respect of such Notes will be determined as provided in the
applicable Pricing Supplement.

(iit) Minimuon Rate of Interest andlor Maximum Rate of Interest

If the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies a Minimum Rate of Interest for any Interest
Period, then. in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period
determined in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (i1} above is less than such
Minimum Rate of Interest, the Rale of Interest for such Interest Period shall be such
Minimum Rate of Interest.

If the applicable Pricing Supplement specifies a Maximum Rate of Interest for any Interest
Period, then. in the event that the Ratc of Interest in respect of such Interest Period
determined in accordance with the provisions of paragraph (ii) above is greater than such
Maximum Rate of Interest, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be such
Maximum Rate ol Interest.

Determination of Rate of Interest and calculation of Interest Amounts

The Agent. in the case of Floating Rate Notes, and the Calculation Agent, in the case of
Index Linked Interest Notes, will at or as soon as practicable after each time at which the
Rate of Interest is to be determined. determine the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest
Period. In the case of Index Linked Interest Notes, the Calculation Agent will notify the
Agent of the Rate of Inierest for the relevant Interest Period as soon as practicable after
determining the same.

The Agent will calculate the amount of interest (the “Interest Amounf’) payable on the
Floaling Rate Notes or Index Linked Interest Notes in respect of each Specified
Denomination for the relevant Interest Period. Each Interest Amount shall be calculated by
applying the Rate of Interest to each Specified Denomination, multiplying such sum by the
applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of
the relevant Specificd Currency, half of any such sub-umit being rounded upwards or
otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention.
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()

{vi)

“Day Count Fraction” means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest in
accordance with this Condition 4(b):

{(A) if “Actual/365” or “Actual/Actual” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement,
the actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of
that Interest Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (x) the actual number of days in that
portion of the Interest Period falling in a Ieap year divided by 366 and (y) the actual
number of days in that portion of the Inlerest Period falling in a non-leap year divided
by 365);

(B) if “Actual/365 (Fixed)” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. the actual
number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365;

(C) if “Actual/365 (Sterling)” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. the actual
number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365 or. in the case of an Interest
Payment Date falling in a leap year, 366;

(D) 1f “Actual/360™ is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual number of
days n the Interest Period divided by 360;

(E) if “30/3607. “360/360” or “Bond Basis” is specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement, the number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360 (the number of
days to be caiculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months (uniess
{x) the last day of the Interest Period is the 31st day of a month but the first day of the
Interest Period is a day other than the 30th or 31st day of a month, in which case the
month that includes that last day shall not be considered to be shortened to a 30-day
month, or (y) the last day of the Interest Period is the last day of the month of
February. in which case the month of February shall not be considered to be
lengthened to a 30-day month)); and

(F) if *30E/360” or “Eurcbond Basis” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.
the number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360 (the number of days (o be
calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months, without regard
to the datce of the first day or last day of the Interest Period unless, in the case of the
final Interest Period, the Maturity Date is the last day of the month of February. in
which casc the month of February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-
day month).

Notification of Rate of Interest and Interest Amounts

The Agent will cause the Rate of Interest and each Interest Amount for cach Interest Period
and the relevant Interest Payment Date to be notified to the Issuer, the Trustec and any stock
exchange or other relevant authority on which the relevant Floating Rate Notes or Index
Linked Interest Notes are for the time being listed or by which the Notes have been admitted
to trading and notice thereof to be published in accordance with Condition 13 as soon as
possible after their determination but in no event later than the fourth London Business
Day thereafter. Each Interest Amount and Interest Payment Dale so notified may
subsequently be amended (or appropriate alternative arrangements made by way of
adjustment) without prior notice in the event of an extension or shortening of the Interest
Period. Any such amendment will be promptly notified to each stock cxchange or other
relevant authority on which the relevant Floating Rate Notes or Index Linked Interest
Nolcs arc for the time being listed or by which the Notes have been admitied to trading and
to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 13. For the purposes of this paragraph.,
the expression “Londoen Business Day” means a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on
which banks and foreign exchange markets are open for general business in London.

Determination or Calculation by Trustee

If for any reason at any relevant time the Agent or, as the case may be, the Calculation
Agent defaulls in its obligation to determine the Rate of Interesi or the Agent defaults in its
obligation 1o calculate any Interest Amount in accordance with sub-paragraph (i1)(A) or (B)
above or as otherwise specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, as the case may be, and
in each case 11 accordance with paragraph (iv) above. the Trustee shall determine the Rale
of Interest at such rate as, in its absolute discretion (having such regard as it shall think fit
to the foregoing provisions of this Condition, but subject always to any Minimum Rate of
Interest or Maximum Rate of Interest specified in the apphicable Pricing Supplement). it
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shall deem fair and reasonable in all the circumstances or. as the case may be, the Trustee
shall calculate the Interest Amount(s) in such manner as it shall deem fair and reasonable
in all the circumstances and each such determination or calculation shall be deemned (o have
been made by the Agent or the Calculation Agent. as applicable,

{vil) Certificates to be final

All certificates, communications. opinions, determinations. calculations. quotations and
decisions given, expressed. made or obtained for the purposes of the provisions of this
Condition 4(b). whether by the Agent or, if applicable. the Calculation Agent or the Trustce.
shall (in the absence of willul default, bad faith or manifest error) be binding on the Issuer.
the Agent, the Calculation Agent (if applicable), the other Paying Agents and all
Noteholders, Receiptholders and Couponholders and (in the absence as aforesaid) no
liability to the Issuer, the Notcholders, the Receiptholders or the Couponhelders shall
attach to the Agent or. if applicable, the Calculation Agent or the Trustee in connection with
the exercise or non-exercise by it of its powers, duties and discretions pursuant 1o such

provisions.
{cy Interest on Dual Currency Interest Notes

The rate or amount of interest payable in respect of Dual Currency Interest Notes shall be

determined in the manner specilied in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

(d) Interest on Partly Paid Notes

In the case of Partly Paid Notes {other than Partly Paid Notes which are Zero Coupon Notes),

interest will accrue as aforesaid on the paid-up nominal amount of such Notes and otherwisc as

specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.
(¢) Accrual of interest

Each Note (or in the case of the redemption of part only of a Note, that part only of such Note)

will cease Lo bear interest (if any) from the date for its redemption unless, upon due presentation

thercof, payment of principal is improperly withheld or refused. In such cvent, interest will
continue to accrue as provided in the Trust Deed.

PAYMENTS

(a)y  Method of payment

Subjeet as provided below:

(i} payments in a Specified Currency other than eurc will be made by credit or transfer to an
account in the relevant Specified Currency (which, in the case of a payment in Japanese yen
to a non-resident of Japan. shall be a non-resident account) maintained by the payee with,
or, at the oplion of the payee, by a cheque in such Specified Currency drawn on, a bank in
the principal financial centre of the country of such Specified Currency (which, if the
Specified Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars, shall be Melbourne and
Wellington, respectively); and

(i) payments in curo will be made by credit or transfer to a euro account {or any other account
to which euro may be crediled or transferred) specified by the payee or, at the option of the
payee, by a euro cheque.

Payments will be subject in all cases 1o any {iscal or other laws and regulations applicable thereto

in the place of payment, but without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 7.

(by  Presentation of definitive Notes, Receipts and Coupons

Payments of principal in respect of definitive Notes will (subject as provided below) be made in
the manner provided in paragraph (a) above only against presentation and surrender (or, in the
case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of definitive Notes, and payments of interest
n respect of definitive Notes will {subject as provided below) be made as aforesaid only against
presentation and surrender (or in the case of part payment of any sum due. endorsement) of
Coupons, 1n each case at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside the United States (which
expression. as used herein, means the United States of America (including the States and the
District of Columbia, its territories, its possessions and other areas subject to 1ts jurisdiction)).
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(c)

(d)

Payments of instalments of principal (if any) in respect of definitive Notes. other than the final
instalment, will (subject as provided below) be made in the manner provided in paragraph (a)
above against presentation and surrender {or, in the case of part payment of any sum due,
endorsement) ol the relevant Receipt in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Payment of
the final instalment will be made in the manner provided in paragraph {a) above only against
presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due, endorsement) of the
relevant Note in accordance with the preceding paragraph. Fach Receipt must be presented for
payment of the relevant instalment together with the delinitive Note to which it appertains.
Receipts presenled without the definitive Note to which they appertain do not constitute valid
obligations of the Issuer. Upon the date on which any definitive Note becomes due and
repayable, unmatured Receipts (if any) relating thereto (whether or not attached) shall become
void and no payment shall be made in respect thereof.

Fixed Rate Notes in definitive form (other than Dual Currency Notes, Index Linked Notes or
Long Maturily Notes (as defined below)) should be presented for payment together with all
unmatured Coupons appertaining thercto (which expression shall for this purpose include
Coupons falling to be issued on exchange of matured Talons), failing which the amount of any
missing unmatured Coupon (or, in the case of payment not being made in full. the same
proportion of the amount of such missing unmatured Coupon as the sum so paid bears to the
sum due) will be deducted from the sum due for payment. Each amount of principal so deducted
will be paid in the manner mentioned above against surrender of the relative missing Coupon at
any time before the expiry of 10 years after the Relevant Date {as defined in Condition 7) in
respect of such principal (whether or not such Coupon would otherwise have become void under
Condition 8) or, if later, five years from the date on which such Coupon would otherwise have
become due, but in no event thercafter,

Upon any Fixed Rate Note in definitive form becoming due and repayable prior to its Maturity
Date, all unmatured Talons (if any)} appertaining thereto will become void and no further
Coupons will be issued in respect thereof.

Upon the date on which any Floating Rate Note. Dual Currency Note. Index Linked Note or
Long Maturity Note in definitive form becomes due and repayable. unmatured Coupons and
Talons (if any) relating thereto (whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment or,
as the case may be, cxchange for further Coupons shall be made in respect thercof. A “Long
Marurity Note” 1s a Fixed Rate Note (other than a Fixed Rate Note which on issue had a Talon
altached) whose nominal amount on issue is less than the aggregate interest payable thereon
provided that such Note shall cease to be a Long Maturity Note on the Interest Payment Date on
which the aggregate amount of interest remaining to be paid after that date is less than the
nominal amount of such Note.

If the due daie for redemption ol any definilive Note is not an Interest Payment Date. interest (it
any) accrued in respect of such Note from (and including) the preceding Interest Payment Date
or. as the case may be, the Interest Commencement Date shall be payable only agamst surrender
of the relevant definitive Note,

Payments in respect of Global Notes

Payments of principal and interest (if any) in respect of Notes represented by any Global Note
will {(subject as provided below) be made in the manner specified above in relation to definitive
Notes and otherwise in the manner specified in the relevant Global Note against presentation or
surrender, as the case may be, of such Global Note at the specified office of any Paying Agent
outside the United States. A record of each payment made against presentalion or surrender of
any Global Note. distinguishing between any payment of principal and any payment of interest,
will be made on such Global Note by the Paying Agent to which it was presented and such record
shall be prima facie evidence that the payment in question has been made.

General provisions applicable 1o payments

The holder of a Global Note shall be the only person entitled to receive payments in respect of
Notes represented by such Global Note and the Issuer will be discharged by payment to, or to the
order of, the holder of such Global Note in respect of each amount so paid. Each of the persons
shown in the records of Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg as the beneficial holder of a
particular nominal amount of Notes represented by such Global Note must look solely to
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(e)

Eurcclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg. as the case may be, for his share of each payment so
made by the Issuer to, or to the order of, the holder of such Global Note.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Condition, if any amount of principal and/or
interest in respect of Notes is payable in U.S. dollars, such U.S. dollar payments of principal
and/or interest in respect of such Notes will be made at the specified office of a Paying Agent in
the Uniled States if:

(1} the [ssuer has appointed Paying Agents with specified offices outside the United States with
the reasonable expectation that such Paying Agents would be able to make payment in U.S.
dollars at such specified offices outside the United States of the full amount of principal and
interest on the Notes in the manner provided above when due;

(i) payment of the full amount of such principal and inlerest at all such specified offices outside
the United States is illegal or effectively precluded by exchange controls or other similar
restrictions on the full payment or receipt of principal and interest in U.S. dollars; and

(i) such payment is then permitied under United States law without involving, in the opinion
of the Issuer, adverse tax consequences to the [ssuer.

Exercise of put option

To exercise the right to require the Issuer lo redeem (or. in the case of Condition 6(¢). to redeem
or, at the option of the Issuer, purchase or procure the purchase of) this Note pursuant to
Conditions 6(d) or 6(e} (if applicable). the holder of this Note must comply with the following
provisions.

(i) If this Note is in definitive form and held outside Euroclear and Clearstream. Luxembourg,
the Noteholder must deliver, at the specified office of any Paying Agent at any time during
normal business hours ol such Paying Agent falling within the notice period specified in
Condition &(d), Condition 6{e) or the applicable Pricing Supplement {as the case may be). a
duly completed and signed notice of excrcise in the form (for the time being current)
obtainable from any specified office of any Paying Agent (a “Put Notice”) and in which the
holder must specify a bank account {or, if payment is required to be made by cheque. an
address) complying with the requirements of this Condition 5 to which payment is to be
made, accompanied by this Note or evidence satisfactory to the Paying Agent concerned
that this Note will, following delivery of the Putl Notice, be held to its order or under its
control.

The Paying Agent to which such Note and Put Notice are delivered shall issue to the
Noieholder concerned a non-transferable receipt in respect of the Note so delivered.
Payment in respect of any Note so delivered shall be made, if the holder duly specifies a
bank account in the Put Notice to which payment is to be made, by transfer for value on the
Optional Redemption Date or the relevant Put Date (as the case may be) to that bank
account or by cheque sent by first class post to that address, in either case in compliance
with the provisions of Condition 5(a). A Put Notice. once given, shall be irrevocable. For
the purposes of Conditions 1. 8, 9. 10, 14 and 13, receipts issued pursuant to this Condition
5(e) shall be treated as if they were Notes.

For the avoidance of doubt, the provisions of Condition 5(b) shall apply with respect to the
presentation of Notes under this Condition 5(e){i) and payments in respect thereof.

(i) If this Note is represented by a Global Note or is in definitive form and held through
Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, the Noteholder must, within the notice period
specified in Condition 6{d}, Condition 6(¢) or the applicable Pricing Supplement {as the case
may be), give notice to the Agent of such exercise in accordance with the standard
procedures of Euroclear and Clearstream. Luxembourg (which may include notice being
given on his iostruction by Euroclear or Clearstream., Luxembourg or any common
depositary for them to the Agent by electronic means) in a form acceptable to Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg from time to time and, if this Note is represented by a Global
Note, at the same time present or procure the presentation of the relevant Global Note to
the Agent for notation accordingly.
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(a)

(b)

Paymeni Day

I[ the date for payment of any amount in respect of any Nole, Receipt or Coupon is not a

Payment Day. the holder thercof shall not be entitled to payment until the next foliowing

Payment Day in the relevant place and shall not be entitled to further interest or other payment

in respect of such delay. For these purposcs. “Payment Day”™ means any day which (subject Lo

Condition 8) is:

(i a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are
open for general business (including dealing in foreign cxchange and foreign currency
deposits) in:

{A) the relevant place of presentation:
{B) London;
(C) any Additional Financial Centre specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement; and

(ii) either {1} tn relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day on
which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for
general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the
principal financial cenire of the country of the relevant Specified Currency (if other than
the place of presentation, London and any Additional Financial Centre and which, il the
Specified Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars, shall be Melbourne and
Wellington, respectively) or (2) in relation to any sum payable in euro. a day on which the
TARGET System is open.

Interpretation of principal and interest

Any reference in these Conditions to principal in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to include.
as apphcable:

(i) any additional amounts which may be payable with respect to principal under Condition 8
or under any undertaking or covenant given in addition thereto. or in substitntion therefor,
pursuant to the Trust Deed;

(1) the Final Redemption Amount of the Notes;

(i1i) the Early Redemption Amount of the Notes:

{iv) the Optional Redemption Amount(s) (if any) of the Notes;

(v) in rclation to Notes redeemable in instalments, the Instalment Amounts;

{vi) in relation to Zero Coupon Notes, the Amortised Face Amouat (as defined in Condition
6(): and

(vii) any premium and any other amounts (other than intercst) which may be payable by the
Issuer under ot in respect of the Notes.

Any reference in these Conditions to interest in respect of the Notes shall be deemed to
include, as applicable, any additional amounts which may be payable with respect to interest
under Condition 7 or under any undertaking or covenant given in addition thereto, or in
substitution therefor. pursuant to the Trust Deed.

6. REDEMPTION AND PURCHASE

Redemption at maturity

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled as specified below, each Note {(including
each Index Linked Redemption Note and Dual Currency Redemption Note) will be redeemed by
the Issuer at its Final Redemption Amount specified in, or determined in the manner specified in,
the applicable Pricing Supplement in the relevant Specified Currency on the Maturity Date.

Redemption for tax redsons

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer in whole, but not in part, at any time (il
this Note is neither a Floating Rate Note. an Index Linked Interest Noie nor a Dual Currency
Interest Note) or on any Interest Payment Date (if this Note is either a Floating Rate Note, an
Index Linked Interest Note or a Dual Currency Interest Note), on giving not less than 30 nor
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(c)

more than 60 days’ notice to the Trustee and the Agent and. in accordance with Condition 13, the
Noteholders (which notice shall be irrevocable), if the Issuer satisfies the Trustee immediately
before the giving of such notice that:

()  on the occasion of the next payment due under the Notes, the Issuer has or will become
obliged to pay additional amounts as provided or referred to in Condition 7 as a result of
any change in, or amendment to, the laws or regulations of a Tax Jurisdiction (as defined in
Condition 7) or any change in the application or official interpretation of such laws or
regulations. which change or amendment becomes effective on or after the date on which
agreement is reached to issue the first Tranche of the Notes: and

(1) such ebligation cannot be avoided by the Issuer taking reasonable measures available to it,

provided that no such notice of redemption shall be given earlier than Y0 days prior to the carliest
date on which the lssuer would be obliged to pay such additional amounts were a payment in
respeet of the Notes then due.

Prior to the publication of any notice of redemption pursuant to this Condition, the Issuer shall
deliver to the Trustee a certificate signed by two Authorised Persons of the Issuer stating that the
Issucr is entitled to effect such redemption and setting forth a statement of facts showing that the
conditions precedent to the right of the Issuer so to redeem have occurred, and an opinion in a
form satisfactory to the Trustee of independent legal advisers of recognised standing to whom the
Trustee shall have no reasonable objection to the effect that the Issuer has or will become obliged
Lo pay such additional amounts as a result of such change or amendment and the Trustec shall
be entitled to accept the certificate as sufficient evidence of the satisfaction of the conditions
precedent set out above, in which event it shall be conclusive and binding on the Noteholders. the
Receiptholders and the Couponholders.

Notes redeemed pursuant to this Condition 6(b) will be redeemed at their Early Redemption
Amount referred to in paragraph (f) below together (if appropriate) with interest accrued to (but
excluding) the date fixed for redemption.

Redemption at the option of the Issuer ( Issuer Call)
If Issuer Call is spectfied in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the Tssuer may, having given:

(i) not less than 5 nor more than 30 days’ notice to the Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 13; and

{(i1) not less than 15 days before the giving of the notice referred to in (i), notice to the Trustee
and to the Agent;

{which netices shall be irrevocable and shall specify the date fixed for redemption), redeem alt or
some only of the Notes then outstanding on any Optional Redemption Dale and at the Optional
Redemption Amount(s) specified in, or determined in the manner specified in, the applicable
Pricing Supplement together, if appropriate, with interest accrued to (but excluding) the relevant
Optional Redemption Date. Any such redemption must be of a nominal amount not less than
the Minimum Redemption Amount and not more than the Maximum Redemption Amount. in
gach case as may be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. In the case of a partial
redemption of Notes, the Notes to be redeemed (* Redeerned Notes” ) will be selected individually
by lot. in the case of Redeemed Notes represented by definitive Notes. and in accordance with the
rules of Euroclear and/or Clearstream. Luxembourg, in the case of Redeemed Notes represented
by a Global Nole, not more than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption (such date of
sclection being hereinafter called the “Selection Date”). In the case of Redeemed Notes
represenled by definitive Notes, a list of the serial numbers of such Redeemed Notes will be
published in accordance with Condition 13 not less than 15 days prior to the date fixed for
redemption. The aggregate nominal amount of Redeemed Notes represented by definitive Notes
shall bear the same proportion to the aggregate nominal amount of all Redeemed Notes as the
aggregale nominal amount of definitive Notes outstanding bears to the aggregate nominal
amount of the Notes outstanding, in each casc on the Selection Date, provided that such first
mentioned nominal amount shall, if necessary, be rounded downwards to the nearest integral
multiple of the Specified Denomination, and the aggregate nominal amount of Redeemed Notes
represented by a Global Note shall be equal to the balance of the Redeemed Notes. No exchange
of the relevant Global Note will be permitted during the period from (and including) the
Selectton Dale to (and including) the date (ixed for redemption pursuant to this paragraph (c) and
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notice to that effect shall be given by the Issuer to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition
13 at least five days prior to the Selection Date.

(dy  Redemption at the option of the Noteholders (Investor Put) and exercise of Noteholders' rights

If Investor Put is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. upon the holder of any Note
giving to the Issuer in accordance with Condition 13 not less than 15 nor more than 30 days’
notice (which notice shall be irrevocable) the Issuer will, upon the expiry of such notice, redeem,
subject to, and in accordance with, the terms specified in the appheable Pricing Supplement. such
Note on the Oplional Redemption Date and at the Oplional Redemption Amount together, if
appropriate, with interest accrued to (but excluding) the Optional Redemption Date. The
Noteholder must also comply with the provisions of Condition 5(e).

() Redemption at the option of the Noteholders on a Restructuring Event

This Condition 6(¢) applies only where LPN, EPN or SPN is the Issucr.

(i) (a) If, at any time while any of the Notes remains outstanding, a Restructuring Event (as
defined below} occurs and prior to the commencement of or during the Restructuring
Period (as defined below):

{A) an independent financial adviser (as described below) shall have certified in
writing to the Trustee that such Restructuring Event will not be or is not. in its
opinion, materially prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders; or

(B} if there are Rated Securities (as defined below). each Rating Agency (as defined
below) that at such time has assigned a current rating to the Rated Securitics
confirms in writing to the Trustee that it will not be withdrawing or reducing the
then current rating assigned to the Rated Securities by it from an investment
grade rating (BBB-/Baa3. or their respective equivalents for the time being, or
better) to a non-investment grade rating (BB+/Bal. or their respective
equivalents for the time being, or worse) or. it the Rating Agency shall have ,
already rated the Rated Securitics below investment grade (as described above),
the rating will not be lowered by one full rating category or more. in cach casc as
a result, in whole or in part, of any event or circumstance comprised in or arising
as a result of the applicable Restructuring Event,

the following provisions of this Condition 6(e) shall cease to have any further effect in
relation to such Restructuring Event.

(b) If. at any time whilc any of the Noics remains outstanding. a Restructuring Event
occurs and {subject to Condition 6{e)(i}{a)):

(A) within the Restructuring Period. either:

(i} if at the time such Restructuring Event occurs there are Rated Securities, a
Rating Downgrade (as defined below) in respect of such Restructuring
Event also oceurs; or

(i) il at such time there are no Rated Securities, a Negative Rating Event (as
defined below) in respect of such Restructuring Event also occurs; and

{B) an independent financial adviser shall have certified in writing to the Trustee that
such Restructuring Evenl is, in its opinion, materially prejudicial to the interests
of the Notcholders (a “Negative Certification’™),

then, unless at any time the Issuer shall have given notice under Condition 6(b) or 6(c) (if
applicable) or the holder shall have given notice under Condition 6(d} (if applicable). the
holder of cach Note will, upon the giving of a Put Event Notice {as defined below), have the
option (the “Pur Option”) to require the Issuer to redeem or, at the option of the Issuer,
purchase (or procure the purchase of) that Note on the Put Date (as defined below), at its
Optional Redemption Amount together with {or. where purchased, together with an
amount equal to) interest (if any) accrued to (but excluding) the Put Date.

A Restructuring Event shall be deemed not to be materially prejudicial to the interests of
the Noteholders if, notwithstanding the occurrence of a Rating Downgrade or a Negative
Rating Event. the rating assigned to the Rated Securities by any Rating Agency (as defined
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{it)

(iif)

(iv)

below) is subsequently increased (o, or, as the case may be, there is assigned to the Notes or
other unsecured and unsubordinated debt of the Issuer (or ol any Subsidiary of the Issuer
and which is guaranteed on an unsccured and unsubordinated basis by the Issuer) having
an intial maturity of five years or more by any Rating Agency, an investment grade rating
(BBB-/Baa3) or their respective equivalents for the time being) or better prior to any
Negative Certification being issued.

Any certification by an independent financial adviser as aforcsaid as to whether or not, in
its opinion. any Restructuring Event is materially prejudicial to the interests of the
Noteholders shall, in the absence of manifest or proven error. be conclusive and binding on
the Trustee, the Issuer and the Notcholders. The Issuer may, at any time, with the approval
of the Trustee (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed) appoint an
independent linancial adviser for the purposes of this Condition é(e). I, within five Business
Days following the occurrence of a Rating Downgrade or a Negative Rating Event. as the
case may be, in respect of a Restructuring Event, the Issuer shall not have appointed an
independent financial adviser for the purposes of Cendition 6{e)}(1)(b}B) and (if so required
by the Trustee) the Trustee is indemnified to its satisfaction against the costs of such adviser,
the Trustce may appoint an independent financial adviser for such purpose following
consultation with the Issuer,

Promptly upon the Issuer becoming aware that a Put Event {as defined below) has occurred,
and in any event not later than 14 days after the occurrence of a Put Event, the Issuer shail,
and at any time upon the Trustee becoming similarly so aware the Trustee may. and if so
requestied by the holders of at least one-quarter in nominal amount of the Noles then
outstanding shall, give notice (a “Put Event Notice”) to the Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 13 specilying the nature of the Put Event and the procedure for exercising the Put
Option.

To exercise the Pul Option, the holder of a Note must comply with the provisions of
Condition 5(e}. The applicable notice period for the purposes of Condition 5{(¢) shall be the
period (the “Put Period”™) of 45 days after that on which a Put Event Notice is given.
Subject to the relevant Noteholder having complied with Condition 5(¢), the Issuer shall
redeem or, at the option of the Issuer. purchase (or procure the purchase of) the relevant
Note on the fifteenth day after the date of expiry of the Put Period (the * Pur Pate”) unless
previously redeemed or purchascd.

For the purposes of these Conditions:

{a) “Distribution Services Area” means the area specificd as such in the distribution licence
granted to the Issucr on 1st October, 2001 under section 6{1)(¢) of the Elcctricity Act
1989 (as amended by section 30 of the Utilities Act 2000), as of the dalc of such
distribution licence.

(b} A “Negative Rating Event” shall be deetmed to have occurred if (1) the Issuer does not,
either prior to or not later than 14 days after the date of a Negative Certification in
respect of the relevant Restructuring Event, seek, and thereupon use all reasonable
endeavours to obtain. a rating of the Notes or any other unsecured and
unsubordinated debt of the Issuer (or of any Subsidiary of the Issuer and which is
guaranteed on an unsecured and unsubordinated basis by the Issuer) having an initial
maturity of five years or more from a Rating Agency or (2) if it does so scek and use
such endeavours, it is unable. as a result of such Restructuring Event, to oblain such a
rating ol at least investment grade (BBB-/Baa3, or their respective equivalents for the
time being).

() A “Puar Event” occurs on the date of the last to occur of (1) a Restructuring Event, (2)
cither a Rating Downgrade or, as the case may be, a Negative Rating Event and (3) the
rclevant Negative Certification.

(d) “Rating Agency” means Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a Division of the
McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. or any of its subsidiarics and their successors
{(“Standard & Poor’s”™) or Moody’s Investors Service Limited or any of its subsidiaries
and their successors {(“Moody’s”) or any rating agency substituted for any of them (or
any permitted substitute of them) by the Issuer from time to time with the prior
wrillen approval ol the Trusiee (such approval not to be unreasonably withheld or

delayed).
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(¢} A “Rating Downgrade” shall be deemed 1o have occurred in respect of a Restructuring
Event if the then current rating assigned to the Rated Securities by any Rating Agency
{whether provided by a Rating Agency at the invitation of the Issuer or by its own
volition) is withdrawn or reduced from an investment grade rating (BBB-/Baa3), or
their respective equivalents for the time being, or better) to a non-investment grade
rating (BB+/Bal). or their respective equivalents for the time being, or worse) or, if the
Rating Agency shall then have already rated the Rated Securities below investment
grade (as described above), the rating 1s lowered one full rating category.

(D) “Rated Securities” means the Notes. if at any time and for so long as they have a rating
from a Rating Agency, and otherwise any other unsecured and unsubordinated debt of
the Issuer (or of any Subsidiary of the lssuer and which is guaranteed on an unsecured
and unsubordinated basis by the Issuer} having an initial maturity of five years or
more which is rated by a Rating Agency.

(g) “Relevant Subsidiary” means a wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Issuer, EDF Energy
plc or of another Relevant Subsidiary, that has executed a guarantee in respect of the
Notes or has become a primary obligor under the Notes as contemplated in sub-
paragraph (1) of the definition of “Restructuring Event”.

(h} “Restructuyring FEvent” means lhe occurrence of any one or more of the [ollowing
cvents:

(1) the Issuer and/or any Relevant Subsidiary ceases to be authorised and
empowered to distribute electricily in the whole or substantially the whole
(determined in accordance with sub-paragraph (k) below) of the Distribution
Secrvices Arca, cxcept in circumstances where the lssuer and/or one or more
Relevant Subsidiaries and/or one or more wholly-owned Subsidiaries of the
Issuer, EDF Energy plc or of a Relevant Subsidiary 15 so authorised and
empowered and, in the case of a wholly-owned Subsidiary of the Issuer. EDF
Energy plc or of a Relevanl Subsidiary. such wholly-owned Subsidiary either
executes tn lavour ol the Trustee an unconditional and irrevocable guarantee in
respect of the Notes (jointly and severally where appropriate) in such form as the
Trustec may require or has become a primary obligor under the Notes (jointly
and severally where appropriate) in accordance with Condition 15: or

{2) any modification {other than a modification which is of a formal, minor or
technical nature) being made Lo the terms and conditions upon which the Issuer
and/or any Relevant Subsidiary is authorised and empowered under relevant
legislation to distribute electricity in the Distribution Scrvices Arca unless two
Authorised Persons of the Issuer and/or two directors of the Relevant Subsidiary
(as the casc may be) have certified in good faith te the Trustee that the modified
terms and conditions are nol materially less lavourable to the business of the
Issuer or such Relevanl Subsidiary (as the case may be);

(3) any legislation {whether primary or subordinate) is enacted which removes,
qualifies or amends (other than an amendment which is of a formal, minor or
technical nature) the duties of the Secretary of State for Trade and Industry (or
any successor) and/or the Gas and Electricity Markets Authority {or any
successor) under section 3A of the Electricity Act 1989 unless two Authorised
Persons of the Issuer and/or two directors of the Relevant Subsidiary (as the case
may be) have certified in good faith to the Trustee that such removal,
qualification or amendment does not have a materially adverse effect on the
financial condition of the Issuer or such Relevant Subsidiary (as the case may
be).

(1) “Restructuring Period” means.

{A) if at the time a Restructuring Event occurs there are Rated Sceurities, the period
of 90 days starting from and including the day on which that Restructuring Event
OCCurs; or

(B) if at the time a Restructuring Event occurs there are no Rated Securities. the
period starting {rom and including the day on which that Restructuring Event
occurs and ending on the day 90 days following the later of (aa) the date (if any)
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)

(k)

on which the Issuer shall seek to obtain a rating as contermnplated by the definition
of Negative Rating Event: (bb)} the expiry of the 14 days referred to in the
definition of Negative Rating Event and (cc¢) the date on which a Negative
Certification shall have been given to the Issuer in respect of that Restructuring
BEvent.

A Rating Downgrade or a Negative Rating Event or a non-investment grade rating
shall be deemed not to have occurred as a result or in respeet of a Restructuring Event
if the Rating Agency making the relevant reduction in rating or, where applicable,
declining to assign a rating of at least investment grade as provided in this Condition
6(e) does not announce or publicly confirm or inform the Trustee in writing at its
request that the reduction or. where applicable, declining to assign a rating of at least
mvestnient grade was the result. in whole or in part, of any event or circumstance
comprised in or arising as a result of the applicable Restructuring Event.

The Issuer or any Relevant Subsidiary shall be deemed to have ceased to be authorised
and empowered to distribute electricity in the whole or substantially the whole of the
Distribution Services Area if at any time the Distribution Revenues (as defined below)
in respect of the area within the Distribution Services Area in which the Issucr and
cach Relevant Subsidiary (taken together) arc so authorised and empowered to
distribute electricity are less than 90 per cent. of the Distribution Revenues in respect
of the Distribution Services Area (or such part thereof in which the Issuer and/or any
Relevant Subsidiary distributed electricity during the relevant period referred to in the
definition of “Distribution Revenues™).

For the purposes of this subparagraph (k). “ Distribution Revennes” mcans, at any time
and in respect of any area. the aggregate gross revenues of the Issuer and ecach
Relevant Subsidiary attributable to the distribution by it of electricity in that area
respect of the period for which audited financial statements of the Issuer and each
Relevant Subsidiary have at such Uime mosi recently been prepared and published. all
as determined in accordance with the accounting principles, standards and practices
on which the preparation of the relevant audited financial statements were based and
those accounting policies which were used in the preparation of such audited financial
statements.

The Trustce is under no obligation to ascertain whether a Restructuring Event. a
Negative Rating Event or any event which could lead to the occurrence of or could
constitute a Restructuring Event has occurred and, until it shall have actual knowledge
or express notice pursuant to the Trust Deed to the contrary. the Trustee may assume
that no Restructuring Event, Negative Rating Event or other such event has occurred.
In determining whether or not a Restructuring Event has occurred, the Trustee shall
be entitled to rely solely on an opinion given in a certificate signed by two Authorised
Persons of the Issuer.

(N Early Redemption Amounts

For the purpose of Condition &{b) above and Condition 9. cach Note will be redecmed at its
Early Redemption Amount calculated as follows:

(1}

(iD)

in the casc of a Note with a Final Redemption Amount equal to the Issue Price, at the Final
Redemption Amount thercof;

in the case of a Note (other than a Zero Coupon Note but including an Instalment Nole
and a Partly Paid Note) with a Final Redemption Amount which is or may be less or greater

than the Issue Price or which is payable in a Specified Currency other than that in which the
Nole 15 denominated. at the amount specified in, or determined in the manner specified in,
the applicable Pricing Supplement or, if no such amount or manner is so specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement, at its nominal amount; or

(iii) 1in the case of a Zero Coupon Note, at an amount (the “Amortised Face Amount”) calculated
in accordance with the following formula:

Early Redemption Amount = RP x {1 + AY)y

where:

<4 RP!!

means the Reference Price;




(h)

(1)

)

(k)

“AY? means the Accrual Yield expressed as a decimal; and

[T 1]

¥ is a fraction the numerator of which is equal to the number of days (calculated on the
basis of a 360-day year consisling of 12 months of 30 days each) from (and including)
the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes to (but excluding) the date fixed for
redemption or (as the case may be) the date upon which such Note becomes due and
repayable and the denominator of which is 36(),

or on such other calculation basis as may be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Instalments

Instalment Notes will be redecmed in the Instalment Amounts and on the Instalment Dates, In
the case of carly redemption, the Early Redemption Amount will be determined pursuant to
paragraph (f) above.

Partly Paid Notes

Partly Paid Notes will be redeemed, whether at maturity, early redemption or otherwise, in
accordance with the provisions of this Condition and the applicable Pricing Supplement.

Purchases

The Issuer or any Subsidiary of the Issuer may at any time purchase Notes (provided that, in the
case of definitive Notes, all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons appertaining thereto are
purchased therewith} al any price in the open market or otherwise. Il purchases are made by
tender, tenders must be available to all Noteholders alike. Such Notes may be held, reissued,
resold or. at the option of the Issuer, surrendered to any Paying Agent for cancellation.

Cancellation

All Notes which are redeemed or purchased pursuant to Condition 6(e) will forthwith be
cancelled (together with all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and Talons attached thercto or
surrendered therewith at the time of redemption}. All Notes so cancelled and any Notes
purchased pursuant to paragraph (1} above (together with all unmatured Receipts, Coupons and
Talons cancelled therewith) and surrendered for cancellation shall be forwarded to the Agent and
cannol be reissued or resold.

Late payvment on Zero Coupon Notes

1f the amount payable in respect of any Zero Coupon Note upon redemption or purchase of such
Zcero Coupon Note pursuant to paragraph (a). (b). (¢). {d) or (e} above or upon its becoming due
and repayable as provided in Condition 9 1s improperly withheld or refused. the amount due and
repayable in respect of such Zero Coupon Note shall be the amount calculated as provided in
paragraph {f){ii)) above as though the references therein to the date fixed for the redemption or
the date upon which such Zero Coupon Note becomes duc and repayable were replaced by
references to the date which is the earlier of:

(i}  the date on which ail amounts due in respect of such Zero Coupon Note have been paid:
and

(ii) five days after the date on which the full amount of the moneys payable in respect of such
Zero Coupon Note has been received by the Agent or the Trustee and notice to that effect
has been given to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 13,

TAXATION

All payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes, Receipts and Coupons by or on behalf
of the Issuer will be made without withholding or deduction for or on account of any present or future
taxes or dutics of whatever nature imposed or levied by or on behalf of any Tax Jurisdiction unless
such withholding or deduction is required by law. In such event, the Issuer will pay such additional
amounts as shall be necessary in order that the net amounts received by the holders of the Notes,
Receipts or Coupons after such withholding or deduction shall equal the respective amounts of
principal and interest which would otherwise have been receivable in respect of the Notes, Receipts or
Coupons, as the case may be. in the absence of such withholding or deduction; except that no such
additional amounts shall be payable with respect to any Note. Receipt or Coupon:
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

{c)

presented for payment by or on behalf of a holder who is liable for such taxes or duties in respect
of such Note, Receipt or Coupon by reason of his having some connection with a Tax
Jurisdiction other than the mere holding of such Note, Receipt or Coupon; or

presented for payment more than 30 days after the Relevant Date (as defined below) except to the
exlent that the holder thercof would have been entitled to an additional amount on presenting
the same for payment on such thirtieth day assuming that day to have been a Payment Day (as
defined in Condition 5(f)). or

where such withholding or deduction is imposed on a payment to an individual and is required
to be made pursuant to European Council Directive 2003/48/EC or any other European Union
Directive implementing the conclusions of the ECOFIN Council meeting of 26th-27th
November, 2000 on the taxation of savings mmcome or any law implementing or complying with,
or introduced in order to conform to, such Directive; or

to. or to a third party on bebalf of, a holder who. being entitled to aveid being liable or subject
to the withholding or deduction by making a declaration of non-residence or other similar claim
for exemption to the relevant tax authority, fails to make such a declaration or claim: or

presented for payment by or on behalf of a holder who would be able to avoid such withholding
or deduction by presenting the relevant Note, Receipt or Coupon to another Paying Agent in
another Member State of the European Union.

As used herein:

(i) “Tax Jurisdiction” means the United Kingdom or any political subdivision or any authority
thercof or therein having power to tax; and

(i) the “Relevant Date” means the date on which such payment first becomes due, except that.
if the full amount of the moneys payable has not been duly received by the Trustee or the
Agent on or prior to such due date, it means the date on which, the full amount of such
moneys having been so received, notice to thal effect is duly given to the Noiehoiders in
accordance with Condition 13.

PRESCRIPTION

The Notes, Receipts and Coupons will become void unless presented for payment within a period of
10 years {in the case of principal) and five years (in the case of interest) after the Relevant Date (as
defined in Condition 7) therefor.

There shall not be included in any Coupon sheet issued on exchange of a Talon any Coupon the claim
for payment in respect of which would be void pursuant te this Condition or Condition 5(b) or any
Talon which would be void pursuant to Condition 5(b}.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND ENFORCEMENT

(a)

Events of Default

The Trustee at its discretion may, and if so requested in writing by the holders of at least one-
quarter in nominal amount of the Notes then outstanding or if so directed by an Extraordinary
Resolution shall (subject in each case to being indemnified to its satisfaction), (but in the case of
the happening of any of the cvents described in paragraphs {ii), (iii) and (v) 1o (viii} inclusive
below, only il the Trustee shall have certified in writing to the Issuer that such event is, in its
opinion, materially prejudicial Lo the interests of the Noteholders), give notice in writing to the
Issuer that cach Note is, and each Note shall thereupon immediately become, due and repayable
at its Early Redemption Amount together with accrued interest as provided in the Trust Deed if
any of the following events (cach an “Event of Defanit”) shall have occurred:

{1y  if default is madc in the payment of any principal or interest due in respect of the Notes or
any of them and the default continues for a period of 14 days in the case of principal and
21 days in the casc of interest or the Issuer, having become obliged to redeem. purchase or
procure the purchase of (as the casc may be) any Notes pursuant to Condition 6(e) fails to
do so within a period of 14 days of having become so obliged: or

(i1) if the Issuer fails to perform or observe any of its other obligations, covenants, conditions
or provisions under the Notes or the Trust Deed and {except where the Trustee shall have
certified to the [ssuer in writing that it considers such failure to be incapable of remedy in
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{1ii)

v)

(vi}

{vii)

which case no such notice or continuation as is heretnafter mentioned will be required) the
lailure continues for the period of 60 days (or such longer period as the Trustee may in its
absolute discretion permit) next following the service by the Trustee on the [ssuer of notice
requiring the same Lo be remedied; or

if (A) any other indebtedness for borrowed moncy of the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary
becornes due and repayable prior to its stated maturity by reason of an event of default or
{B) any such indebtedness for borrowed money 15 not paid when due or. as the case may be,
within any applicable grace period (as originally provided) or (C) the Issucr or any Principal
Subsidiary fails to pay when duc (or, as the case may be, within any originally applicable
grace period} any amount payable by it under any presentl or future guarantee for. or
indemnity in respect of, any indebledness for borrowed money of any person or (D) any
security given by the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary for any indebtedness for borrowed
money of any person or any guarantee or indemnity of indebtedness for borrowed money
of any person becomes enforceable by reason of default in relation thereto and steps are
taken to enforce such security save in any such case where there is a bona fide dispute as to
whether the relevant indebtedness for borrowed money or any such guarantee or indemnity
as aforcsaid shall be due and payable, provided that the aggregate amount of the relevant
indebtedness for borrowed money in respect of which any one or more of the events
mentioned above in this sub-paragraph (i} has or have occurred equals or exceeds
whichever is the greater of £20.000,000 or ils equivalent in other currencies (as determined
by the Trustee) and two per cent. of the Capital and Reserves, and for the purposes of this
sub-paragraph (iii), “indebtedness for borrowed money” shall exclude Non-recourse
Indebtedness: or

if any order is made by any competent court or resolution passed for the winding up or
dissolution of the Issuer, save for the purposes ol amalgamation, merger, consolidation,
reorganisation. reconstruction or other similar arrangement on terms previously approved
in writing by the Trustee or by an Extraordinary Resolution of the Neteholders: or

if any order shall be made by any competent court or any resolution shall be passed for the
winding up or dissolution of a Principal Subsidiary, save for the purposes of amalgamation,
merger, consolidation. reorganisatlion. reconstruction or other similar arrangement (i) not
involving or arising out of the insolvency of such Principal Subsidiary and under which all
the surplus assets of such Principal Subsidiary arc transferred 1o the Issuer or any of its
other Subsidiaries (other than an Excluded Subsidiary) or (ii) the terms of which have
previously been approved in writing by the Trustee or by an Extraordinary Resolution of
the Noteholders; or

if the Issuer or any Principal Substdiary shall cease to carry on the whole or substantially
the whole of its business, save, in the case of a Principal Subsidiary, in each case for the
purposes of amalgamation, merger. consolidation, reorganisation, reconstruction or other
similar arrangement (A} not involving or arising out of the insolvency of such Principal
Subsidiary and under which all or substantially all of its assets are transferred to another
member of the Group (other than an Excluded Subsidiary) or to a transferee which 1s. or
immediately upon such transfer becomes. a Principal Subsidiary or (B) under which all or
substantially all of its assets arc transferred to a third party or parties (whether associates
or not) for full consideration by the Issuer or a Principal Subsidiary on an arny’s length basis
or (C) the terms of which have previously been approved in writing by the Trustee or by an
Extraordinary Resolution of the Noteholders: or

if’ the [ssuer or any Principal Subsidiary shall suspend or shall threaten to suspend payment
of its debts generally or shall be declared or adjudicated by a competent court to be unable,
or shail admit in writing its inability. to pay its debts {within the meaning of section 123(1)
or (Z) of the Insolvency Act 1986) as they fall due, or shall be adjudicated or found insolvent
by a competent court or shall enter into any composition or other similar arrangement with
its creditors under section | of the Insolvency Act 1986; or

{viil) if a receiver, administrative receiver. administrator or other similar official shall be

appointed in relation to the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary or in relation to the whole or
a substantial part of the undertaking or assets of any of them or a distress, execution or
other process shall be levied or enforced upon or sued out against, or an encumbrancer shall
take possession of, the whole or a substantial part of the assels ol any of them and in any
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(b)

(©)

of the foregoing cases it or he shall not be paid out or discharged within 90 days (or such
longer period as the Trustee may in its absolute discretion permit).

For the purposes of sub-paragraph (vii} above, section 123(1)a) of the Insolvency Act 1986 shall
have effect as if for “£750” there was substituted “£250,0007 or such higher figure as the Gas and
Electricity Markcts Authornty (or any successor) may from time to time determine by notice in
writing to the Sccretary of State for Trade and Industry and the Issuer.

Neither the Issuer nor any Principal Subsidiary shall be deemed 1o be unable o pay its debts for
the purposes of sub-paragraph (vii) above il any such demand as is mentionced in scction
123{1)a) of the Insolvency Act 1986 is being contested in good faith by the Issucr or the relevant
Principal Subsidiary with recourse to afl appropriate measures and procedures or il any such
demand is satisfied before the expiration of such peried (if' any) as may be stated in any notice
given by the Trustee under this Condition 9a}.

Enforcement

The Trustee may at any time. at its discretion and without notice, take such proceedings against
the Issuer as it may think fit to enforce the provisions of the Trust Deed, the Notes, the Receipts
and the Coupons, but it shali not be bound to take any such proccedings or any other action in
relation to the Trust Deed, the Notes, the Receipts or the Coupons unless (i} it shall have been so
directed by an Extraordinary Resolution or so requested in writing by the holders of at Icast one-
quarter in nominal amount of the Notes then outstanding and (ii) it shall have been indemnified
to ifs satisfaction.

No Noteholder, Receiptholder or Couponholder shall be entitled to proceed dircetly against the
Issuer unless the Trustee. having become bound so 1o proceed. fails so to do within a reasonable
period and the failure shall be continuing.

Definitions
For the purposes of these Conditions:

“Principal Subsidiary” at any Uime shall mean each Subsidiary of the Issuer (nol being an
Excluded Subsidiary or any other Subsidiary of the Issuer whose only indebtedness for borrowed
money 18 Non-recourse Indebtedness):

(i} whose {a) profits on ordinary activilies before lax or (b) gross assets, in cach case
attributable to the Issuer, represent 20 per cent. or more of the consolidated profits on
ordinary activities before tax of the Group or, as the case may be. consolidated gross assets
of the Group, in cach case as calculated by reference to the then [atest audited financial
statements of such Subsidiary (consolidated in the casc of a company which itsell has
Subsidiaries) and ihe then Jalest audited consolidated financial statements of the Group; or

(i) to which 1s transferred all or substantially all of the business. undertaking and assets of a
Subsidiary of the Issuer which immediately prior to such transfer is a Principal Subsidiary,
whereupon the transferor Subsidiary shall immediately cease to be a Principal Subsidiary
and the transferee Subsidiary shall cease to be a Principal Subsidiary under the provisions
of this sub-paragraph (ii), upon publication of its next audited financial statements (but
without prejudice to the provisions of sub-paragraph (i) above).

all as more fully defined in the Trust Deed, and a report by the Auditors that, in their opinion, a
Subsidiary of the Issuer is or is not or was or was not at any particular time or throughout any
specified period a Principal Subsidiary shall. in the absence of manifest or proven error. be
conclusive and binding on all parties;

“Exclnded Subsidiary”™ means any Subsidiary of the [ssuer {other than a Relevant Subsidiary):

{i}  which is a single purpose company whose principal assets and business are constituted by
the ownership, acquisition, development and/or operation ol an asset;

(1) none of whose indebtedness for borrowed money in respect of the financing of such
ownership, acquisition, development and/or operation of an asset is subject to any recourse
whatsoever to any member of the Group (other than another Excluded Subsidiary) in
respect of the repayment thereol, except as expressly referred to in sub-paragraph (ii)(3) of
the defimtion of Non-recourse Indebtedness below; and
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{ur} which has been designated as such by the Issuer by written notice to the Trustee,

provided that the Issuer may give written notice to the Trustee at any time that any Excluded
Subsidiary is no longer an Excluded Subsidiary. whereupon it shall cease to be an Excluded
Subsidiary:

“indebtedness for borrowed money™ means any present or future indebledness {(whether being
principal, premium, interest or other amounts) for or in respect of (i} money borrowed, (1)
ligbilitics under or in respect of any acceptance or acceptance credit. or (iii) any notes. bonds,
debentures, debenture stock, loan stock or other securitics offered, issued or distributed whether
by way of public offer, private placing. acquisttion consideration or otherwise and whether 1ssued
for cash or in whole or in part for a consideration other than cash: and

“Non-recourse [ndebtedness “ means any indebtedness for borrowed money:
(1)  which is incurred by an Excluded Subsidiary: or

(ii) in respect of which the person or persons to whom any such indebtedness lor borrowed
money is or may be owed by the relevant borrower (whether or not a member of the Group)
has or have no recourse whatsocver to any member of the Group (other than an Excluded
Subsidiary) for the repayment thercof other than:

(1Y recourse o such berrower for amounts limited to the cash flow or net cash flow (other
than historic cash flow or historic net cash flow) from any specific asset or assets over
or in respect of which sccurity has been granted in respect of such indebtedness for
borrowed money; and/or

(2) recourse te such borrower for the purpose only of enabling amounts to be claimed in
respect of such indebtedness for borrowed moncy in an enforcement of any
encumbrance given by such borrower over any such asset or assets or the income, cash
flow or other proceeds deriving therefrom {or given by any shareholder or the like in
the borrower over its shares or the like in the capital of the borrower) to secure such
indebtedness for borrowed money, provided that (aa) the extent of such recourse to
such borrower is limited solely to the amount of any recoveries made on any such
enlorcement. and (bb) such person or persons isfare not entitled, by virtug of any right
or claim arising out of or in connection with such indebtedness for borrowed money,
to commence proceedings for the winding up or disselution of the borrower or to
appoint or procure the appointment of any receiver, trustee or similar person or officer
in respect of the borrower or any of its assets (save for the assets the subject ol such
encumbrance); andf/or

(3) recourse to such borrower gencrally, or directly or indircetly to a member of the
Group, under any form of assurance, undertaking or support, which recourse is
limited to a claim for damages (other than liquidated damages and damages required
Lo be calculated in a specified way) for breach of an obligation (not being a payment
obligation or an obligation to procure payment by another or an indemnity in respect
thereof or any obligation to comply or to procure compliance by another with any
financial ratios or other tests of financial condition) by the person against whom such
recourse is available.

10. REPLACEMENT OF NOTES, RECEIPTS, COUPONS AND TALONS
Should any Note. Receipt, Coupon or Talon be lost, stolen. mutilated. defaced or destroyed, it may be
replaced at the specified office of the Agent upon payment by the claimant of such costs and expenses
as may be mecurred in connection therewith and on such terms as to cvidence and indemnity as the
Issuer may reasonably require. Mutilated or defaced Notes, Receipts. Coupons or Talons must be
surrendered before replacements will be issued.

1. PAYING AGENTS

The names of the initial Paying Agents and their initial specified offices are set out below.

The Issuer 1s entitled, with the prior written approval of the Trustee, to vary or terminate the
appointment of any Paying Agent and/or appoint additional or other Paying Agents and/or approve
any change in the specified office through which any Paying Agent acts, provided that:
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12.

13.

(a) there will at all times be an Agent: and

(b} solong as the Notes are listed on any stock exchange or admitted to trading by any other relevant
authority, there will at all times be a Paying Agent with a specified office in such place as may be
required by the rufes and regulations of the relevant stock exchange or other relevant authority:
and

{c} Lo the extenl not satisfied by (a) or (b) above. the Issuer will ensure that it maintains a Paying
Agent in a Member State of the European Union that will not be obliged to withhold or deduct
tax pursuant to European Council Directive 2003/48/EC or any other European Union Directive
implementing the conclusions of the ECOFIN Council meeting of 26th-27th November, 2000 on
the taxation of savings income or any law implementing or complying with. or introduced in
order to conform to, sach Directive,

In addition, the Issuer shall lorthwith appoint a Paying Agent having a specified office in New York
City in the circumstances described in Condition 5(d). Any variation, termination. appeintment or
change shall only take effect (other than in the case of insolvency, when it shall be of immediate cffect)
afier not less than 30 nor more than 45 days’ prior notice thercof shall have been given to the
Noteholders in accordance with Condition 13,

In acting under the Agency Agreement, the Paying Agents act solely as agents of the Issuer and, in
certain circumstances specified therein, of the Trustee and do not assume any obligation to, or
relationship of agency or trust with, any Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders. The Agency
Agreement contains provisions permitling any entity into which any Paying Agent is merged or
converted or with which it is consolidated or to which it transfers all or substantially all of its assels to
become the successor paying agent.

EXCHANGE OF TALONS

On and after the Interest Payment Date on which the final Coupon comprised 1n any Coupon sheet
matures, the Talon {(if any) forming part of such Coupon sheet may be surrendered at the specified
office of the Agent or any other Paying Agent in exchange for a further Coupon sheet ingluding (if
such further Coupon sheet does not include Coupons to (and including) the final date for the payment
of interest due in respect of the Note to which it appertains) a further Talon, subject to the provisions
of Condition 8.

NOTICES

All notices regarding the Notes will be deemed to be validly given if published in a leading English
language daily newspaper of gencral circulation in the United Kingdom. It is expected that such
publication will be made in the Financial Times. The Issuer shall also ensure that notices are duly
published in a manner which complies with the rules of any stock exchange or other relevant authority
on which the Notes are for the time being listed or by which they have been admitted to trading. Any
such notice will be deemed to have been given on the date of the first publication or. where required Lo
be published in more than one newspaper. on the date of the first publication in all required
newspapers. [f publication as provided above is not practicable, notice will be given in such other
manner, and will be deemed 1o have been given on such date. as the Trustce shall approve.

Until such time as any definitive Notes are issued, there may. so long as any Global Notes representing
the Notes arc held in their entirety on behalf of Euroclear andfor Clearstream. Luxembourg. be
substituted for such publication in such newspapcer(s) the delivery of the relevant notice to Euroclear
and/or Clearstream. Luxembourg for communication by them to the holders of the Notes and, in
addition, for so long as any Notcs are listed on a stock exchange or are admitted to trading by another
relevant authority and the rules of that stock exchange or relevant authority so require, such notice will
be published in a daily newspaper of general circulation in the place or places required by those rules.
Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given to the holders of the Notes on the seventh day
after the day on which the said notice was given {o Euroclear and/or Clearstream. Luxembourg.

Notices to be given by any Noteholder shall be in writing and given by lodging the same, together (in
the case of any Note in definitive form) with the relative Note or Notes. with the Agent. Whilst any of
the Notes are represenied by a Global Note, such notice may be given by any helder of a Note to the
Agent through Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be. in such manner as the
Agent and Euoroclear andfor Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, may approve for this
purpose.
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14.

15.

16.

MEETINGS OF NOTEHOLDERS, MODIFICATION AND WAIVER

The Trust Deed contains provisions for convening meetings of the Noteholders to consider any matter
affecting their interests, including the sanclioning by Extraordinary Resolution of a modification of
the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons or any of the provisions of the Trust Deed. Such a meeting may
be convened by the Issuer or the Trustee and shall be convened by the Issuer if requested in writing by
Noteholders holding not less than 10 per cent. in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being
remaining outstanding. The quorum at any such meeting for passing an Extraordinary Resolution is
one or more persons holding or representing not less than 30 per cent. in nominal amount of the Notes
for the time being outstanding, or al any adjourned meeting one or more persons being or representing
Noteholders whatever the nominal amount of the Notes so held or represented, except that at any
meeting the business of which includes the modification of certain provisions of the Nates. the
Receipts or the Coupons or the Trust Deed (including modifying the date of maturity of the Notes or
any date for payment of interest thereon, reducing or cancelling the amount of principal or the rate of
interest payable in respect of the Notes or altering the currency of payment of the Notes, the Receipts
or the Coupons}, the quorum shall be onc or more persons holding or representing not less than two-
thirds in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding. or at any adjourned such
meeting one or more persons helding or representing not less than one-third in nominal amowunt of the
Notes for the time being outstanding. An Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of the
Notehelders shall be binding on all the Noteholders, whether or not they are present at the meeting.
and on all Receipthoiders and Couponholiders.

The Trustee may agree, without the consent of the Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders, to
any modification of, or to the waiver or autherisation of any breach or proposed breach of, any of the
provisions of the Notes or the Trust Deed. or determine, without any such consent as aforesaid, that
any Event of Delault or potential Event of Default shall not be treated as such, where. in any such
case, it is not, in the opinion of the Trustee, materially prejudicial to the interests of the Notcholders
so to do or may agrec, without any such consent as aforesaid, to any medification which is of a formal,
minor or technical nature or to correct a manifest or proven crror. Any such modification shall be
binding on the Notcholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders and any such modification
shall be notified to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 13 as soon as practicable thercafter.

In connection with the cxercisc by it of any of its trusts, powers, authoritics and discretions {including,
without limitation. any modification. waiver, authorisation or determination). the Trustee shall have
regard to the general interests of the Notcholders as a class (but shall not have regard to any interests
arising from circumstances particular to individual Noteholders. Receiptholders or Couponbholders
whatever their number) and, in particular but without limitation, shali not have regard lo the
consequences of any such exercise for individual Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders
(whatever their number) resulting from their being for any purpose domiciled or resident in, or
otherwise connected with, or subject Lo the jurisdiction of, any particular territory or any political sub-
division thereof and the Trustee shall not be entitled to require. nor shall any Noteholder,
Receiptholder or Couponholder be entitled to claim, from the Issuer, the Trustee or any other person
any indemnification or payment in respect of any tax comsequences of any such exercise upon
individual Noteholders, Receiptholders or Coupornholders except to the extent already provided for in
Condition 7 and/or any undertaking or covenant given in addition to, or in substitution for, Condition
7 pursuaint to the Trust Deed.

SUBSTITUTION

The Trustee may., without the consent of the Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders, agree
with the Issuer to the substitution in place of the Issuer (or of any previcus substitute or substitutes
under this Condition} as the principal debtor under the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons and the Trust
Deed of any Subsidiary or Subsidiaries (other than an Excluded Subsidiary) of the Issuer or any
company of which the Issuer is a Subsidiary, subject to (a} the Notes being unconditionally and
irrevocably guaranteed by the Issuer, {b) the Trustee being satisfied that the interests of the
Noteholders will not be materially prejudiced by the substitution. and (c) certain other conditions set
out in the Trust Deed being complied with.

INDEMNIFICATION OF THE TRUSTEE AND TRUSTEE CONTRACTING WITH THE
ISSUER

The Trust Deed contains provisions for the indemnification of the Trustee and for its relief from
responsibility, including provisions relieving it from taking action unless indemnified to its satisfaction.
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17.

18.

19.

The Trust Deed also contains provisions pursuant to which the Trustee is entitled. infer alia. (1) to enter
into business transactions with the Issuer and/or any of its Subsidiaries and to act as trustee for the
holders of any other securities issued or guaranteed by, or relating to, the Issuer and/or any of its
Subsidiaries, (i1} to cxercise and enforce its rights, comply with its obligations and perform its duties
under or in relation to any such transactions or, as the case may be, any such trusteeship without regard
to the interests of, or consequences for, the Notcholders. Receiptholders or Couponholders and (i} to
retain and not be liable to account for any profit made or any other amount or benefit received thereby
or in connection therewith.

FURTHER ISSUES

The Tssuer shall be at liberty from time to time without the consent of the Noteholders. the
Receiptholders or the Couponholders to create and issue further notes having terms and conditions the
same as the Notes or the same in all respects save for the amount and date of the first payment of
interest thereon and so that the same shall be consolidated and form a single Series with the
outstanding Notes. The Trust Deed contains provisions for convening a single meeting of the
Noteholders and the holders of notes of other Series in certain circumstances where the Trustee so
decides.

CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES) ACT 1999

No person shall have any right to enforce any term or condition of this Note under the Contracts
(Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999, but this does not affect any right or remedy of any person which
exists or is available apart from that Act.

GOVERNING LAW

The Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement. the Notes, the Receipts and the Coupons are governed by, and
shall be construed in accordance with, English law.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from cach issue of Notes will be applied by the relevant Issuer for its general corporate
purposes.
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DESCRIPTION OF EDF ENERGY PLC

BACKGROUND AND STRUCTURE

On Ist April. 1989, EDF Energy ple was mcorporated under the name London Electricity ple with limited
liability in England and Wales under the Companics Act 1983, to operatle an electricity distribution and
supply business in an authorised supply area pursuant to a public clectricity supply Heence (“PES Licence™)
granted under the Electricity Act 1989. In October 2001, it became an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
Electricité de France: and was re-named London Electricity Group.

Since its acquisition by Electricité de France in 1998, EDF Encrgy plc has developed by acquisition into an
intermediate helding company of a vertically integrated United Kingdom (“UK?”) energy group consisting
of companies which:

® own, manage and operate electricity distribution networks;

®  supply clectricity and gas to customers: generate electricily and manage cnergy purchasing: and

®  provide customer related services.

On 30th June. 2003. London Electricity Group was renamed EDF Energy ple. This “EDF Energy”
rebranding was extended to a number of EDF Encrgy ple’s subsidiaries to illustrate their integrity with EDF
Energy plc as part of one of the UK’s largest energy companices,

The diagram bejow sets out a simplified form of the current legal structure of EDF Energy ple. its
consolidated subsidiaries (together with EDF Encrgy ple, “EDF Energy™) and its intermediate and ultimate
holding companies as at 31st March, 2004.
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THE ELECTRICITY SUPPLY CHAIN
The clectricity supply chain in the UK consists of four components:
®  Generation
®  Transmission
®  Public Distribution
® Supply.

Generation involves the conversion of fuel (such as coal. gas, water or wind} into electricity by a power
station. Generation may only be undertaken by licensed generators. The output lrom a generator is passed
into the pational transmission system operated by National Grid Company plc (the “Grid™). Gencrators
earn their revenuc either from the provision of generaling capacity or the sale of electricity gencrated by
them to suppliers.

Transmisston involves the bulk transfer of electricity from a power station over high voliage transmission
networks to distribution companies, In England and Wales, transmission is undertaken by the Grid.

Public distribution mvolves the distribution of electricity received from the Grid across lower voltage local
networks to cnd consumers. Distribution may only be undertaken by licensed distributors. Distribution
companijes carn their revenue from “distribution use of system™ (“DUoS”) charges made to suppliers for
access to and use of their networks. While end consumers may choose their own supplier, all clectricity
supplicd is delivered by the licensed distributor for the consumer’s area. The income generated by a
distribution business is therefore dependent on changes in demand for electricity vather than a consumer-
changing supplier.

Supply involves the purchase of electricity and its marketing and sale to end consumers. Supply is
undertaken only by licensed suppliers. Suppliers earn their revenue from the sale of electricity to end
consumers. In addition to the cost of the electricity, suppliers must also make a DUoS payment to the
relevant distributor.

The structure of the electricity supply chain enables a person (provided they are licensed) Lo be a supplier of
clectricity without owning generation, transmission or distribution assets. The gas supply chain in the UK
is similarly structured, enabling EDF Fnergy, through its subsidiaries. to be not only a gencralor, distributor
and supplier of electricity but also a supplier of gas.

ED¥ ENERGY

EDF Energy plcitsell or through its subsidiaries participates in each part of the electricity supply chain with
the exception of transmission,

EDF Energy regards its principal activities as Talling within four major branches,

NETWORKS ENERGY CUSTOMERS
BRANCH BRANCH BRANCH BRANCH

®  Networks Branch which comprises the public distribution business

®  FEnergy Branch which comprises of the generation of electricity, energy purchasing and risk
management

®  Customers Branch which comprises of the supply business and includes the provision of customer and
metering services
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®  Development Branch which comprises investments in new business opporlunitics, major project
interesls including private electrical networks, and electrical contracting.

EDF Encrgy’s business is firmly based in the ownership of electrical infrastructure assets which operate in
both regulated monopoly (public distribution) markets and competitive (generation and supply). [ts
presence at the two competilive points of the supply chain {generation and supply) enables EDF Energy to
exploit the relevant markets at those points and provides balance. In these competitive markets EDF Energy
also benefits from ils capabilities in encrgy purchasing and risk management. EDF Energy has grown
significantly through acquisitions since 1998 and now regards itsell as being in a phase of consolidation.

NETWORKS BRANCH

The Networks Branch contributes the majority of the carnings of EDF Encrgy. 1t consists of {our major
companies. which are engaged in the public distribution networks business. The companies are EDF Energy
Networks (EPN) ple (“EPN™), EDF Energy Networks (LPN) ple (“LPN™), EDF Energy Networks (SPN)
ple (“SPN™) and EDF Energy Networks Limited (formerly 24seven Utility Services Limited) (“EN"). The
three companies, EPN, LPN and SPN (“Distribution Network Operators” or “DNO’%") hold distribution
licenses while EN is a service company providing services to the three DNO's,

Nature of Business and Regulation

The primary activity of the Networks Branch is to receive electricity from the high voltage transmission
network managed by the Grid and to distribute it over its networks to end consumers. The DNO’ are
substantially regulated monopolies which own and operate networks (the power lines, cables and
transformets) within the “distribution services areas”™ described in the distribution licences issued under the
Electricily Act 1989 as amended by the Utilities Act 2000 (“UA20007) (together, the “Acts™).

Consumers in distribution services areas are connected to the network and electricity is delivered to them
from that network irrespective of the supplier of that electricity. In many arcas virtually all the electricity
consumed is distributed over the public network, DNO' earn their revenue from DUoS charges made to
suppliers for access to and use of their networks. The income of the Networks Branch thercfore depends
on changes in demand for clectricity by consumers in the distribution services arcas rather than on a
consumer-changing supplicr. Demand for electricity 1s affected by factors such as growth in population.
soctal trends, cconomic and business growth or decline. changes in the mix of cnergy sources used by
consumers. weather conditions and encrgy efficiency measures,

Electricity distribution in Great Britain is regulated under the Acts by the Office of Gas and Electricity
Markets ("Ofgemn™).

All companies distributing clectricity in Great Britain must be licensed unless covered by an exemption.
Licences enable distribution to be carried on anywhere in Great Britain; however, they also grant special
rights Lo, and impose special obligations on. the distributers in their own distribution services arca. Licences
may be lerminated on 25 years notice given by the Secretary ol State and may be revoked in certain
circumsiances including insolvency or failure to comply with an enforcement order made by Ofgem.

DNO’s are subject 1o price reviews implemented every five years. The most recent price review became
effective on 1st April. 2000 and required a one-off reduction in average regulated revenues in 2000/1 of
29 per cent, for EPN, 27 per cent. for LPN and 33 per cent. for SPN. Average revenue in the following four
years must not increase faster than RPI-3 per cent. for all three companies. The next price review is
scheduled to be progressed in 2004 for implementation on Ist April, 2005, The price reviews impose on each
DNO a revenue cap, which provides economic incentives to opcrale in a cost-cffective manmer.
Consequently, the key success factors on which the DNOs focus include meeting or outperforming
regulatory targets, cost reduction and efficiency within the context of Improving customer services,
standards of performance and overall asset management.

Companies

The Networks Branch has a strong position in distribution. [Its three licensed DNO's {ogether, have over
7.8 million customer connections giving EDF Energy one of the largest customer bases of any electricity
distribution group in the UK. The combined regulated asset value of the Networks Branch is approximately
£2.8 billion.

The ability of the Networks Branch to meel and excced regulatory targets is enhanced by the ownership of
EN, described below.
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EDF Energy Networks ( EPN) ple
See “Description of EDF Energy Networks (EPN) plc”, below

EDF Energy Networks ( LPN} ple
See “Description of EDF Energy Networks (LPN) plc, below

EDF Energy Networks { SPN) plc
Sce “Description of EDF Energy Networks (SPN) ple”, below

EDF Energy Networks Lid

EN 15 a wholly owned subsidiary of EDF Energy ple and carries out the management and operation of
network assets owned by EPN, LPN and SPN. EN was formed as a cost control and asset management
initiative aimed at reducing cost and increasing efficiency in network services by exploiting economics of
scale, the adoption ol best practice methods, and to capture the benefit of EPN’s leading position in the
provision of cost effective network services.

Significant savings arc being realised Lhrough the consolidation of operations which will assist EPN. LPN
and SPN to mect the targets for cost reduction set by Ofgem.

ENERGY BRANCH

The Energy Branch consists of the generation of electricity, encrgy purchasing and risk management. These
activities are undertaken by EDF Energy or by various subsidiary companies,

Generation
Nature of Business and Regulation

The generation business owns and operates power stations and participates in other generation schemes
using fucls such as coal, gas and wind. The generation market comprises three segments: base load (running
throughout most of the year), mid-merit (ruaning i high demand periods). and peaking (running to supply
peak demand periods) and the output gencrated is passed into the Grid. Each segment is competitive and
therefore generators strive to ensure that fuel is purchased economically, generation in the relevant market
or markets occurs efficiently within environmental constraints and, ultimately, output is sold profitably.

Power stations typically manage their busiticsses by:
®  maintaining long term fuel contracts maiched with long term sale contracts; or

®  operating as “merchant plant” by purchasing fuc] and selling the output on a more short {erm basis:
or

®  cstablishing “tolling™ arrangements in which customers contract for the capacity of the power station
but provide their own fuel in order to produce clectrical output which they en-sell to the market or use
themselves,

Except in the case of a tolling arrangement, the risk of volatility in fuel prices and the price at which
electricity can be sold lies with the generator.

While the generation business is competitive, market participants require a generating licence to operate,
Environmental legislation, including requirements to limit emissions of sulphur diexide (in the casc of coal
generation plants) and other pollutants, also applies.

The generation portfolio is diversified between gas and coal plant and base load and mid-merit plant. The
majority of Tuel is currently contracted on a short to medium term basis. The wholly owned power stations
are contracted on a tolling basis to EDF Energy ple, which is responsible for both providing fuel Lo the
power stations and taking the output produced. The generating business is regarded as an cssential part of
the verticaily integrated energy business of EDF Energy as a whole.

Companies

EDF Energy ( Energy Branch) ple

EDF Energy’s generation business is managed through EDF Energy (Energy Branch) ple (“EB”). a wholly
owned subsidiary of EDF Energy plc. Originally incorporated in 1989 to hold a number of minority
imerests in generation activities, EB was chosen as the intermediate holding company for generalion
companies subsequently acquired by EDF Energy.
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EDF Energy’s generation business comprises:
(i) three power stations in the UK with a total generation capacity of 4818 MW, namely:

®  Suttonr Bridge Power - located in Lincolnshire, Sutton Bridge Power is a combined cycle gas
turbine power station with a design capacity of 790 MW. 1l was commissioned in May 1999 and
operates in the basc foad market. EDF Energy acquired a 100 per cent. interest in the station in
April 2000,

®  Cottam Power - Iocated in Nottinghamshire, Cottam Power is a coal-fired power station with a
capacity of 2008 MW gencrated by four units working in a two-shift regime. Il was
commissioned in 1969 and operates in the mid-merit market. EDF Energy acquired a 100 per
cent. interest in the station in December 2000.

®  West Burton Power - located mn Nottinghamshire, West Burton Power is a coal-fired power
station with a capacity of 2012 MW, It was commissioned in 1969 and operates in the mid-merit
market. EDF Energy acquired a 100 per cent. interest in the station on 30th December, 2001,

(i) interests in other gencration activities including:
® & 13.5 per cont. sharcholding in Barking Power station, located in London;

® combined heat and power plants such as those located at Heathrow Airport, Imperial College and
the Barkantine Estate: and

® wind farm schemes in North East and Eastern England.

These businesses combined comprised. as at 31st January, 2004, 8 per cent. of the generation market in the
UK. The total annual output of the generating business equates to 46 per cent. of the units sold by EDF
Energy’s supply business.

EDF Energy’s generation output balances the demand of its residential and small to medium size enterprise
customers leaving industrial and commercial to be purchased via the wholesale markets.

Each generator holds a relevant generation licence, Each of EDF Energy’s wholly owned power stations is
operated to maximise input fuel efficiently.

Generation activities are subject to a number of environmental constraints which limit the levels of
permissible emissions of power stations.

EDF Encrgy has committed £220 million to fit fluc gas de-sulphurisation plants on all eight gencration units
at its West Burton Power and Cottam Power coal-fired stations. The programme has commenced and some
plants are already operating at West Burton Power. The programme is due to be completed in 2007.

EDF Energy has also commenced a programme to manage emissions of nitrous oxides from its coal-fired
stations and lo this end expects to invest up to an aggregate of £5 million at West Burton Power and Cottam
Power stations in 2004.

All fossil fuel generating plants will be affected by the regulation of carbon cmissions pursuant to the
European Union Directive establishing a scheme for greenhouse gas emission allowance trading within
Europe which, from January 2005, will require regulated generators to hold carbon allowance certificates
equivalent to the carbon emissions of their coal or gas power stations. Such allowances will be available to
generators in accordance with a scheme currently being developed.

Energy Purchasing and Risk Management
Natwre of Business and Regulation

The principal activitics of the energy purchasing and risk management business are to sceure a compelitive
advantage for EDF Energy across the electricity supply chain. It seeks to do this by ensuring that EDF
Energy’s generation activitics are optimised and energy is provided at a competitive price for its supply
business. Price volatility provides both risk and opportunity for EDF Energy: and it is the energy
purchasing and risk management business, which manages such risk and opportunity for EDF Energy.

In March 2001, new electricity trading arrangemenis (“NETA”) were introduced in England and Wales,
which replaced the former trading arrangement known as the Electricity Pool. NETA are intended to be
more efficient and provide greater choice for market participants whilst maintaining the operation of a
secure and reliable clectricity systent. NETA are based on bilateral trading between generators, suppliers,
traders and customers, NETA is governed by the Balancing and Scttlement Code (“BSC™), which has
reptaced the Pooling and Settlement Agreement. which operated under the Pool system. The Grid is the
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system operator and is obliged to maintain the BSC, while licensed participants in the market are obliged to
conform to it.

CUSTOMERS BRANCH

The Customers Branch comprises the supply business. which sells under several brands, and the provision
of customer and metering services. These activities are undertaken by EDF Energy or by various subsidiary
companies.

Supply
Nature of Business and Regulation
The primary activities of the supply business are to market and sell electricity and gas to consumers.

Previously, the supply of eleciricity to consumers was a monopoly business. Competition was phased in
progressively and all consumers of clectricity, including residential customers, now have the ability to choosc
their licensed supplier. The business is high volume. low margin and highly competitive. Consequently,
there has been significant expense incurred by some suppliers in customer acquisition and retention. Many
suppliers have chosen to offer additional products such as gas and, in some cases, telecommunications
services. In response to the market deregulation, EDF Energy has adopted a strategy of offering electricity
and gas to residential customers,

In November 2003, EDF Energy joined the “Nectar” customer foyalty scheme in order to reward residential
customers for not switching supplier.

The income derived from the supply business depends on the volume of customers and their changes in
demand for electricity which is affected by factors such as growih and movements in population, social
trends, economic and business growth or decline, changes in the mix of energy sources used by consumers
and offered by suppliers. weather conditions and encrgy efficiency measures. The sirategy of EDF Energy’s
supply business is thercfore focused not only on customer volume, but. just as importantly, the cfficient
purchase of energy (which is carried oul by EDF Energy) and having a low “cost of service™.

As at Decomber 2003, the supply business had approximately 15 per cent of the electricity market by number
of customer accounts. EDF Encrgy currently has approximately 5.2 million customers across the UK
market, from residential customers to large commercial business.

The purchasing of energy for on-sale through the supply businesses is also undertaken by EDT Energy (see
“Energy Purchasing and Risk Management™, above) which, as part of an integrated energy group. also
owns a gencrating business.

As the market is now considered to be competitive, the supply of clectricity and gas in the UK requires a
licence but is no longer subject to price control regulation.

Brands

Market consolidation has led to rebranding of supply services with a drive towards either national or super
regional brands.

EDT Energy supplics over 5 million residential gas and electricily customers and major business customers
through its brands: London Encrgy, SEEBOARD Energy and SWEB Energy.

Companies

London Energy plc

This supply business has been formed by the acquisition of companies owning brands and licences to supply
clectricity.

London Energy plc owns the supply business of EDF Energy plc. In 1999, London Energy plc expanded its
customer base by 1.3 million custorners, mainly situaled in Devon and Cornwall. with the acquisition of the

retail business of South Western Electricity (known as SWEB). London Energy now sells electricity and gas
to customers under the Londan Energy and SWEB Energy brands.
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SEEBOARD Energy Limited

In 2002. EDF Energy acquired SEEBOARD Group ple, which owned SEEBOARD Energy Limited and its
gas retailing subsidiary SEEBOARD Energy Gas Limited. These companies sell electricity and gas to
approximately 2.1 million customers under the SEEBOARD brand.

Customer Services

The Customers Branch currently provides the customer service. billing and credit control function for the
supply business and has three purpose built call centres in Doxford, Hove and Exeter which deal with in
excess of 5.2 million customer accounts,

Metering Services

EDF Energy has two subsidiaries, ECS Metering Services Limited and ECS Data Services Limited, which
provide metering and related services mainly to the distribution and supply businesses. The scope of the
activity includes meter installation, maintenance, reading, data processing and data aggregation services.

DEVELOPMENT BRANCH
Nature of Business and Regulation

The private distribution network business aims to exploit the specialist skills of EDF Energy in the
ownership and operation of nelworks in competitive situations which are not subject to regulation and
where the majority of revenue arises from the provision of capacity rather than from the throughput of
units.

Private clectricity distribution networks are nol normally subject to regulation in the UK and usually,
therefore, no licence is required to operate such a business. EDF Energy, however, secks to offer customers
high standards of supply. security and service.

Companies
EDF Energy { Services) Limited

EDF Encrgy (Services) Limited (“EIDFES™) is a wholly owned subsidiary of EDF Energy which operates
the private electricily distribution networks business.

EDFLS owns and operates high voltage electrical distribution networks situated on private premises [or
consumers such as:

®  airport operators: BAA ple {(where it owns and operates nearly 200 substations and over 300
kilometres of high voltage cable a1l Heathrow, Gatwick and Stansted airports) and London City
Airport;

®  railways: development of the Channel Tunnel Rail Link, the City Greenwich Rail Link and the
Eurostar terminals at Waterloo and Manchester; and

® commecrcial buildings: Canary Wharf and the Centre Point tower.

EDFES intends to grow its business organically through planned extensions of the networks alrcady owned
and through new opportunities to build new andf/or acquire existing networks.

EDF Enevgy ¢ Asset Management ) Limited

EDF Energy (Asset Management) Limited (formerly SEEBOARD Asset Management Limited) is
responsible for business development activities and for the ongoing management of EDF Energy (South
Eastj plc’s infrastructure imvestment portiolio.

EDF Energy (Scuth East} plc has a number of infrastructure investments., including: an 80 per cent. stake
in SEEBOARD Powerlink Limited. the operating company which., in 1998, won a 30-year contract to
manage and renew the eicctricity network and generation assets of the London Underground system under
the Government’s Private Finance Initiative (*PFI”); an unincorporated joint venture interest i Metronet
Consortium which has suecessfully bid for the London Underground Public Private Partnership projects;
and SEEBOARD Trading Limited (the holding company of SEEBOARD Contracting Services Limited
and SEEBCARD Highway Services Limited) which carries out electrical contracting work ranging from low
voltage wiring to Jarge-scale engineering projects and PFI Highway Lighting projects respectively.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors of EDF Energy ple and their funclions are listed below:
Executive Directors Position Other Significant Activities
Vincent de Rivaz Chicf Exccutive

Humphrey Cadoux-Hudson Chiel Financial Officer

Non-executive Directors

Michel Cremicux Chairman, EDF Energy (UK) Limited
Chairman., EDF Energy Group Holdings plc
Director, FENICE SpA
Dircctor, Ital Encrgia Bis SpA
Director, EDISON SpA

Gerard Creuzet Chairman, EDEV SA
Director, OALKIA
Director, EDF International SA

Yann Laroche

Anne le Lorier Director, Risques Assurance Conseil Electricité SAS
Director, EDF Capital Investissement
Director, EDF International SA
Chairman, Electropar France SA

The Directors of EDF Energy plc have their business address at 40 Grosvenor Place, Victoria, London,
SWIX 7EN.
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CAPITALISATION AND INDEBTEDNESS OF EDF ENERGY PLC

The following table scts out the consolidated capitalisation and indebtedness of EDDF Energy ple and its
subsidiaries as at 31st December, 2003:

As at

31st December,

2003

£ miilion
Sharcholders’ Funds
Share capital:

Issued: 2,222.739.164 ordinary shares of 584 penceeach .. .. .. .. . . . . 1,296.6
Share premium account .. .. . . e e e e e e e e e 13.9
Capital redemption reserve .. . e e e el L 11.0
Profit and loss account as at Deccmbcr 2003 e e e e e 515.5

1.837.0
Indebtedness
Unsecured:

Amounts falling due within one year .. .. .. .. . . . . . . . . . . 693.3

Amounts falling due after more thanone year .. .. .. . . . . . . . . 2,371.9
Total Indebtedness .. .. .. .. .. . . . . o . L L L L L L L. 3.065.2
Total Capitalisation and Indebtedness .. .. .. .. .. . . . . . . . . . 49022
Noles.

{1}  The authorised share capital of EDF Energy ple at 31st December, 2003 was £1.450.000,000 comprising 2,228.713,439 ordinary
shares of 58%p each and 300.000,002 ordinary shares of 50p each. All of the issued shares were luily paid.

{2} Save as disclosed in note (3) below, none of the indebledness of EDF Energy ple is guaranteed or secured.

(3)  EDF Energy plc has a £500 million unsecuwred banking facility which is guaranteed by EDF Energy (Energy Branch) ple. EDF
Energy (Services) Limited and London Energy ple.

{4) Under Part 1T A of the Envirenmental Protection Act 1990, retroactive lizbility may be imposed on landowners for land
identified by local authorities as contaminated. Land can be identified as contaminated for a variety of reasons. If EDF Energy
plc’s sites are contuminated. clean up costs may be incurred in the tuture. However, it is not possible to reliably estimate or
quantify any such future costs, if any.

(5)  Save as disclosed in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements of EDF Energy plc for the year ended 31st December, 2003
on page 92 of this Qffering Circular, and note (4) above, as at 315t December, 2003, EDF Encergy ple had no material contingent
liabilities or gnarantees.

{6y Save as disclosed above. there has been no material change in sharehelders’ funds. indebtedness, contingent liabilities or
guarantees of EDF Energy plc since 315t December. 2003.
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DESCRIPTION OF EDF ENERGY NETWORKS (LPN) PL.C

BACKGROUND

LPN was incorporated under the name London Power Networks Limited with limited liability in England
and Wales under the Companies Act 1985 on 15th February, 2000. [t was registered as a public limited
company on 18th September, 2001 to become London Power Networks ple. It is a wholly owned subsidiary
of EDF Energy ple. LPN commenced trading on st October, 2001 when the transfer scheme under the
UAZ000 became effective and it acquired the assets and liabilities of the distribution business of EDF
Energy ple.

London Power Networks plc was renamed EDF Energy Networks (LPN) ple on 30th June, 2003 as part of
the “EDF Energy™ rebranding.

LPN derives nearly all its income from licensed regulated monopoly activities.

BUSINESS

LPN owns, operates and manages EDF Energy plc’s licensed electricity network assets in most of the
Greater London arca, comprising primarily:

® 30,000 kilometres of underground cables: and

® 14,500 substations and transformer chambers.

Almost the entire network is underground, making it more stable and reliable compared with primarily
overhead networks.

LPN distributes approximately 23TWh of clectricity annually to more than 2 million domestic and
commercial customers including financial institutions, offices, shops and government departments in the
Greater London area. Approximately 60 per cent. of these units are delivered to commercial customers and
30 per cent, to domestic customers. Virtually all electricity consumed within LPN’s service area is distributed
over the public network irrespective of the supplier of that electricity. This provides LPN with a stable
distribution volume unaffecied by chotce of supplier.

EN places EDF Energy in a strong position to bring the same economiecs {o any expansion of LPN’s
business.

Board of Birectors

The Dircctors of LPN and thetr functions are listed below:

Executive Directors Position Other Significant Activities

Vincent de Rivaz Director Chief Executive, EDF Energy plc
Humphrey Cadoux-Hudson Director Chief Finaneial Officer. EDF Energy ple
Paul Cuttill Director

Robert Jan Higson Secretary

The Directors of LPN have their business address at 40 Grosvenor Place, Victoria, London, SW1X 7EN.
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CAPITALISATION AND INDEBTEDNESS OF EDF ENERGY NETWORKS (LLPN) PLC

The following table scts out the capitalisation and indebtedness of EDF Energy Networks (LPN}) plc as at
31st December, 2003:

As at

3ist December,

2003

£ million
Shareholders’ Funds
Share capital:

Issued: 10,000,000 ordinary sharesof £l each .. . .. .. . . . . . . . 10.0
Profit and loss account .. .. . . . L L L L L L L Lo .. 260.4
270.4
Indebtedness
Unsecured:

Amounts falling due after more than one year . . .. . . . . . . . . 5359.6
Total Indebtedness .. .. .. .. . . . . o L L L L L L L L L L 559.6
Total Capitalisation and Indebtedness .. .. .. . .. . . . . . . . . . 830.0
Notes:

(1) The authorised share capital of EDF Energy Networks (LPN) ple at 31st December, 2003 was £10.000.000 comprising
10,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each. All of the issued shares were fully paid.

{2)  None of the indebtedness of EDF Energy Networks (LPN) ple is guaranteed or secured.

{3)  Under Part I[ A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, retroactive liability may be imposed on landowners for land
identified by local autherities as contaminated. Land can be identified as contaminated for a variety of reasons. If LPN's sites
are corttaminated. clean up costs may be incurred in the future, However, it is not possible to reliably estimate or quantify any
such future costs. if any.

{4y Save as disclosed in note (3) ubove, as at 31st December. 2003, EDF Energy Networks (LPN) ple had ne material contingent
liabilitics or guarantees,

(5) Save as disclosed above, there has been no material change in sharcholders™ funds, indebtedness. contingent liabilities or
guarantees of EDF Energy Networks (LPN} ple since 3{st December, 2003.
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DESCRIPTION OF EDF ENERGY NETWORKS (EPN) PLC

BACKGROUND

EPN was incorporaled under the name Eastern Electricity Limited with limited liability in England and
Wales under the Companics Act on 1st April, 1989, The name was changed to EPN Distribution Limited
and the company registered as a public limited company on 16th April. 2003 to become known as EPN
Distribution plc. Prior to st October, 2001 (before the transfer scheme under the UA2000 became eflective)
it held a PES Licence to operale an electricity distribution and supply business in an authorised supply area
covering parts of North Londen and both rural and urban areas of Eastern England.

After the transler scheme became effective. EPN retained its distribution business while other non-
distribution activities, including supply. were transferred by TXU Eurepe Group PLC (“TXU™) (EPN’s
owner at the time) to other entities within the TXU group. EPN was acquired by EDF Energy plc from
TXU on 18th January, 2002,

EPN Distribution plc was renamed EDF Energy Networks (EPN) plc on 30th June. 2003 as part of the
“EDF Energy” rebranding.

EPN derives nearly all its income from licensed regulated monopoly aclivities.

BUSINESS

EPN holds a distribution licence covering a distribution services arca of approximately 20,300 square
kilometres in parts of North London and both rural and urban areas of Eastern England. It owns, operates
and manages EDF Energy’s public electricity network assets in that area comprising primarily:

e 35000 kilometres of overhead lines:

® 55,000 kilometres of underground cables:

® 34,500 pole mounted transformers: and

® 29,600 ground mounted transformers
making it the largest network in Great Britain.

The EPN nctwork distributes approximately 34TWh of electricity annually to over 3.4 million customers.
Virtually all electricity consumed within EPN’% service area is distributed over the public network
irrespective of the supplier of that electricity. This provides EPN with a stable distribution volume
unaffected by choice of supplier.

To enable the Networks Branch of EDF Energy achieve its key success factors for the distribution
businesscs. EN was established as an initiative to control costs and manage assets with a view to reducing
cost and increasing efficiency in network services by cxploiting econemics of scale and the adoption of best
practice methods.

Significant savings are being realised through the consolidation of operations which will assist EPN, LPN
and SPN to meet the targets for cost reduction set by Ofgem.

Board of Directors

The Directors of EPN and thewr functions are listed below:

Executive Directors Position Other Significant Activities

Vincent de Rivaz Director Chief Executive, EDF Energy plc
Humphrey Cadoux-Hudson Director Chiel Financial Officer, EDF Energy ple
Paul Cuttill Dircector

Robert Ian Higson Secretary

The Directors of EPN have their business address at 40 Grosvenor Place. Victoria, London, SWI1X 7EN.
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CAPITALISATION AND INDEBTEDNESS OF EDF ENERGY NETWORKS (EPN) PLC

The following table sets out the capitalisation and indebtedness of EDDF Energy Networks (EPN) ple as at
31st December, 2003:

Ay at
31ist December,
2003

£ million
Sharcholders’ Funds
Share capital:

Issued: 251,513,142 ordinary shares of £0.30 each .. .. .. . . .. . . . . 125.8
Share premium .. . e e e e e L 5.6
Capital Redemption Reset VE L o e e e e e e e 10.6
Profit and loss account .. .. . . L L L L Lo o 104.5

246.5
Indebtedness
Unsecured:

Amounts falling due within one year .. .. .. .. . . . . . . . . .. 3755

Amounts falling due after more 1bdn one yedr f e e e e 396.3
Total Indebtedness .. .. .. .. . .. . . . . L L L L L L ... 771.8
Total Capitalisation and Indebtedness .. . .. . . . . . . . . . . . 1.018.3
Notes:

(1) The authorised share capital of EDF Energy Networks (EPN) ple at 31st December. 2003 was £400,000.000 comprising
251.513,142 ordinary shares of £0.50 cach. All of the issued shares were fully paid.

(2)  None of the indebtedness of EDF Energy Networks (EPN) ple is guaranteed or secured.

(3)  Under Part II A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, retroactive liability may be imposed on landowners for land
identified by local authorities as contaminated. Land can be identified as contaminated for a variety of reasons. If EPN's sites
are contaminated, clean up costs may be incurred in the future. However, it is not possible to reliably estimate or quantify any
such future costs, if any.

(4} Save as disclosed in note (3) above. as at 3ist December. 2003, EDF Energy Networks (EPN) ple had ne material contingent
liabilities or guaraniees.

(3)  Save as disclosed above. there has been no material change in shareholders’ funds. indebtedness, contingent liabilities or
guarantees of EDF Energy Networks (EPN) ple since 3[st December, 2003,
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DESCRIPTION OF EDF ENERGY NEFYWORKS (SPN) PLC

BACKGROUND

SPN was incorporated under the name Home Gas Company Limited with timited liability in England and
Wales under the Companies Act 1985 on 7th April, 1995. The name was changed to SPN Limited and the
company registered as a public limited company on 6th June, 2001 to become known as SPN ple. SPN does
not have any principal subsidiary undertakings or associated company undertakings. SPN is a wholly
owned subsidiary of EDF Energy (South East) plc. On st October, 2001, SPN was granted an electricity
distribution licence under the Acts, to distribute in its authorised arca. SPN derives nearly all its income
from licensed regulated monopoly activities.

On 29th July. 2002, EDF Energy plc acquired CSW Investments, the parent company of the SEEBOARD
group of companies. for a total consideration of £3.670 million, plus the assumption of net debt of
approximately £720 million. The SEEBOARD business is comprised of SPN, SEEBOARD Energy Limited
and EDF Energy (Asset Managemen{) Limited, which has a number of infrastructure investments and
related businesses.

SPN plc was renamed EDF Energy Networks (SPN) ple on 30th June, 2003 as part of the “EDF Energy”
rebranding,
BUSINESS

SPN helds a distribution licence covering a distribution service arca of approximately 8,200 square
kilometres which covers the county of Kent and the majorily of cach of the counties of Sussex and Surrey
in the UK. SPN owns, operates and maintains the public distribution network assets in that arca comprising
primarily:

® 12,200 kilometres of overhead lines:

®  33.200 kilometres of underground cables:
® 32800 transformers; and

® 39,300 substatlions.

The primary aciivity of SPN is the distribution of electricity on behalf of suppliers from the high voltage
national transmission system to end users connected within SPN’s service area. Virtually all electricity
consumed within SPN service area is distributed over the public network irrespective of the supplier of that
electricity. This provides SPN with a stable distribution volume unaffected by choice of supplier.

SPN distributes approximaltely 21TWh of electricity annually to 2.2 millien customer connections.

SPN together with LPN and EPN gives EDF Energy the largest public networks distribution business in the
UK with a combined regulated asset value of £2.8 billion.

Significant savings are being realised through the consolidation of operations of EPN and LPN. EDF
Energy’s ownership of EN provides a strong position to bring the same economies to SPN,

Board of Directors

The Directors of SPN and their functions are listed below:

Executive Directors Position Other Significant Activities

Vincent de Rivaz Director Chiel Executive, EDF Energy ple
Humphrey Cadoux-Hudson Director Chief Financial Officer. EDF Energy plc
Paul Cuttill Director

Robert lan Higson Secretary

The Directors of SPN have their business address at 40 Grosvenor Place, Victoria, London. SWI1X 7E_N_
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CAPITALISATION AND INDEBTEDNESS OF EDF ENERGY NETWORKS (SPN) PLC

The following table sets out the capitalisation and indebtedness of EDF Energy Networks (SPN) plc as at
31st December, 2003:

As at
31st December,
2003

£ milfion
Shareholders’ Funds
Share capital:

Issued: 50,000 ordinary sharesof £leach .. .. . . . . . . . . . . 0.1

Profit and loss account .. .. .. . L L L oo 124.9
125.0

Indebtedness

Unsecured:

Amounts falling due after more than one year .. .. .. .. . . . . . . . 445.8
Total Indebtedness .. .. .. .. . . . . . L L L .o 445.8
Total Capitalisation and Indebtedness .. .. .. .. .. . . . . . . . . . 570.8
Notes:

(1}  The authorised share capital of EIDF Energy Networks (SPN}Y ple at 31st December. 2003 was £50.000 comprising 50.000
ordinary shares of £1 each. All of the issued shares were fully paid.

2) Save as disclosed in note (3) below, none of the indebtedness of EDF Encrgy Networks (SPN) ple is guasanteed or sccured.

(3)  The obligations of EDF Energy Networks (SPN) plc under the £100m bonds due October 2005 are guaranteed by EDY Energy
{Scuth East) plc.

4y Under Part 11 A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, retroactive liability may be imposed on landowners for fand
identified by local authorities as contaminated. Land can be identified as contaminated for a variety of reausons. If SPNs sites
are contaminated, clean up costs may be incurred in the future. However. it is not possible to reliably estimate or quantify any
such future costs. il any.

{5} Save as disclosed in note {4) above, as at 31st December, 2003, EDF Energy Networks (SPN) ple had no material conhingent
liabilitics or guarantees.

{6)  Save as disclosed above, there has been no material change in sharcholders’ funds, indebtedness. contingent liabilities or
guarantees of EDF Energy Networks (SPN) ple since 3tst December, 2003.
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COMPARATIVE AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
EDF ENERGY PLC FOR THE TWO YEARS ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2003

The following financial statements have been extracted without material adjustment from the

audited consolidated financial statements of EDF Energy plc for the vear ended

3ist December, 2003

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

For the year ended 31st December, 2003

Turnover
Turnover group and share of joinl ventures
Less: share of joint ventures turnover ..

Conlinuing operations — ongoing ..
- acquisitions ..

Group turnover ..
Cost of sales..

Gross profit ..
Net operating costs ..

Operating profit .. Ce .
Continuing operations - ongoing ..
-~ acquisitions ..

Group operating profit . .. .. . . .
Share of opcrating profit in joint ventures
Share of operating profil in associate undertakings

Total operating profit -- group and share of joint
ventures and associates .
Profit on disposal of fixed assets ..

Profit on ordinary activities before investment
income, interest and taxation

Investiment income .. e e

Interest receivable and similar income

Interest payable and similar charges

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on proiit on ordinary activities

Profit on ordinary activities after taxation ..
Minority intercsts

Profit for the financial year ..
Dhvidends

Retained profit for the financial year

Note

10

I1
27

2003
£fm

3.621.0

(114.6)

3,500.4

3,506.4
(2,005.7)

1,500.7

(944.2)

556.5

556.5
23.8
9.9

590.2
53.7

643.9
39
36.5

(256.7)

427.6

(163.2)

264.4
(0.8)

263.6

(76.2)

187.4

Restated
2002
£

28704

(35.2)

2,108.3
726.9

2.835.2
(1.466.2)

1.369.0

(1.025.8)

123.4
219.8

343.2
2.4
6.3

3519
5.9

357.8
0.4
37.1

(198.1)

197.2

(91.4)

105.8
(3.6}

102.2

(88.0)

14.2

Prior year figures have been restated 1o show the effect of the changes in accounting policies (note 35).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

For the year ended 31st December, 2003

Restated
2003 2002
Note fm £m
Profit for the financial year.. .. .. .. . . . 187.4 14.2
Total recognised gains and losses relating to the
year .. .. . . . ... 187.4 14.2
Prior year adjustment  change in accounting
policy .. .. . . . . . L L L L. 35 (143.6)
Total recegnised gains and losses since Jast annual
report .. . . . L L . e 43.8

Prior year figures have been restated to show the offect of the changes in accounting policies (note 35).

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN GROUY SHAREHOLDER’S FUNDS

For the year ended 315t December, 2003

Restated

2003 2002

Note £m £

Profit for the financial year.. .. .. . . . . 263.6 102.2
Dividends .. .. .. . . . . L L L . 11 (76.2) (88.0)
Retained profit for the year .. .. . .. . . . 187.4 14.2
New share capital subscribed .. 920.1
Net increase in equity shareholder’s funds .. .. .. 187.4 934.3
Opening equity shareholders funds .. .. .. .. 1,649.6 715.3
Closing equity sharcholder’s funds .. . .. .. .. 1,837.0 1.649.6

Prior year figures have been restated to show the effect of the changes in accounting policies (note 35).
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At 31st December, 2003

Fixed assets
Intangible assets

Goodwiil .. .
Negative goodwill .,

Total intangible asscts

Tangible assets .

Investments in subsidlary undenakmgs
Investments in joint ventures:

Share of gross assets ..

Share of gross liabilities .. .
Sharce of net assets in joint ventures .
Investments in associates
Other investments ..

Current assets
Stock..
Debtors - amounts falhng due
After more than one year..
Within one year
Less - securitisation of tradc deblms
Net debtors failling due within one year
Investments: unlisted money market
nvestments .. .
Cash at bank and in hd]‘ld .

Total current assets

Creditors (amounts (alling due within
one year) ..

Net current liabilities ..

Total assets less current liabilities ..
Creditors (amounts failing duc after

more than one year) -
Provision for liabilities and charges
Minority interest ..

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital
Share premium account ..
Capital redemption reserve ..
Profit and loss account .,

Equity shareholder’s funds

BALANCE SHEETY

Group Compuany

Restated Restared

2003 2002 2003 2002

Note £m £ £m fm

1,297.2 1.375.7 - -

(39.9) (42.2) -

12 1,257.3 1.333.5 -

13 5,157.8 49104 129.3 98.1
! - 2,340.6 2,313.3
175.4 153.8 - -

(159.0) (151.2) - -

15 16.4 2.6 - _
6 i.3 57.2 8.5 8.5
17 10.5 7.1 10.5 6.3
6,443.3 6.310.8 2,488.9 2.426.2

18 118.1 115.9 64.5 77.7
19 - - 1.0 i3.0
982.9 8396 502.6 348.2

(175.5) {190.4)

19 8074 649.2 502.6 348.2
26.2 371 1.6 -

120.1 110.0 - 43.6

1.071.8 912.2 569.1 482.5
20 (2,100.8) (2.352.0) {1,312.2) (1.297.4)
(1,029.0) (1.439.8) (743.1) (814.9)

54143 4,871.0 1,745.8 1.,611.3
21 (2,749.3} {2.335.6) (347.0) (227.7)
24 (824.2) (881.6) (29.7) (66.6)
(3.8} (4.2} - -

1,837.0 1.649.6 1,369.1 1.317.0

26 1,296.6 1.296.6 1,296.6 1.296.6
27 13.9 13.9 13.9 13.9
27 11.0 11.0 11.9 11.0
27 515.5 328.1 47.6 (4.5)
1,837.0 1.649.6 1,369.1 1,317.0

Prior year figures have been restaled to show the effect of the change in accounting policy.

The accounts on pages 60 to 94 were approved by the Board of Directors on 15th March, 2004 and were

signed on its behall by:
Vincent de Rivaz
Chief Executive

Director

Humphrey A K Cadoux-Hudson




GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the pear ended 3Ist December, 2003

2003 2002
Note £m £
Net cash inflow from pperating activities .. .. . 28 675.5 762.3
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received.. .. .. . . . L L L . 8.8 10.0
Interest paid.. .. .. .. (200.1) (168.6)
Interest element of finance Ecasc rcnldl pdymcnts (23.4) (26.8)
Dividends received from investments ,, ., .. . 2.0 04
Dividends paid to minority interests ., .. .. .. (1.2}
(213.9) {185.0}
Taxation
Corpeoration tax paid .. .. .. . . . . . (30.2) (80.5)
(30.2) {80.5
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets .. .. .. (535.1) {536.7)
Receipts of customer contributions .. .. .. . 124.0 135.5
Receipts from sales of tangible fixed assets .. .. 57.3 18.1
Loans to other EDF Energy plc group companies (29.1) {157.2)
Receipts from sale of investments .. .. .. 37 0.3
Receipts from repayment of loan from joint vn,nture - 1.2
Receipts from repayment of loan from investment 0.8
(378.4) {(538.8)
Acquisitions and disposals . e e e
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings .. .. . . - (1,049.3)
Net cash acquired with subsidiary under takmgs - 61.6
Receipts from sale of associate .. .. .. . . 56.1
56.1 (987.7)
Equity dividends paid .. .. .. .. . . .. . (76.2) (108.0)
Net cash outflow before management of liquid
resources and financing .. .. .. . . . . 32.9 (1,137.5)
Management of liquid resources
Decrease/(increase) in short-term deposits .. ., 10.9 (2.8)
10.9 (2.8)
Financing
Issue of ordinary share capital.. .. .. . . . - 920.1
Increase/(dccrease) in short term borrowing .. .. (832.4) 376.0
New Jong-term loans .. .. e e e 807.1 3454
Repayments of long-term loans o . - {411.5)
Repayments of capital element of fmance lcaqcs 8.4) (5.2)
(33.7) 1,224.8
Increase in cash for the year .. .. .. .. . . 10.1 84.5
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GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT - continued

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt

Increcase in cash for the year .
{Decrease)increase in liquid resources
Increase/{decrease) in short term loans
Increase in long term loans
Repayment of long-term loans

Repayments of capital element of lm‘mcc ICdQCS

Change in net debt resulting from cash flows..

Net non-cash movements - amortisation of fair
value adjustments, amortisation of debt issue
costs and index linked bond loan acerction

Exchange differences

Net debt on acquisitions

Movement in net debt .
Net debt at 1st January ..

Net debt at 315t December ..

o4

2003

Note £m

10.1
(10.9)
832.4

(807.1)

8.4
329

21,5

54.4
28 (3.341.7)

28 (3,287.3)

2002
£

84.5
2.8
(376.0)
(345.4)
411.5
5.2

(217.4)

33.0
4.8

(1,719.8)

(1,899.4)
(1.442.3)

(3.341.7)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.  Accounting policies
Basis of preparation

Thesc financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
applicable Accounting Standards in the United Kingdom.

In preparing the financial statements for the current year, the Group has discontinued its policy of
discounting of deferred tax asscts and liabilities. This change in accounting policy has been reflected in the
accounts as 4 prior year adjustment in accordance with FRS 3. The impact of the change in accounting
policy, including restatement of prior year comparatives, is shown in note 35.

The Group is [ollowing the transitional arrangements of FRS 17 ‘Retirement benefits”. The required
disclosures are shown in note 29. Full adoption of the standard is required by the year ended 31st December,
2005,

Consolidation

The Group accounts incorporate the accounts of the Company and all subsidiary undertakings afler
climinaling intercompany transactions for the financial year. No profit and loss account is presented for
EDF Energy plc (formerly London Electricity Group ple) (the Company) in accordance with the exemptions
allowed by Scction 230 of the Companies Act 1985,

Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings and other businesses

The results of subsidiary undertakings and other businesses acquired are included in the Group profit and
loss account from the date that control passes. In accordance with FRS 6 and 7. on acquisition of a business,
including an interest in an associated undertaking. fair values are attributed to the Group’s share of the
identifiable assets and liabilities existing at the date of acquisition and reflecting the conditions at that date,

Goodwill

Goodwill is the diffcrence between the cost of an acquired entity and the aggregate of the fair values of that
entity’s identifiable assets and liabilitics.

Positive goodwill is capitalised, classified as an asset on the balance sheet and amortised on a straight-line
basis over its useful economic life. 1t is reviewed for impairment at the end of the first (ull financtal year
following the acquisitton and in other periods if events or changes in circumstances indicale that the
carrying value may not be recoverable.

Negative goodwill is similarly included in the balance shect and 1s credited to the profit and loss account in
the periods in which the acquired non-monetary assets are recovered through depreciation or sale. Negative
goodwill in excess of the fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired is credited to the profit and loss
account in the periods expected to benefit.

Goodwill which arose on the acquisition of the assets and liabilities of’ Sutton Bridge power station is being
amortised over 40 years. The Directors consider that businesses within the UK generation industry
commonly have useful lives in excess of the 20 years presumed by FRS 10. The Directors expect the business
at Sutton Bridge to continuc for 40 years. This period of amortisation has been chosen, as it is management’s
best estimate of the usctul life of goodwill. Other goodwill is amortised over 20 years. Sutton Bridge
goodwill is rcviewed every year for impairment and other goodwill is reviewed if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Joint ventures

The Group profit and loss account includes the Group’s share of turnover. operating profit., interest and
taxation of joint ventures. Investmenlts in joint ventures are shown in the Group balance sheet using the
gross equity method. The gross equity method records the Group’s share of gross assets and liabilities in its
joint ventures. These arc taken from the latest management accounts of the undertakings concerned.
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Associated ondertakings

The Group’s share of profits less losses of associated undertakings is included in the consolidated profit and
loss account. and the Group’s share of their net assets and liabilities is included in the consolidated balance
sheet. These amounts are taken [rom the latest management accounts of the undertakings concerned.

Tangible fixed assets

The cost of individual tangible fixed assets is their purchase cost, together with any incidental expenses of
acquisition. Cost includes staff costs where employees participate directly in the construction of assets.
Depreciation is provided on all tangible {ixed assets, other than frechold land, at rates calculated to write off
the cost or valuation {no allowance is made for residual value). based on prices prevailing at the date of
acquisition or revaluation. of each asset evenly over its expected useful life, as follows:

2003 2002
Years Yeurs
Generation assets 10te 30 [01e 30
Network assets - 10 to 60 10 to 60
Freehold land Not depreciated Not depreciated
Other buildings
- freehold Upto40 Up to 40
- leasehold - Lower of lease period or 40 Lower of lease period or 40
Vehicles and mobile plant : S5to 10 5to 10
Fixtures and equipment - 308 Jto8

including computer hardware
and software

The carrying values of tangible fixed assels are reviewed for impairment when evenls or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Major systems development software costs are capitalised during the development phase and depreciated
from the date of commissioning over a maxirum period of § years.

Consumers” contributions towards distribution network assets, which include capital grants. are credited to
the profit and loss account over the lives of the distribution network assets to which they relate. The
unamortised amount of such contributions is shown as a deduction from fixed assets. Tlis 15 a departure
from the Companics Act 1985 requirements which require fixed assets to be included at their purchase price
or production cost and hence the contribution would be presented as deferred income. However,
contributions relate direetly to the cost of fixed assets used in the distribution network and it is the opinton
of the Directors that the treatment adopted s necessary to give a true and fair view. The valuc of the
contributions is shown in Note 13.

Interest
Interest payable/reccivable is charged/credited to the profit and loss account as it is accrued.

Previously, the Group capitalised interest gross during the period of construction where it related cither to
the financing of major projects with long periods of development or to dedicated financing of other projects.
As explained in note 35, this policy has changed. Comparative figures have been restated as required.

Stock

Stock is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The valuation of work in progress is based on
the cost of labour and materials. The cost elemcents of progress invoices are deducted in arriving at the
amounts stated.

Profit is taken on contracts whilst the contract is in progress. having regard o the proportion of the total
contract which has been completed at the balance sheet date. Provision is made for all foresecable future
losses.

Long term contracts

Long term contracts are valued at cost plus attributable profit less any foreseeable losses. Profit is recognised
when the outcome of a contract can be assessed with reasonable certainty. The excess of turnover over
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payments on account is included in debtors. To the extent payments on account exceed tarnover and long-
term coutract balances they are included as payments on account within creditors. The amount of
expenditure on long term contracts net of amounts transferred to cost of sales and payments on account
are separately included within stock.

The contract between SEEBOARD Powerlink and London Underground for the operation, maintenance
and upgrade of the electricity supply network for the London Underground railway is being accounted for
as a long term contract, with profits being recognised in line with progress on defined segments of the
contract.

Fixed asset investments including subsidiary undertaking and joint ventures

Fixed assct investments arc shown at cost less any provision for permanent diminution in value.

Current asset investments

Current asset investments are shown at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the
balance sheet date where transactions or events that result in an obligation {o pay more. or a right to pay
less, 1ax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date, with the following exceptions:

®  Provision is made for gains on disposal of fixed assets that have been rolled over into replacement
assets only where, at the balance sheet date, this is a commitment to dispose of the replacement assets
with no likely subsequent rollover or available capital losses.

®  Provision is made for gains on revalued fixed assels only where there is a commilment to dispose of the
revalued assets and the attributable gain can neither be rolled over or climinated by capital losses.

®  Deferred tax assets are recognised only 1o the extent that the Directors consider that it is more likely
than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying
timing difference can be deducted.

Deferred tax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis. Previously, deferred tax was measured on a discounted
basis. Comparative figures have been restated as required {note 35).

Research and development

Expenditure on research is written off to the profit and loss account in the period in which it is incurred.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in {oreign currencics are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assels and liabilities denominated in {oreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

Leasing and hire purchase commitments

Asscts held under finance leases are. leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset have passed to the Group and hire purchase contracts which are capitalised in the balance sheet. Assets
held under finance leases are depreciated over their useful lives. The capital elements of {uture obligations
under the leases and hire purchase contracts are included as liabilities in the balance sheet.

The interest clements of the rental obligations are charged in the profit and loss account over the periods of
the leases and hire purchase contracts, and represenl a constant proportion of the balance of capital
repayments outstanding,

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged in the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Pensions

At the year end the Group operated both defined contribution pension schemes and defined benefit pension
schemes. Contributions in respect of the deflined contribution pension schemes are charged to the profit and
loss account as they become payable in accordance with the ruies of the schemes.
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The costs of providing pensions in respect of defined benefit pension schemes are charged to the profit and
loss account so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working lives. The pension cost is assessed
in accordance with the advice of qualified actuaries,

The Group has included the disclosure requirements of FRS 17 in note 29, together with details of pension
and funding arrangements.

Derivatives and other financial instruments

The Group holds or issues {inancial instruments for three main purposes:
- to {inance its operations;
~ to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from its sources of finance; and
----- for cnergy procurement purposes.

The Group finances its operations by a mixture of retained profits, bank borrowings, medium and long term
loans and commercial paper. The Group borrowings has borrowings denominated in Sterling. Euros and
Dollars at both fixed and floating rates of intcrest, using derivatives where appropriate to generale the
destred cffective currency profile and interest rate basis.

The majority of the Group’s sales of electricity and gas are at fixed prices. The Group utilises fixed price
contracts such as forward purchasc contracts to hedge the risks arising from this exposure.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments arc interest rate risk. foreign currency risk and
commodity price risk. The Group’s policy for managing these risks is summarised below and is defined in
statements authorised by the Board of Directors and reviewed on an annual basis. Authority for managing
risk consistent with this corporate policy may be delegated by the Board to. amongst others, treasury and/or
energy purchasing departments.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure Lo interest rate fluctuations on its borrowings and deposits s managed by using fixed
rate debt instruments and derivative financial instruments. The Group’s policy is to use derivatives to reduce
exposure o short term interest rates and not for speculative purposes.

Amounts payable or receivable in respect of swaps are recognised as adjustments to inlerest expense over the
period of the contract. Interest rate swaps are not revalued Lo fair value or shown on the Group balance
sheet at the year-end. 1T the interest rate swaps were to be sold or terminated, any gain or loss would be
deferred and amortised over the remaining life of the debt instrument being hedged by the interest rate
swaps. If the debt instrument being hedged by the inlerest rate swaps were to be extinguished, any gain or
loss attributable to the swaps would be recognised in the period ol the transaction.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s present exposure Lo foreign currency risk is limited to the hedging of the currency exposure on
the service of interest and capital on US dollar and Euro dencininated debt, and the purchase of energy
sources for generation activity. The Group policy is to hedge/fix known currency cxposures as they arise. The
currency swap agrecment fixes the Sterling equivalent that will be required to service the debt.

The foreign exchange rates under such contracts are used to record the hedged item. As a result, gains and
losses are offset against the foreign exchange gains and losses on the related financial assets and habilities,
or where the instrument 15 used to hedge a commitied, or probable, future transaction, are deferred until the
transaction occurs.

Commodity price risk

Due to the vertically integrated nature of the Group the electricity demand from the retail business provides
a natural hedge for the clectricity procured from the generation business, Any residual exposure Lo
movemnents in the price of clectricity, gas or coal is mitigaied by enlering mto contracts and hedging options
on the forward markets. Risk of loss is monitored through establishment of approved counterparties and
maximum counterparty limits and minimum credit ratings.

Gaims and losses on these contracts and option premia paid are deferred and recognised in the income
statement when the hedged transaction occurs.
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2. Turnover, profit and net assets by business

Class of husiness

Networks Branch
Continuing ..
Acquisition .. .. .. .
Total Networks Branch

Customers and Energy
Branches
Continuing ..
Acquisition .. ., ..
Total Customers and
Energy Branches..

Development Branch
Conlinuing ..

Acquisition .. .
Total Development Branch

Other

Continuing ..

Acquisition .. y

Total service providers
and others

Less: inter business
transactions ..

Total Continuing and
Acquired operations

Net debt before joint
ventures and associates
Share of joint ventures
and associates .
Profit on sale of fixed

assets .. o
Net interest and income
{rom mnvestments

Profit on ordinary
activities before taxation

Net assets

Turnover

12 months

Operating profit

12 months

Net operating assets

12 months

12 months to 12 months to 12 months to

to December fo December fo December

December 2002 December 2002 December 2002
2003 { Restated) 2003 { Restated ) 2003 { Restated )

£m £t £m £m £m £m

874.6 272.5 393.5 129.8 3,142.6 836.0

- 406.3 - 2259 — 1,644.3

8§74.6 678.8 393.5 3557 3,142.6 2.4801.3

2,790.1 2.026.7 126.4 44.7 965.4 838.8

- 2750 - (4.5) - 194

2,790.1 2.301.7 126.4 40.2 965.4 8358.2

1523 28.5 26.0 156 140.6 22

- 441 - 2.9 - 75.4

152.3 72.6 26.0 18.5 140.6 716

6.7 8.2 (2.8) (68.4} 858.1 1.288.7

- 1.5 - (4.5} - 226.7

6.7 9.7 (2.8} (72.9} 858.1 1.5154

3,823.7 30628 543.1 341.5 5,106.7 4931.5

(317.3) (227.6) 134 1.7 -

3,506.4 2,835.2 556.5 3432 5,106.7 4,931.5
- (3,287.3) (3,341.7)

33.7 8.7 17.6 59.8

33.7 59 -
{216.3) {160.6) - -
427.6 197.2
1.837.0 1.649.6

EXPLANATION OF TERMINOLOGY USED IN THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Turnover

Turnover represents the value of electricity and gas sales during the year, including an estimate of the sales
value of units and therms supplicd to consumers between the date of the last meter reading and the year
end, distribution charges to other electricity supphers within the Group’s distribution areas. rents and the
invoice value of other goods sold and services provided, exclusive of Value Added Tax.

Distribution husiness

Transfer of electricity from the points where 1t 1s received in bulk across the distribution systems and its

delivery to consumers.
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Retail and generation

Retail and generation includes the generation, purchase and supply of electricity to customers and purchase

and supply of gas to customers.

Private asset management

Operation, maintenance and expansion of private electrical distribution systems.

Service providers and others

This primarily includes the provision of services to the Group, e.g. facilitics. property and insurance.

Geographical analysis

Turnover arises entirely in the United Kingdom.

3. Operating profit

Operating profit is stated afler charging/(crediting):

Staff costs (Note 6) . .
Depreciation of owned fixed asscts .
Depreciation of assets held under finance 1cabcs
Amortisation of goodwill (Note 12)..
Auditors’ remuneration:
Statutory audit services - Ernst & Young : .
Deloitte & Touche (I"or SEEBOARD dudll)
Other services Ernst & Young e e
- Deloitte & Touche
Operating leasc rentals - plant, machinery .,
- land and buildings

Rental income from operating leases

4. Operating items

Operating exceptionals
SEEBOARLD integration provision ..

2003 2002
£fm fm
3125 299.0
198.1 180.2
19.8 19.7
60.4 331
0.9 0.8
0.1 0.4
0.6 0.9
— I.1
13.6 9.5
11.3 9.7
(3.2} (4.3)
2003 2002
£tm £m
- 68.0
- 68.0

On 29th July, 2002. EDF Encrgy plc (formerly London Electricity Group ple) acquired the entire share
capital of CSW Investments, the holding company of the SEEBOARD group of companies for £499.9
million. The SEEBOARD integration provision of £68 million relates to the costs of integrating
SEEBOARD business activilies into the Group. This amount is included within net operating costs in the

consolidated profit and loss account,
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5. Directors’ emoluments
2003 2002
£000 £000
Emoluments .. .. . . L o o e e e e 1,056.7 1.275.2
Company contribution paid to money purchase pension scheme., .. .. - 12.2
1,056.7 1.287.4
2003 2002
£000 £000
Emoluments payable to the highest paid Director were as follows:
Aggregate emoluments .. ., . . L L L L L L L L L. 499.0 338.0
Company contribution paid to money purchase pension scheme.. .. .. - 12.2
499.0 350.2
Retirement benefits are accruing to no Directors (2002: one) under money purchase schemes and to two
Directors (2002: Nil) under defined benefit schemes.
6.  Staff costs
2003 2002
£000 £000
Wages and salaries .. . . . . . L L o L Lo oo 294.6 2938
Social security costs .. .. .. . L L L . o o oo 17.3 19.8
Other pension costs .. .. .. . . . . L . .. 575 273
Less: Capitahsed expenditure .. . .. . . o o . . L . L (56.9) (41.9)
Charged to profit and loss account .. .. . . . . . . . . . 3125 299.0
The monthly average number of employees during the year were as follows:
Restated
2003 2002
Number Number
Distribution .. .. .. .o . e 4,052 3,116
Retail and generation.. ., .. .. . . . . . o . ..o 4,908 4,586
Private asset management .. .. . . o L . L L L L .. 1,063 538
Other .. . . . o L Lo 434 252
10,457 8.492
7. Profit on sale of fixed assets
Fixed assets
2003 2002
£000 £000
Sales proceeds .. . L L L L L L L e 71.9 8.1
Netbook value .. .. . . . . L L L L. .. (18.2) {12.2)
53.7 5.9
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8.  Interest receivable and similar income

2003 2002
fm tm
Group intercst.. .. .. . e e e e e 355 36.6
Share of joint venture’s mlcu,st O 0.3 04
Share of associatesinterest .. .. .. . . . . L . L L .. 07 Q.1
36.5 37.1
9. Interest payable and similar charges
Restated
2003 2002
£m £m
Bank loans and overdrafts .. .. .. .. . . . . . . L . . 36.6 36.5
Finance charges under finance lease.. .. .. . . . . . . . . 234 26.8
Unwinding of discount on provisions .. .. . . . . . . . . 8.5 6.0
Bonds .. .. .. . . L . Lo 172.1 125.5
Group mterest payable and similar charges,, .. .. .. .. . . . . 240.6 194.8
Share of associate™s interest .. .. .. .. . . . . o oo . 55 -
Share of joint venture’s interest .. .. . . . . . o .. o . 10.6 3.3
256.7 198.1
10. Tax on profit on ordinary activities
(a) Analysis of tax charge in the ycar
Restated
2003 2002
£m £m
UK current tax
UK corporation tax charge on proﬁts of theyear.. .. .. . . . . (70.2) {18.6)
Group relief payable .. .. .. . e e e e e (8.5)
Adjustment in respect of prevmus ycars O, (5.9 4.1
Group current tax .. . . . o o o e e e e (76.1) (31.2)
Share of joint ventures tax .. .. . . . . . o o . . . . (0.8) 3.1
Share of associate’stax .. .. .. .. . . . . . oL .o . 2.2) (1.5)
Total current tax charge (Note 100y, .. . . - o« o . . . . {7%.1) (35.8)
UK deferred tax
Origination and reversal of liming differences .. .. .. .. . . . . (79.8) (55.6)
Adjustment in respect of previous years .. .. . . . . L . . (1.6)
Group deferred tax .. .. .. . . . . . . o . o . (81.4) (55.6)
Share of joint venture’stax .. .. .. . . L . L L L L .. en -
Total deferred tax charge.. .. .. .. . . . . . . . . . . (84.1) {55.6)
Tax charge on profit on ordinary activities .. .. . .. . .. . . . {163.2) (91.4)
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(b) Factors affecting tax charge for the year:

The tax assessed for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK (30%).

The differences are explained below:

Profit on ordinary activities before tax .. .
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by qtandald mtc. of corporat:on
tax in the UK of 30% (2002: 30%) .

Effect of:

Adjustment to prior year tax charge

Disallowed expenses and non-taxable income ., P

Capital allowances in excess off(lower than) dcplcuatzon

Other deferred tax items ..

Amortisation of goodwill

Current tax charge for the year ..

2003 2002
£m £m
427.6 187.2
{128.3) (59.2)
5.9 “.1)
(6.7) {16.4)
54.9 43.4
249 10.8
(18.0) (10.3)
(79.1} (35.8)

In June 2001, the Intand Revenue issued Tax Bulletin 53. The provisions included in the Bulletin relating to
deferred revenue expenditure witl affect the Group from 2005 onwards and will decrease the rate at which
corporation tax relief is taken for certain expenditure capitalised in the accounts. The annual current tax
charge will increase significantly with a corresponding reduction in the deferred tax charge.

11. Dividends

Equity dividends on ordinary shares:
Interim paid
Final paid ..
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2003 2002
£m £fm
- 9.5
76.2 78.5
76.2 88.0




12.  Intangible fixed assets

Cost
At st January, 2003
Prior year adjustment ..

At Ist January. 2003 (restated)..
Fair value adjustments

24seven ...

SEEBOARD ..

At 3ist December, 2003

Amortisation
At Ist Japuary, 2003 . . . . L L.
Charged/(credited) to profit and loss account

At 31st December, 2003

Net book value
At 31st December, 2003

At 31st December, 2002 (restated)..

Positive Negative
Goodwill Goodwill Total
£m £m £m
1.382.9 (46.9) 1.336.0
78.6 78.6
1.461.5 {46.9) 1.414.6
{7.3) (7.5)
(8.3) {8.3)
1,445.7 (46.9) 1,398.8
85.8 4.7 81.1
62.7 (2.3) 60.4
148.5 (7.0) 141.5
1,297.2 (39.9) 1,257.3
1,375.7 (42.2) 1,333.5

The positive and negative goodwill with the exception of Sutton Bridge goodwill is being amortised over a
period of 20 years. Sutton Bridge goodwill is amortised over a period of 40 years and is reviewed annually.

All goodwill is amortised on a straight-line basis.

The provisional fair values assigned to EDF Encrgy Networks Ltd (formerly 24seven Utility Services Lid)
and the SEEBOARD Group of Companies were reviewed, which resulted in a reduction in net assets of

£7.5m and £8.3m respectively.

The affect on goadwill from the discontinuation of the policy te discount deferred tax (see note 35) is:

Prior year adjustment

SEEBOARD group of companies..
West Burton power stalion .

2003

£m

89.6

(11.0)

78.6

The Dircetors have reviewed the net book value of goodwill at 31st December, 2003 and in their opinion this
amount is fully supported by their valuation of the Group’s net assets.
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13. Tangible fixed assets

Group

Cost
At Ist January, 2003 .
Prior year adjustment

At 1st January, 2003 (restated)

Fair value adjustment
Additions ..
Transfer..

Disposals

At 31st December, 2003

Depreciation .. . ..
At Ist January, 2003 .
Charge for the year ..
Disposals

At 31st December, 2003 .

Net book value

At 31st December, 2003

At 31st December, 2002
(restated)

The cost of tangible fixed assets includes £Nil (2002:£Nil) capitalised interest,

Company

Cost

At 1st January, 2003
Additions
Disposals

At 31st December, 2003

Depreciation

At Ist January, 2003
Charge for the year ..
Disposals

At 31st December, 2003

Net book value
At 31st December, 2003

Al 31st December, 2002

Other Vehicles Deduct Total

Generation  Nerwork  lund and & mobile Fixtures &  consumers’  tangible
assels assefs  buildings plant  eguipment contributions assets
L £m £m fm £m tm £m
1,.202.5 50914 147.3 31.5 461.7 (1,108.0) 58264
(2.2} 123.4 121.2
[,200.3 52148 147.3 315 461.7  (1.108.0) 5.947.6
- 24.3 5.1 (4.3) 25.1

57.2 432.0 17.1 8.8 70.7 (123.3) 462.5
18.5 {18.5) -

{4.2) - (20.5) (3.5y  (1355) (163.7)
1.253.3  5.689.6 130.5 30.8 3926 (1.231.3) 62715
92.2 693.4 29.7 139 3222 {114.2) 1,037.2
60.9 134.5 39 5.9 37.3 (24.6) 217.9
(2.6 (3.3y  (135.%) - (141.4)

153.1 827.9 31.0 16.5 224.0 (138.8) 1.113.7
1.100.2  4.861.7 99.5 20.3 168.6  (1.092.5) 5,157.8
11081 45214 117.6 17.6 139.5 (993.8) 49104
Toral

Land and Fixtures & tangible

buildings equipment assets

im £m £m

237 202.4 226.1

8.8 45.1 33.9
(4.5) {56.2) (60.7)

28.0 191.3 219.3

5.4 122.6 128.0

1.3 15.7 17.0

(535.0) (55.0)

6.7 83.3 90.0

21.3 108.0 128.3

18.3 79.8 98.1




Net book value of other land and buildings comprises:

Frechold Ce e
Long leaschold {over 50 years) ..
Short leaschold (50 years or less)

Net book valuc of tangible fixed assets includes the following:

Asscts in the course of construction
Land not depreciated .. .. .. .. .
Generation assets held under finance lease

14. [Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Company

Al 31st December, 2002
Additions
At 31st December, 2003

Group Company
2002 2002
2003 { Restated) 2063 { Restated )
78.0 89.4 6.3 2.1
- 1.7 150 16.2
21.5 26.5 -
99.5 117.6 21.3 18.3
Group Company
2002 2002
2003 { Restated ) 2003 { Restated )
154.6 137.4 59.9 19.5
16.8 431 1.0 1.0
3364 356.2 - -
Shares Loans Total
£ £m £m
1.103.0 1.250.3 2.313.3
23.9 3.4 273
1,126.9 1,213.7 2.340.6

The principal undertakings at 3tst December. 2003, which are incorporated in Great Britain and are
registered and operate in England and Wales (unless otherwise stated), arc as follows:

Percentage
of ordinary
shares held

51 Degrees Limited*

CSW Investments*

Deltabrand Limited*

ECS Data Services Limited*

ECS Metering Services Limited*

EDF Encrgy (Asset Management) Limited
{formerly SEEBOARD Assel
Management Limited)*

EDF Energy (Contract Services} Limited
(formerly 24seven Contract Scrvices
Limited)*

EDF Energy (Cottam Power) Limited
{formerly Cottam Power Limited)*

EDF Energy (Energy Branch) plc
{formerly The London Power
Company plc)*

EDF Energy (Enterprises) Limited

{formerly London Electricity Enterprises
Limited)*

100%
100%
100%
100%%
]OOD (43
]00” 0

100%

100%,

100%:

100%,

EDF Energy (London Heat & Power) Limited 100%

{formerly London Heat & Power Limited)*
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Principal activity

Telecommunication networks
Holding company

Holding company

Meter reading and related services
Meter operations and related services
Investment company

Maintenance of distrtbution networks

Provision and supply of clectricity generation

Investment in electricity generation

Investments in commercial projects

Generation and supply of clectricity and heat




EDF Energy {(Metro Holdings) Limited 100%
{formerly SEEBOARD Metro Holdings
Limited)*

EDF Energy (Northern Offshore Wind) 100%
Limited {formerly Northern Offshore
Wind Limited)*

EDF Encrgy (Powerlink Holdings) Limited 100%
(formerly SEEBOARD Powerlink Holdings
Limited)*

EDF Energy (Projects) Limited 100%
{formerly SEEBOARD Projects Limited)*

EDF Energy (Services) Limited 100%
(formerly London Electricity Services
Limited)*

EDF Energy (Scuth East Generation) 100%
Limited (formerly SEEBOARD
Generation) Limited)*

EDFT Epergy (South East) plc 100%,
(formerly SEEBOARD ple)*

EDF Energy (South Eastern Services) Limited 100%
{formerly South Eastern Services Limited)*

EDF Energy {Sutton Bridge Holdings) 100%
Limiled (formerly Sutton Bridge Holdings
Limited)*

EDY Energy (Sutton Bridge Power } Limited  100%
{formerly Sutton Bridge Power Limited)*

EDF Energy {Transport Services) Limited 100%
(formerly London Electricity Transport
Services Limited)*

EDF Energy (West Burton Power) Limited 100%
{formerly West Burton Power Limited)*

EDF Encrgy Networks (EPN) ple 100%
(formerty EPN Distribution Limited)*

EDF Energy Networks (LPN) ple 100%
{formerly London Power Networks plc)*

EDF Energy Networks (SPN) pic 100%
(formerly SEEBOARTI> Power Networks ple)*

EDF Energy Networks Limited (formerly 100%
24seven Utility Services Limited)*

Green Electron Limited 100%

High Hedley Hope Wind Limiied® 100%

Islington Lighting Limited® 100%

Islington Lighting (Finance) Limited* 100%;

Kirkheaton Wind Limited* 5%

Knight Debt Recovery Services Limiled* 100%

London Electricity Trustee Limited 100%

London Electricity Projects Limited*® 100%

London Electricity Sharce Scheme Truslees 1H00%
Limited*®

London Energy ple (formerly London 100%
Electricity plc)*

Lendon Power Insurance Limited* 100%
(Isle of Man}

London Power Sutton Bridge Limited* 100%

Longfteld Insurance Company Limited® 100%
(Isie of Man)

Norfolk Offshore Wind Limited* 80%

Seeb Limited* 100%

SEEBOARD Contracling Services Limited®  100%
SEEBOARD Employment Services Limited®*  100%
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[nvestment company

Development of generation and supply

[nvestment company

Investment company

Llectricity distribution project

Holding company

Holding company
Property Management

Investment in power generation company

Provision and supply of clectricity generation

Provision and supply of transport services

Power generation

Contract management {or distribution network
Contract management for distribution network
Electricity distribution

Maintenance ol distribution networks

Investment company

Renewable power generation

Electrical contracting

Investment company

Renewable power generation

Debt collection and tracing

Trustees of employee benefits

Project management

Trustees of cmployee share and bencefits funds

Electricity retailing
Insurance

Investment in power generalion company
Insurance

Renewable power generation
[nvestment company
Electrical contracting
Management company




SEEBOARD Encrgy Gas Limited* 1007, Gas supply

SEEBOARD Energy Limited* 100% Energy supply
SEEBOARD Group plc* 100% Holding company
SEEBOARD Highway Lighting No.2 Limited* 100% Holding company
SEEBOARD Highway Services Limited*® 100% Holding company
SEEBOARD Insurance Company Limited* 100% Insurance
{Isle of Man)
SEEBOARD international Limited* 10074 Investment Company
SEEBOARD Metering Limited* HI0% Investment Company
SEEBOARD Natura] Gas* 100%, Investment Company
SEEBOARD Powerlink Limited* 80% Asset management
SEEBOARD Trading Limited * 100%, Investment company
Southern Gas Limited* 100% Investment company
Sutton Bridge Financing Limited*® 100% Financial activitics
(Cayman Islands)
Sutton Bridge Investors Limited* 100% [nvestment in power generation company
Sutton Bridge Power Fund*® 100% [nvestment company
The Barkantine Heat & Power Company 100% Generation and supply of electricity and heat
Limited*
Virgin HomeEnergy Limited* T5% Customer acquisition services
Virgin HomePhone Limited* 75% Telecoms retailing
West Burton Property Limited* 100% Power generation

*Indirectly held

15. Investinents in joint ventures

Group
Share of
nel assels Total
£m £m
At Ist Japuary, 2003 . . . . e e e e e e 2.6 2.6
Shdreofpromsrctamadbyjomlvcntutcs e e 13.8 13.8
At 3lst December. 2003 0 0 L L L L L L L L L L L 16.4 16.4

The joint ventures at 31st December, 2003, which are incorporated in Great Britain and are registered and
operate in England and Wales, arc as follows:
Percentage of
ordinary shares

held Principal activity

Barking Power Linuted® .. .. .. . . . . . 13.475% Construction and operation
of a power station

Thames Valley Power Limited*.. .. .. . . 0% Generation and supply
Power Asset Development Company leltcd* e 50% Asset Management
Metronet SSL Limited*.. .. .. .. .. . . . . 20% Maintaining and renewing

underground network
Metronet BCVY Limited*

Transdm Limited* .. .. .. . . .. . . . . 25%, Engineering contractor
*Investment held indirectly

EDF Encrgy ple (formerly London Electricity Group plc) has a long-term interest in Barking Power Ltd and
shares control under a contractual arrangement, The Dircctors therefore consider Barking Power Lid to be
a joint venture.

The accounting reference date for Barking Power Limited and the Metronet companics is 31st March.
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16. Investinents in associates

Group

At tst January, 2003 .. . . L L
Share ol profit retained by associate ..
Disposals e
Amortisation of goodwill ..

At 31st December, 2003

Company
At 1st January, 2003 ..

At 31st December, 2003 ..

Shares of
Het assets/

( Habilities) Goodwill Total
£m £m £m
49.7 7.5 57.2
1.9 1.9
(57.3) : (57.3)
- (0.5) (0.5)
(5.7) 7.0 1.3
Shares Toral

fmn £m

8.5 8.5

8.5 8.5

The associate at 31st December, 2003, which is incorporated in Greal Britam and is registered and operates

in England and Wales. is as follows:

Proportion
of nominal
Description of valne of
shares held shares held Principal activity
Paypoint Limited .. .. .. . . Ordinary shares 26.9% Cash collection services
. Preference shares 16.1%
Deferred shares 27.9%
The accounting reference date for Paypoimt Limited is 3[st March. Paypeint Limited’s preference shares and

deflerred shares carry ne voting rights as at 31st December. 2003,

The Group disposed of its 37.5%: holding in Medway Power Limited on 3rd November, 2003.

17.  Other investments

Group

At st January, 2003
Additions .
Redemption/repayments

At 31st December, 2603

Company

At 1st January, 2003
Additions .
Repayments ..

At 31st December, 2003
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Shares Loans Total
£m £m £
5.0 2.1 7.1

- 6.7 6.7
(2.5 0.8) (3.3)
2.5 8.0 10.5

Shares Loans Total
fm £m £m
5.0 [.3 6.3

6.7 6.7
(2.5) (2.5}
2.5 8.0 10.5




Other investments at 31st December, 2003, which are incorporated in Great Britain and are registered and
operate in England and Wales, are as follows:

Percentage
of ordinary
shares held Principal activity
London & Continental Railways Limited 11.27% Rail operator
18. Stock
Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£m £m £m tm
Raw materials and consumables .. .. 844 93.0 64.5 77.7
Amounts recoverable on contract .. .. 339 229 - -
118.1 115.9 64.5 77.7
19. Debtors
Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£mn £m £mi £m
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors .. .. .. . . . . 336.6 317.0 91.3 48.1
Unbilled consumption .. .. .. .. . 389.2 280.2 - -
725.8 397.2 91.3 48.1
Less Sccuritisation .. .. .. .. . . (175.5) (190.4) -
550.3 406.8 91.3 48.1
Other debtors .. .. .. .. . . . 29.7 38.9 19.5 22.5
Debtors: cutstanding receipts of fixed
assetsales .. .. . . . . L. 14.7 7.3
Prepayments and accrued income .. .. 46.6 557 8.2 35
Amounts owed by parent company.. .. 143.5 131.2 143.5 131.2
Amounts owed by other group companics 19.5 8.2 225.5 128.7
Amounts owed by joint ventures .. .. 3.1 8.4 -
Corporationtax.. .. .. . . . . - 7.3 3.0
Deferred tax asset (see notec 24).. .. . - - 11.2
807.4 649.2 502.6 348.2
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Pension scheme prepayment ., .. . - . 1.0 13.0
- 1.0 13.0
Total debtors.. .. .. .. .. .. . . 8074 649.2 503.6 361.2

In September 2000, EDF Energy plc (formerly London Electricity Group plc) entered into a commercial
paper securitisation programme involving the sale of billed and unbilled trade debtors lo a trust. [nterest is
charged monthly on trade debtors securitised based on a margin above the sterling equivalent of the US
commercial paper raie payable by the issuer of the facility. The amount available under the securitisation is
£100 million over a revolving term of 5 years, increasing to £175 million at the option of EDF Energy plc
(formerly London Electricity Group ple). Funds based on the amount of trade debtors are advanced to
EDF Encrgy plc (formerly London Electricity Group plc) on a monthly basis, with a percentage of collected
receivables deferred to cover interest. costs and bad debts. EDF Energy ple (formerly London Electricity
Group ple) is not obliged to support any losses suffered by the trust as a result of sccuritisation, nor does it
intend to do so. Furthermore, the trust has agreed in writing that it will seek repayment of the funds
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advanced to EDF Energy ple (formerly London Electricity Group ple). including funding costs, only to the
extent that sufficient funds are gencrated by the assets securitised and that it will not seck recourse in any
other form.

SEEBOARD Energy Limited and SEEBOARD Energy Gas Limited have securitised £75.5 million of trade
debtors n a similar programme mvolving the sale of billed and unbilled trade debtors to a trust. Interest is
charged on trade debtors securitised at a margin above LIBOR and is payable monthly. SEEBOARD
Energy Limited and SEEBOARD Energy Gas Limited are not obliged to support any losses suffered by the
trust as 4 result of the securitisation, nor do they intend to do so0. At the year-end, the current excess of
securitisation procceds over the current billed debt sold to the trust of £99.5 million has becn included in
creditors.

20. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Group Company
Restated

2003 2002 2003 2002
£m £m £ £m
Bank overdraft .. .. . . . . . - : 441.4
Borrowings {note 22) .. . . 693.3 1.157.6 485.1 £,038.9
Obligations under finance lcases (nole 23) 14 9.7 -
Payments on account on long-term contracts 255.5 163.4 0.5 0.8
Advances on securitisation {note 19} ., 99.5 34.6 -
Amounts owing for purchase of energy 354.8 4727 314.3 178.7
Amounts owed to parent company .. .. 10.¢ 10.0
Corporation tax.. .. .. . 87.6 34.6 - :
Other taxes and social scc,unty LObtb . 78.6 10.8 40.3 3.8
Other creditors .. .. .. .. . . . 218.8 251.5 20.6 60.8
Accruals.. .. .. . o . . . . 226.3 114.0 - 14.4
Pension scheme d(,urual e e 65.0 53.1 -
2,100.8 2,352.0 1,312.2 1,297.4

21. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£ fm £m £m
Borrowings (note 22) .. .. .. 2,371.9 1.954.4 347.9 227.7
Obligations under finance leascs (notc 2?) 357.0 367.1 - -
Other creditors . .. .. .. .. . . 20.4 14.1 - -
2,7493 2.335.6 347.0 227.7
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22.  Borrowings
Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
£ £m £m £im
Amounts falling due within one year:
Short term borrowing .. .. .. . . 693.3 1.157.6 485.1 1.038.9
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
£350m EPN 8.375% Eurobond due
March 2004 (i} .. .. e - 360.4 -
£100m 8.625% Eurobonds duc
October 2005 (i) .. .. .. .. . . 99.8 99.6 -
£100m 8.5% Eurobond due
October 2005 .. .. .. .. . . . 105.1 108.0 -
S5200m 8.75% Bonds due
August 2006 .. .. . 135.7 138.2 -
£100m 8.875% Bonds due Sgptcmbcx 2006 107.5 110.2 -
€500m 5.213% Eurobond duc
December 2010 (i11) .. .. .. . . 347.0 347.0
£200m 8.75% Eurobond due
March 2012 .. .. . . . . . 2331 237.1 -
Sutton Bridge Bonds due
Jupe 2022 (iv) .. . e 267.9 285.9 - -
£30m Index Linked Bond due
June 2023 (). .. .. .. .. . . 49.8 -
£200m 8.5% Eurobond duc
March 2025 .. .. . T 265.5 268.6 -
£300m 5.50% Eurcobond due
Jupe 2026 (ni).. .. . . 296.3 -
£300m/£200m 6.125% Bonds duc
June 2027 (v} .. .. . 306.5 197.7 -
£150m 3.125% Index Lmked Bonds duc
June 2032 .. .. .. . . 153.4 148.7 -
Loans duc to subsidiary undcrtaknws . - - 2277
Other borrowings .. .. .. . . . 4.3 -
2,371.9 1.954.4 347.0 2277
3,065.2 3,112.0 832.1 1,266.6
{1}  Reclassified as short term borrowing in 2003,

(i)

(i)

(iv}

{(v)

The 8.625% Eurobonds may be redeemed in (ull together with accrued interest by either the ‘Issuer’ or
‘Bondholders’ upon the occurrence of certain events.

Bonds were issued during the year.

The secured bonds which are guaranteed by EDF Energy (Sutton Bridge Power) Limited (formerly
Sutton Bridge Power Limited} comprise two tranches of twenty-five year amortising bonds issued by
Sutton Bridge Financing Limited. The first tranche comprises a remaining principal amount of
£189.2 million at a fixed mterest rate of 8.625%. The second tranche comprises a remaining principal
amount of US$145.7 million at a fixed interest rate of 7.97%. Sutton Bridge Financing Limited has
entered into currency swap agreements with EDI Energy ple (formerly London Electricity Group plc)
{who in turn have entered into swap agreements with third parties) in order to convert the principal and
interest payment on the US dollar bonds inte sterling for periods wp to maturity. The effect of these
swaps 1s to convert the USS145.7 million payable to an equivalent long-term payable with a principal
of £95.4 million and an effective interest rate of 8.13%. The bonds are secured by means of fixed and
floating charges over substantially the net assets of Sutton Bridge and at all times rank pari passu and
without preference among themsclves. The Sutton Bridge Bonds mature in June 2022 but principal
repayments commenced from June 2002. Principal and interest payments payable on the bonds are due
semi-annually in arrears on 30th June and 31st December of cach year.

An additional £100m extra was issued during the year under same terms as the existing bond.
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23. Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts

The maturity of these amounts is as follows:

Amounts payable:
Within one year

In two to five years

In more than live years

Less: finance charges allocated to

Finance leases and hire purchase confracts are analysed as follows:

Current obligations (note 20)
Non-current obligations (note 21}

24. Provisions for liabilities and charges

Group

Insurance .
Restructuring costs
Dilapidation

Legal disputes ..
Other costs ..
Deferred tax™ .
Acquisition provisions
Power Trading ..
Medway contract
Teesside Power ..

Company

[nsurance .
Restructuring costs
Dilapidation

Other costs ..

Restated

2003 2002

£m £m

394 31.8

155.8 156.2

e e 467.8 306.8
future periods (294.6) (318.0)
368.4 376.8

11.4 9.7

357.0 367.1

368.4 376.8

Restated Utilised Released Arising

At st during during during At 31st
JSanary, the year the year the year December,
2003 2003
fm fm £ £m £m

4.9 (1.6) (1.7) 10.8 12.4

62.1 (36.3) - 25.8

0.9 0.2 1.1

53.6 (12.4) (28.3) 2.1 15.0

4.2 : (0.1) 04 4.5
479.7 : 74.7 5544
17.1 (16.4) 0.7
184.5 (34.6) 149.9
74.6 (4 - 60.4
881.6 (115.5) (30.1) 88.2 824.2

Utilised Released Arising

Ar ist during during during At 3ist
Janary, the year the year the year December,
2003 2003
£m £m £m £m £m

1.9 (0.4) 1.5

62.1 (36.3) - 25.8

0.9 0.1 1.0

1.7 (0.3) 1.4

66.6 (36.7) (0.3) 0.1 29.7

The insurance provision is based on an assessment ol the Group’s known liabilities as at 31st December,

2003.

The restructuring provision relates to business restructuring following the acquisition of SEEBOARD

{note 4),
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The provision for dilapidation represents the difference between the projected rental income from various
properties and the amounts payable by the Group for those properties under currently existing contracts.

The Teesside Power provision arose on the acquisition of the supply business of South Western Electricity.
The fong-term energy contract provisions resulted from the acquisition of SEEBOARD. These provisions
represent the difference between the contract price and the estimated market price of energy. The discount
rate used In arriving at the provisions was a risk adjusted rate. The amount utilised during the year for these
provisions is net of £8.5 miliion (2002: £7.6 million) relating (o the unwinding of the discount and has been
included within interest payable.

* The movements in deferred taxation during the current year arc as follows:

Group Company

£m £m
At Ist January, 2003 . . . . L L L L L L L 136.3 (10.0)
Prior year adjustment - change in accounting policy .. .. .. . . . 3434 1.2)
At st January. 2003 (restated) . .. . . . . L . L . L L 479.7 (11.2)
Fair value adjustment .. .. . . . . . L . . L. L. (6.7) -
Charge lor the year (note 10} .. . . . . . . . . . . . 81.4 11.2
At 31st December. 2003 .. .. .. . . . . L L o L L. 554.4 -
Group Restated
2003 2002

£m £m

Accelerated capital allowances .. .. .. .. . . . L L L L 685.5 641.3
Other timing differences .. .. .. . .. . . . . o L L L. (131.1} {161.6)
5544 479.7

Company Restated
2003 2002

£m £m

Accelerated capital allowances .. .. .. . . L L . L L L. 10.9 (1.3}
Other timing differences .. .. . . . . L L L . L L L . (10.9) 9.9
(11.2)

25. Derivatives and other financial instruments

A discussion of the Group’s objectives with regards to derivatives and other financial instruments is included
within the Group’s accounting policies in note 1. Advantage has been taken of FRS 13, ‘Derivatives and
other financial instruments’, in relation to the exemption from disclosures on current debtors and current
liabilitics.

Fair values of assets and liabilities

The fair values of financial instruments represent the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing partics, other than in a forced sale or liquidation. Where market
values arc not available, fair values have been calculated by discounting cashflows at prevailing rates.
Significant differences can arise between the fair value and the carrying amount of financial instruments that
are recognised at historical cost amounts.
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Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

2003 2003 2002 2002

£m £m £m £m

Long term investments .. .. .. . . 10.6 10.6 7.1 7.1
Current asset investments .. .. .. . 26.2 26.2 37.1 37.1
Cash at bank and inhand .. .. .. . 120.1 120.1 110.0 110.0
Short term borrowing .. .. .. .. .. 693.3 695.0 (1.157.6) (1,158.6)
Long term borrowings .. . .. . . 2,371.9 2,446.0 (1.954.4) (2,070.0)
Cross currency swaps .. .. . . . - (27.3) (7.1
Forward rate agtcement.. .. .. .. . - 25.1 2.3)
Intercstrate swap .. .. .. . . . - - 0.2

The Group has not included the fair value of the forward purchase contracts of energy. discussed in note 1,
as these are all expectled to be settled by physical delivery and are therefore outside the scope of FRS 13,

Interest rate profile of financial liabilities

The interest rate profile of financial liabilitics as at 31st December. 2003 was as follows:

Fixed rate  Floating rate Total
£m £fm £m
Pound Stering .. .. .. .. . . . . L . . 2,536.9 528.3 3.065.2
2.536.9 528.3 3.065.2

The interesi rale profile of fixed rate debt 1s as follows:
Pound
Sterling
Weighted average interest rate % .. .. .. . . . . oL 6.80%
Weighted average period (years) .. . .. . . . o L L oo . 93

All foreign currency denominated debt interest and principat payments have been fully swapped into
Sterling.

Al 31st December, 2003, the Group had no intercst rate swaps (2002: £8.0 millien). The fair value of the
interest rate swap outstanding at 31st December. 2002 was £0.2 million,

Maturity of borrowings

The Group’s maturity of debt at 31st December was as follows:

2603 2062

£m £m

Inone year or less or on demand .. .. .. .. . . L L L L L 693.3 1.157.6
in more than onc year but not more than two years .. .. .. .. . . 221.6 360.4
In more than two years but not more than five years .. .. .. . . . 2934 456.0
In more than fiveyears .. .. .. . . . . L . . . . . . 1.856.9 1.138.0
3,065.2 3.112.0

Borrowing facilities

The Group has a £500.0 million committed bank facility which matures on 15th December. 2008, At the
year-end £360.0m (2002: £425.0 million} of the facility was undrawn.
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Currency exposure

The table below shows the extent to which the Group has monetary assets and liabilities in currencies other
than their functional currencies. Foreign exchange differences on retranslating of such assets and liabilities
are taken to the profit and loss account.

Functional currency of Group operalion Net foreign currency monetary assets
US Dollar Total

£m £

Pound Sterling .. . .. . L . L oo 13.9 13.9

Aggregated gains and losses on hedges

Gains and losses on instruments used for hedging are not recognised until the transaction that is being
hedged is itself recognised. Unrecognised gains and losses on instruments used for hedging. and the
movements are set out below.

Unrecognised contracts Gains/Losses

2003 2002

£m £fm

Gains/(losscs) on hedges at beginning of year .. .. . Coe (9.2) 0.5
Gains arising in previous years that were recognised in Ihe year P 0.2
9.0) 0.5
Profits/(losses) arising in the year that were not recognised in the year .. 6.3 9.7
Net losses on hedges atend of year.. .. .. .. . . . . . . . (2.2) (9.2)

In the table above the carricd forward unrecognised net loss at 31st December, 2003 of £2.2 million equates
to the difference between the fair value and book value of hedging mstruments.

26,  Share capital

Group and Company

Authorised

2003 2002
£m £m
2,228.713.439 ordinary shares of £0.5833 each.. .. .. . .. . . . 1,304.0 1.,300.0
300,000,002 ordinary shares of £0.50 each .. .. .. . . . . . . 150.0 150.0
1,450.0 1.450.0

Allotted. called up and fully paid
2003 2002 2003 2002
Number Number £m £m
Ordinary shares of £0.5833 each .. .. 2,222,739,164  2,222.739.164 1,296.6 1,296.6
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27.  Reconciliation of Group sharcholder’s funds and movement on reserves

At Ist January, 2002
Prior year adjustment

At 1st January, 2002 (restated)
Retained profit for the year (restated)
Ordinary share issue

At 31st December, 2002 (restated)
Retained profit for the year

At 31st December, 2003

28. Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

{(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

Group operating profit .. .. . .
Depreciation of tangible lixed assets

Amortisation and impairment of goodwill ..

(Increase)/decrease in debtors
(Increase)/decrease in stocks ..
Increase/(decrease) in creditors ..
Increasef(decrease) in provisions..

Net cash inflow from opcrating activities

(b)  Analysis of net debt

Cash at bank and in hand
Current asset investments
Debt due within one year
Debt due after one year ..
Finance leases

Share Capital Profit and Total

Share Premivm  redemption loss  shareholder’s
capital account reserve account Jundy
fm £m £m £m £m
376.5 [3.9 11.0 411.6 813.0
----- (97.7) 97.7)
376.5 13.9 11.0 3139 715.3
: 14.2 14.2

920.1 - 920.1
1.296.6 13.9 11.0 328.1 1,649.6
- 187.4 187.4
1,296.6 13.9 11.0 5155 1,837.0
2003 2002

£m £m

556.5 3432

217.9 199.9

60.4 41.9

(88.0) 139.9
(2.2) {45.4)

71.5 45.6

(140.6) 37.4

675.5 762.5

At Ist Other At 31st

January, nonR-cash Decembey,

2003 Cash flow movements 2003

£m £m £m £m

110.0 10.1 1201

37.1 (10.9) 26.2
(1.157.6) §32.4 (368.1) (693.3)
(1.954.4) (807.1) 389.6 (2,371.9)
{376.8) 8.4 (368.4)
(3.341.7) 32.9 21.5 (3,287.3)

(¢} Cash flows in relation to exceptional items

In 2002, payments of £6.3 million were made in respect of the restructuring provision of £68 million. There

were no exceptional items in 2003,
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29, Pension commitinents
(a} Group pension schemes

The principal pension scheme available o employees of EDF Energy ple (formerly Londen Electricity
Group ple) was the London Electricity Group of the Electricity Supply Pension Scheme (ESPS), a defined
benefit scheme. Since April 1994, new employees have been offered membership of the London Electricity
1994 Retirement Plan (LERP), a defined contribution scheme. New employees of EDF Energy Networks
Lid (formally 24seven Utility Services Ltd) and EDF Energy (Contract Services) Limited (formerly 24seven
Contract Services Limited) have been offered membership of the 24seven Group Personal Pension Plan
(24scven GPP), a defined contribution scheme.

The principal pension scheme available to employees of SEEBOARD was the SEEBOARD Group of the
ESPS, a defined benefit scheme. Since July 1995, new employees have been offered the choice of membership
of the SEEBOARD Final Salary Pension Plan and the SEEBOARD Pension Investment Plan. The first of
these schemes is a defined benefit scheme and the second 15 a defined contribution scheme.

The magority of employees of SEEBOARD Powerlink Limited are members of the LRT Pension Fund. a
defincd benefit scheme.

The EDF Encrgy Group closed its non-ESPS pension arrangements, (the London Electricity 1994
Retirement Plan. the SEEBOARD Final Salary Pension Plan, the SEEBOARD Pension Investment Plan,
and the Z4seven Group Personal Pension Plan) with effect from 29th February, 2004. A new scheme, the
EDF Energy Penston Scheme, a final salary arrangement. replaces these for future service from Ist March,
2004. Tt 1s anticipated that a special contribution of around £2 million will be made o the EDF Energy
Pension Scheme at inception, the regular engoing employer’s contribution has been assessed as 10 per cent,
of pensionable pay. This contribution rate will be reviewed as a result of fulure actuarial valuations.

(b) SSAP 24 - Accounting for pension costs for the ESPS

The latest full actuaria! valuations of the Londen Electricity and SEEBOARD Groups of the ESPS were
carried out by Hewitt Bacon & Woodrow. consulting actuaries. as at 31st March, 2001. The valuation
method adopted was the projected unit method. At 31st March. 2001 the market value of assets relating to
the London Electricity Group of the ESPS was £1,089 million, which represented 118.0 per cent. of the
actuarial value of the accrued benefits. The market value of assets relating to the SEEBOARD Group of the
ESPS was £791 million, which represcnted 107.4 per cent of the actuarial value of the accrued benefits,
Acerued benefits include all benefits for pensioners and former members as well as benefits based on service
to date for active members, allowing for future salary increascs.

In order to calculate the pension charge in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy, separate actuarial
valuations were preparcd by Hewitt Bacon & Woodrow as at 29th July, 2002 in respect of the London
Electricity Group and the SEEBOARD Group of the ESPS. These valuations resulted in regular costs of
£18 million for the London Electricity Group and £10 million for the SEEBOARD Group. These regular
costs were increased due 1o an accounting deficit of £16 million in the London Electricity Group which is
spread over the average remaining service life of employees of 10 years, and early retirement deficiency costs
of total for both schemes £9 million, giving total pension costs of £33 million (2002: £23 million). The
valuation and increased regular costs do not take into account the fall in the stock market and the reduction
in the gilt yields that has taken place since the valuation date.

The method adopted for the valuations was the projected unit method. The principal assumptions used to
assess the long-term ongoing funding target under SSAP24 arc set out below.

29¢h July,

2002

% pa.

Discount rate .. .. .. . L e e e e e e e 6.0
Inflation rate .. .. . . e el 2.4
Increase to pensions .. .. . . o e e e e e e e e 2.6
Increase to deferred benefits .. .. .. .. . . . L L . L L L L .. 2.6
Salary INCIeases .. .. . .« w0 e e e e e e e 3.4
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{c) SSAP 24 - Accounting for pension costs for the other schemes

Under the other schemes, the charge to profit and loss is the contribution paid by EDF Encrgy ple (formerly
Lendon Electricity Group ple). The amount paid for the year ended 31st December, 2003 was £4.5 million
(2002: £4.3 million).

The total charge for pension schemes in the accounts for the year ended 31st December, 2003 is £57.5 million
(2002: £27.3 million).

{d) FRS 17 - Retirement benefits — transitional disclosures

Further disclosures are required 1n accordance with the trunsitional arrangements of FRS17 - "Retirement
Benefits’. The following notes relate to the London Electricity and SEEBOARD groups of ESPS. An
updated actuartal valuation was prepared by Hewitt Bacon & Woodrow as at 31st December. 2003 for this
purpose.

The updated valuation was determined using the projected unit credit method (“PUC method™). Both
groups are generally closed to new members so. using the PUC method, the current service cost will increase
as the active membership of the scheme approaches retirement.

The following contributions were made to the Group pension schemes during 2003:

London Electricity Group of ESPS fm
Group contributions .. .. . L L L L L e e e e 27
Member contributions .. .. .. . . . o oL o e e e e 3
SEEBOARD Group of ESPS £
Group contributions .. . . . . L Lo o e il
Member contributions .. .. . . L L L L o e e e e e 2

The major assumptions used were as follows:

2003 2002
(% pa.) (% pa.)
inflation assumption .. 238 2.3
Rate of increase in salaries e e e e e e e 38 3.3
Rate of increase of pensions in payment and deferred pensions .. 28 23
Rate used to discount plan habilitics 5.4 5.5
Expected rate of return on equities .. 85 &.0
Expected rate of return on bonds 4.8 4.5

Analysis of amount that wonld have been charged to operating profit it FRS 17 had been fully implemented:

London
Electricity SEEBOARD
Group Group of Total Total
of ESPS ESPS 2003 2002
£m £m £m £m
Current service cost ., 19 7 26 17
Pasl service cost .. Ce L 3 3 35
Past service cost met from reserve for
{uture benefit improvements .. ~ - - (35)
Curtailments 5 4 9 4
Total operating cost ., 27 11 38 21
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Analysis of amount that would have been credited to other firance income if FRS 17 had been fully

implemented:
London
Electricity  SEEBOARD
Group Group of Total Totul
of ESPS ESPS 2003 2002
£ £m £ fm
Expected return on pension plan assets 63 41 104 87
Interest on pension plan liabilities .. .. (1) {39) {100} (67)
Netreturn .. .. .. .. . . . . 2 2 4 20

Reconciliation to balance sheet if FRS 17 had been fully implemented:

London Electricity Group of ESPS

Equities
Bonds ..

Total market value of assets .. ..
Delined benelit obligation {DBO)

Deficit in scheme .. Co e e
Reserve for future bencfit improvements
Deferred tax asset..

Net pension hability ..

3Ist December, 31st December,

2003 2002
£fm fm
784 629
272 296

1,056 925
(1,292) {1.128)

{236) (203

(10 (m
74 64
{(172) (149)

At 31st December, 2003 the total market value of assets include estimates of transfer payments due to be
received of £NIL (2002: £15.0m). At 31st December, 2003 DBO includes estimates of obligations due 1o be

transterred in of £NIL (2002: £15m).
SEEBOARD Group of ESPS

Equities
Bonds ..

Total market value of assets ..
Defined benefit obligation (DBO)

Deficit in scheme ..
Deferred tax asset..

Net pension lability ..
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2003 2002
£m £m
475 422
209 198
684 620
(802) (736)
(118) (116)
35 35
(83) (8D




Analysis of movement in surplus during the year that would have arisen if FRS 17 had been fully implemented:

London
Electvicity SEEBOARD
Group Group of Total Total
of ESPS ESPS 2003 2002
£ £m £fm £m
Surplus/{deficit) in scheme at beginning
of year . . . . . L L L (203} (116) (319) 97
Current servicecost .. .. .. .. . . (19) hH (26) (17}
Contributions .. .. .. . . . . 27 11 38 4
Past service costs .. .. .. . . . (3} (3} (35)
Curtailments .. .. . . . . . (5) (4 )] {4)
Other bnancial income .. .. .. .. . 2 2 4 20
Actuanal loss .. .. .. . . .. . (35) {4 (39 (311}
Loss on TXU acquisitions .. .. .. . = - (10
Loss on SEEBOARD acquisition .. - (63)
Deficit in scheme at end of year .. .. (236) (118) (354) (319

Analysis of amount recognised in Statement of total recognised gains and losses that would have arisen if

FRS 17 had been fully implemented:

London
Electricity SEREBOARD
Group Growp of Toral Total
of ESPS ESPS 2003 2002
£m £m £m £
Actual return Jess expected rcturn on
pension scheme assets .. .. . .. 92 50 142 (245)
Experience (losses)/gains arising on
the scheme liabilities .. .. .. .. . 21y 7 (14) 24)
Changes in assumptions underlying the
present value of the scheme liabilities (106} (61) (167) (42)
Actuarial loss recognised in STRGL .. (35) C)) 39) (311}
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History of experience gains and losses that would have arisen if FRS 17 had been fully implemented:

London
Electricity SEEBOARD
Group Group of Total Total

of ESPS ESPS 2003 2002
Difference between expected and actual
return on scheme assets:
Amount (£fm) .. . . . . . . 92 30 142 (245)
Percentage of scheme assets .. .. ., 9% T 8% (1673
Experience (losses)/gains on scheme labilities:
Amount (fm) .. .. . . . . .. Zn 7 (14) (24)
Percentage of scheme liabilities.. .. .. (2%} 1% (1%) {170}
Total amount recognised in STRGL:
Amount{fm) .. .. . . . . . (35 “4) (39) (311
Percentage of scheme liabilities.. .. .. (3%} 0% (2'%) {(17%)

30. Capital commitments

Amounts contracted for but not provided in the linancial statements amounted to £186.5 million {2002
£304.5 million).

31. Commitments and contingent liabilities

Under Part II A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 a retroactive liability may be imposed on
landowners for the clean up of land identified by local authorities as contaminated. Land can be identified
as contaminated if significant harm is being caused, pollution of controlled waters is occurring and there is
a significant possibility of controlled waters being contaminated. If EDF Energy ple (formerly London
Electricity Group plcy’s sites are contaminated. clean up costs may be wncurred in the future. However, 1t 18
not currently possible 1o calculate a reliable estimate of clean up costs.

Other than the matters noted above, there were no other material commitments, contingent liabilities or
guarantees apart from those given in respect of certain subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business.

32. Other financial commitments

Al 31st December, 2003, the Group and Company had annual commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases as set out below:

Group
Land and Other Land and Other
buildings buildings
2003 2003 2002 2002
£m £m £m fm
Operating lcases which expire:
Within one year .. .. .. . . . . 0.3 - 1.4
Intwoto fiveyears .. .. . . . . 2.1 - 0.6
In over five years .. .. .. . . . 10.9 16.6 8.3
13.3 16.6 10.3




Company

Land and Other Land and Other
buildings buildings
2003 2003 2002 2002
£m £m £m fm
Operating leases which expire:
Within one year .. .. .. .. . . . 0.3 - 0.6
Intwo to fiveyears .. .. .. . . . 1.6 - 0.4
In over five years .. .. .. . . . 3.4 ~ 7.2
10.3 - 8.2

33. Related parties

During the year the Group purchased services from and provided services to its joint venture and associate
companies as follows:

2003 2002
£m tm
Sales:
Services supplied .. .. .. . L L L L L Lo oo e 1.6
Purchases:
Services received .. .. .. . L L L L L L. o .. (120.4) {56.8)
Tangible fixed assets .. .. .. . . . L L . . o . ... 0.2 -
Amounts due to Group at 31st December .. .. .. .. . . . . . 38 15.3

34. Post balance sheet events

On 8th March, 2004, the Group issued £300m - 5.75% bonds duc 2024. The proceeds of the issue will be
used to refinance a maturing bond.

35.  Prior year adjustinent

The Directors have decided to make the following policy changes in order to reduce the difference in the
Group's accounting policics with those of the Company’s ultimate parent company. Electricité de France
{“EDF™), which preparcs its financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {“IFRS™):

{i) Discontinue the policy of discounting deferred tax assets and liabilities

Under [FRS, the discounting of deferred tax assets and liabilities is not permitted.

(i) Discontinue the policy of capitafising inrerest

EDF do not currently capitalise interest during the construction of fixed assets where it relaies either
to the financing of major projects with long periods of develepment or to dedicated financing of other
projects.

These changes in accounting policy have been reflected in the accounts as a prior year adjustment in
accordance with FRS 3.
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The eftect on the Group profit and loss account {or the years ended 3Lst December, 2003 and 31st December,

2002 15 shown below.

Increase in interest charge as a result of the expensing of interest

financing asscts under construction .

Increase in tax charge as a result of not dlscountmg dcfcrr(,d lax <1ssc£s

and Habilitics ..

Total net profit decrease ..
As previously reported
As restated

2003 2002
£m £m
5.2 5.9

17.2 40.0

22.4 45.9
- (6l 1)
- (14.2)

The effect on the Group balance sheet at 31st December, 2003 and 31st December, 2002 is shown below.

2003 2002
Umider  Accounting As  Accounting Per
previous policy Per  previously policy €CCounts
policy change acconnts reported change ([ Restated)
£m £m £fm fm £m £in
Net goodwill .. .. . . . 1,178.7 78.6 1,257.3 1.254.9 78.6 1.333.5
Fixed assets.. .. .. . 5,041.8 116.0 5,157.8 4.789.2 121.2 49104
Provisions for labilities &nd
charges .. .. . . . . {463.6) (360.6) (824.2) (538.2) {343.4) (881.0)
Movement in equity
sharcholder’s funds .. .. . - 166.0 - 143.6

36. Parent ondertaking and controlling party

At 31st December. 2003, EDF Energy pic’s (formerly London Electricity Group plc’s) immediate parent
cotnpany was EDF Energy Group Holdings plc (formerly London Electricity Group Holdings plc).

At 31st December. 2003, ‘Electricité de France', a French state owned company is regarded by the Dircctors
as the Company’s uitimate parent company. This is the largest group for which consolidated accounts are
prepared. Copies of Electricité de France's consolidated accounts may be obtained from Electricité de
France, 22-30 Avenue de Wagram, 75382, Paris, Cedex 08, France.
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TAXATION

U.K. Taxation

The following applies only to persons who are the absolute beneficial mvners of Notes and is a summary of each
Issuer’s undersianding of current law and Inland Revenue practice in the United Kingdom relating to certain
aspects of the laxation of interest in respect of the Notes. It does not necessarily apply where income is deemed
Jor tax purposes to be the income of uny other person. Some aspects do not apply to certain clusses of person
to whom special rules may apply. Prospective Noteholders who may be subjec! to tax in a jurisdiction other than
the United Kingdom or who may be unsure as to their tax position should seek their own professional advice.

Al

Interest on the Notes

1. The Notes issued will constitute “quoted Eurobonds™ provided they are and continue to be listed
on a recognised stock exchanpe, within the meaning of section 841 of the Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988 (the “Act™). The London Stock Exchange is a recognised stock
exchange for these purposes. Under an Inland Revenue published practice, securities will be
treated as listed on the London Stock Exchange if they arc admitted to the Official List by the
United Kingdom Listing Authority and are admitted 1o trading on the London Stock Exchange.
Whilst the Notes are and continue to be quoted Eurobonds, payments of interest on the Notes
may be made without withholding or deduction on account of United Kingdom tax.

In other cascs, an amount must gencrally be withheld from payments of interest on the Notes on
account of United Kingdom income tax at the lower rate {currently 20 per cent.). subject to the
availability of other reliefs or to any direction to the contrary by the Inland Revenue under an
applicable doublc taxation treaty.

2. Noteholders who are individuals may wish to note that the Inland Revenue has power 1o oblain
information (including the name and address of the beneficial owner of the interest) from any
person in the United Kingdom who either pays interest to or receives interest for the benefit of
an individual. The Inland Revenue also has power 1o obtain from any person in the United
Kingdom who pays amounts payable on the redemption of Notes which are relevant discounted
securities for the purposes of the Finance Act 1996 to, or receives such amounts for the benefit
of, an individual. Such information may include the name and address of the beneficial owner of
the amount payablc on redemption. Such information may, in certain circumstances, be
cxchanged by the Inland Revenue with the tax authorities of other jurisdictions.

Further United Kingdom Income Tax Issues

Interest on the Nodes constitutes United Kingdom source income for tax purposes and, as such, may
be subject to United Kingdom income lax by direct assessment even where paid without withholding.

However, mterest with a United Kingdom source received without deduction or withhoelding on account
of United Kingdom tax will not generally be chargeable to United Kingdom tax in the hands of a
Noteholder (other than certain trustecs) who is not resident for tax purposes in the United Kingdom at
all relevant times unless that Notcholder carries on a trade. profession or vocation in the United
Kingdom through a United Kingdom branch or agency in conncction with which the interest is received
or lo which the Notes are attributable or where that Notcholder is a company, unless that Notcholder
carries on a trade in the United Kingdom through a permanent establishment in connection with which
the interest is received or to whick the Notes are attributable. In such cases, subject to certain exemptions
for interest received by cerlain categories of agent (such as some brokers and investment managers), tax
may be levied on the United Kingdom branch or agency or permanent establishment. The provisions of
an applicable double taxation treaty may also be relevant for such Noteholders. Noteholders should note
that the provisions rclating to additional amounts referred to in “Terms of the Notes - Clause 7
Taxation” above would not apply if the Inland Revenue sought to assess directly the person entitled to
the relevant interest to United Kimgdom tax. However exemption from, or reduction ol such United
Kingdom tax liability might be available under an applicable double taxation treaty.

EU Savings Directive

On 3rd June, 2003, the European Council of Economics and Finance Ministers adopted a Directive on
the taxation of savings income under which Member States will be required, if a mamber of important
conditions are et and from a date not earlier than 1st January, 2005, to provide to the tax authoritics
of another Member State details of payments of interest (or similar income} paid by a person within
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its jurisdiction to an individual resident in that other Member State, except that, for a irapsitional
period, Belgium, Luxembourg and Austria will instead (unless during that period they elect otherwise)
operate a withholding system in relation to such payments. It is expected that a sumber of third
countries and territories, including the United States. will adopt similar measures with effect from the
same datc,
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SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE

The Dealers have, in an amended and restated programme agreement (the “ Programune Agreement”) dated
12th May, 2004, agreed with the Issucrs a basis upon which they or any of them may from time to time agree
to purchase Notes. Any such agreement will extend to those matters stated under “Form of the Notes™ and
“Terms and Conditions of the Notes”. In the Programme Agreement, the Issuers have agreed to reimburse
the Dealers for certain of their expenses in connection with the establishment and any future update of the
Programme and the issue of Notes under the Programme and to indemnify ihe Dealers against certain
habilities incurred by them in connection therewith.

United States

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered or sold
within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.8. persons except in accordance with
Regulation S under the Securities Acl or pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the
Securities Act.

The Notes are subject to U.S. tax law requirements and may nol be offered, sold or delivered within the
United States or ils possessions or to a United States person, except in certain transactions permitied by
LIS, tax regulations. Terms used in this paragraph have thc meanings given to them by the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 and regulations thereunder.

Fach Dealer has represented and agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be
required to represent and agree, that, it will offer and sell Notes (i} as part of their distribution at any time
or {i1) otherwise until 40 days after the completion of the distribution of all Notes of the Tranche of which
such Notes are a part, only in accordance with Rule 903 of Regulation S under the Sccurities Act. Each
Dealer has further agreed, and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to
agree, that it will send 1o each dealer to which it seils any Notes during the distribution compliance period
a conflirmation or other notice sctting forth the restrictions on offers and sales of the Notes within the
United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons.

Until 40 days afler the commencement of the offering ol any Series of Notes, an offer or sale of such Notes
within the United States by any dealer (whether or not participating in the offering) may violate the
registralion requirements ol the Seccurities Act if such offer or sale is made otherwise than in accordance
with an available cxemption from registration under the Sceurities Act.

Each issuance of Index Linked Notes or Dual Currency Notes shall be subject 1o such additional U.S,
selling restrictions as the relevant lssuer and the relevant Dealer may agree as a term of the issuance and
purchase of such Notes. which additional selling restrictions shall be sct out in the applicable Pricing
Supplement.

United Kingdom

Each Dealer has represented, warranted and agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the
Programme will be required to represent, warrant and agree that:

(i}  inrelation te Notes which have a maturity of one year or more and which are to be admitted
to the Official List, it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell any Notes to persons
in the United Kingdom prior to admission of such Notes to listing in accordance with Part
V1 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the “FSMA™) except to persons whose
ordinary activities involve them in acquiring. holding, managing or disposing of
investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their businesses or otherwise in
circumstances which have not resulted and will not result in an offer to the public in the
United Kingdom within the meaning of the Public Offers of Securities Regulations 1995 (as
amended) or the FSMA

(ii) in relation to Notes which have a maturity of one year or more and which are not to be
admitted to the Official List, it has not offered or sold and, prior to the expiry of the period
of six months from the issue date of such Notes, will not offer or sell any such Notes to
persons in the United Kingdom except to persons whose ordinary activities involve them in
acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the
purposes of their businesses or otherwise in circumstances which have not resulted and will
not result in an offer to the public in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Public
Offers of Securities Regulations 1995 (as amended):
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(i1} in relation to any Notes having a maturity of less than one year (a) it 1s a person whose
ordinary activities involve it in acquiring. holding managing or disposing of investments {as
principal or agent) for the purposes of its business and (b) it has not offered or sold and will
not offer or seil any Notes other than to persons whose ordinary activitics involve them in
acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or as agent) for the
purposes of their businesses or who it is reasonable to expect will acquire, bold, manage or
dispose of invesiments (as principal or agent} for the purposes of their businesses where the
issue of the Notes would otherwise constitule a confravention of section 19 of the FSMA
by the relevant lssuer:

(iv) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or
cause to be communicated an invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity
(within {he meaning of section 21 of the FSMA) received by it in connection with the issue
or sale of any Notes 1n circumstances in which section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply
to the relevant Issuer; and

(v} 1t has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to
anything done by il n relation to any Notes in. from or otherwise involving the United
Kingdom.

Japan

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan (the
“Secnrities amid Exchange Law”) and each Dealer has agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the
Programme will be required to agree that it will not offer or sell any Notes, directly or indirectly, in Japan or
o, or for the benefit of. any resident of Japan (which term as used herein means any person resident in
Japan, including any corporation or other entity organised under the laws of Japan). or to others for
re-offering or resale. directly or indirectly. in Japan or to a resident of Japan cxcept pursuant to an
excmption from the registration requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the Securities and
Exchange Law and any other applicable laws, regulations and ministerial guidelines of Japan.

General

Each Dealer has agreed and cach further Dealer appointed uader the Programme will be required to agree
that it wiil (to the best of its knowledge and belief) comply with all applicable securitics laws and regulations
in force in any jurisdiction in which it purchases, offers, sells or delivers Notes or possesses or distributes this
Offering Circutar and will obtain any consent. approval or permission required by it for the purchase, offer,
sale ot delivery by it of Notes under the laws and regulations in force in any jurisdiction to which it is subject
or in which it makes such purchases, offers, sales or deliverics and neither the relevant Issuer, the Trustee nor
any of the other Dealers shall have any responsibility therefor.

Neither the relevant Issuer. the Trustee nor any of the Dealers represents that Notes may at any time lawfully
be sold in compliance with any applicable regisiration or other requirements in any jurisdiction, or pursuant
to any excmplion available thereunder, or assumes any responsibility for facilitating such sale.

With regard to cach Tranche. the relevant Dealer will be required to comply with such other restrictions as
the relevant lssuer and the relevant Dealer shall agree and as shall be set out in the applicable Pricing
Supplement.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Authorisation

The establishment and current update of the Programme and the issue of Notes have been duly authorised
by resolutions ol the Board of Dircctors of LPN passed on 6th December, 2001 and 3rd April, 2002, of
EPN passcd on 7th May, 2003, of SPN passed on 7th May, 2003 and of EDF Energy plc passed on
6th December, 2001 and 3rd April. 2002 and by resolutions of a committee of the Board of Dircclors of
LPN passed on 20th May, 2002 and 20th May, 2004, of EPN passed on 7th May, 2003 and 20th May, 2004,
ol SPN passed on 7th May, 2003 and 20th May. 2004 and of EDF Energy plc passed on 20th May, 2002
and 20th May, 2004,

Each issue of Notes under the Programme will be authorised by a Committee of the Board of Directors of
the relevant Issuer.

Listing of Notes

The admission of Notes to the Official List will be expressed as a percentage of their nominal amount
(excluding accrued interest). It is expected that each Tranche ol Notes which is to be admitted to the Official
List and to trading on the London Stock Exchange will be admitted separately as and when issued, subject
only to the issue of a Global Note or Notes initially representing the Notes of such Tranche. The listing of
the Programme in respect of Notes is expected to be granted on or before 27th May, 2004.

Documents Available

So long as Notes are capable of being issued under the Programme, copies of the following documents will,
when pubiished. be available from the registered office of each Issuer and from the specified office of the
Paying Agent for the time being in London:

(i) the Memorandum and Articles of Association of each Issuer:

{iiy the consolidated audited financial statements of EDF Energy ple in respect of the financial
years ended 31st December, 2002 and 2003. EDF Energy plc currently prepares audited
consolidated financial statements on an annual basis;

(i) the unconsolidated audited financial statements of LPN in respect of the financial years

ended 3lst December. 2002 and 2003, LPN currently prepares audited unconsolidated
financtal staterents on an annual basis;

(iv) the unconsolidated audited financial statements of EPN in respect of the financial years
ended 31st December. 2002 and 2003. EPN currently prepares audited unconsolidated
linancial stalements on an annual basis:

(v} the unconsolidated audited financial staterments of” SPN in respect of the financial years
ended 31st December, 2002 and 2003. SPN currently prepares audited unconsolidated
financial statements on an annual basis:

{vi) the most recenily published audited annual financial statements of each Issuer. None of the
Issuers prepare interim financial statements;

(vit) the Programme Agreement, the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement and the forms of the
Global Notes, the Notes in definitive form, the Receipts. the Coupons and the Talons:

{vili) a copy of this Offering Circular:

(ix} the letter of consent of Ernst & Young referred to below;

{x) any luture offering circulars. prospectuscs, information memoranda and supplements
including Pricing Supplements (save that a Pricing Supplement relating to an unlisted Note
will only be available for inspection by a holder of such Note and such holder must produce
evidenge salisfactory to the relevant Issuer and the Paying Agent as to its holding of Notes
and identity) to this Offering Circular and any other documents incorporated herein or
therein by reference: and

(xi} in the case ol cach issue of listed Notes subseribed pursuant to a subscription agreement,
the subscription agreement (or equivalent document).
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Clearing Systems

The Notes have been accepled for clearance through Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. The
appropriate Common Code and ISIN for each Tranche of Notes allocated by Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg will be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. If the Notes are to clear through an
additional or alternative clearing system the appropriate information will be specified in the applicable
Pricing Supplement.

Significant or Material Change

Save as disclosed in this Offering Circular, there has been no significant change in the financial or trading
position of any of the Issuers or of their respective Groups and there has been no material adverse change
in the financial position or prospects of any of the Issuers or of their respective Groups since 31st December,
2003,

Litigation

None of the Issuers nor any other member of their respective Group 1s or has been involved in any legal or
arbitration proceedings (including any proceedings which are pending or threatened of which any Issuer is
awarc) which may have or have had in the 12 months preceding the date of this document a significant effect
on the financial position of that Issuer or its Group.

Auditors

The auditors of EDF Energy ple, LPN, SPN and EPN are Ernst & Young LLP, Registered Auditors, who
have audited. without qualification. in accordance with generally aceepted auditing standards in the United
Kingdom (i) the financial statements of EDF Encrgy ple tor cach of the three financial years ended on
31st December, 2603; (ii} the financial statements of LPN for each of the three financial years ended on 31st
December, 2003; (i) the financial statements of SPN for the financial year ended on 31st December, 2003;
and (iv) the financial statements of EPN for cach of the two financial years ended on 31st December, 2003.
Deloitte & Touche LLP audited, without qualification. in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards in the United Kingdom, the financial statements of SPN for each for the two financial years ended
on 31st December, 2002 and the financial statements of EPN for the financial year ended on 31st December,
2001,

The audit report in respect of the financial year ended 31st December, 2003 for each of EDF Energy ple.
EPN. 8PN and LPN conlains the statement that such report is made solely to the company’s members, as a
body, in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and that their audit work has been
undertaken so that they might state to the company’s members those maltters they are required to state to
them in an audijtor’s report and for no other purpose. Fusthermore, it states that to the fullest extent
permitted by law, such auditors do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company’s members as a body, (or their audit work, for their report, or for the opinions they have
formed.

Such a statement is recommended in recent guidance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales for inclusion in all Section 235 audit reports produced by audit firms.
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